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 1                      P R O C E E D I N G S
  

 2   Madison County Board of Adjustment Quasi-judicial Public
  

 3   Hearing,
  

 4                  May 16, 2019,
  

 5             (WHEREUPON, due to the room acoustics and the
  

 6                  layout of the courtroom, the following
  

 7                  testimony may contain unclear or
  

 8                  unintelligible speech that was transcribed as
  

 9                  inaudible)
  

10             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Good evening.  This is a
  

11                  continuation of the regular Madison County
  

12                  Board of Adjustment meeting.  It's a quasi-
  

13                  judicial hearing.  I am Karen Kiehna, chair
  

14                  of the Board of Adjustment and the board
  

15                  members are Darlyne Rhinehart, Michael Tuziw,
  

16                  Ernest Ramsey, Robert Briggs.  Two of our
  

17                  members have recused themselves from the
  

18                  process, one is Rick Molland and second is
  

19                  Sherrie Frisbee.  They are not here tonight.
  

20                            Our zoning officer and secretary is
  

21                  Jeff Hyder.  Our deputy is not here yet but
  

22                  I'm sure he'll be here.  We will be taking a
  

23                  comfort break at some point around 8:00,
  

24                  8:15-ish, depending on when -- how the
  

25                  proceedings go.
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 1                       We ask this -- this is much like a court
  

 2                  proceeding with the Board of Adjustment
  

 3                  serving as the roll of judge.  Respect in --
  

 4                  please respect the hearing as if you were in
  

 5                  court.  If circumstances require we will ask
  

 6                  the deputy to bring the hearing into order.
  

 7                  Please do your best, and I know late in the
  

 8                  day and the evening, that there is some
  

 9                  levity that does come but please refrain from
  

10                  clapping, applauding, making gestures because
  

11                  it is a court proceeding.
  

12                       We are ready to proceed.  It's my
  

13                  understanding, Mr. Gulden, are you ready to
  

14                  proceed?
  

15             MR. GULDEN:  We are, Madam Chair and thank you.
  

16             MR. SNEED:  I haven't had a motion --
  

17             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Thank you.
  

18             MR. SNEED:  -- into the last two witnesses.  Just
  

19                  for the record, I don't need to argue it now,
  

20                  but I move to strike Mr. Read's testimony as
  

21                  appraiser.  Is it working now?  I move to
  

22                  strike Mr. Read, the appraiser's testimony,
  

23                  Mr. Rubin's testimony under Rule 702A of the
  

24                  Rules of Evidence and the grounds are there
  

25                  were insufficient facts or data.  Mr. Read
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 1                  said the appropriate place to compare was
  

 2                  looking at neighborhoods most similar.  He
  

 3                  instead compared it to the whole zip code and
  

 4                  never gave any data to indicate that the
  

 5                  whole zip code was most similar.
  

 6                       The testimony is a product of -- has to
  

 7                  be a product of a reliable method or
  

 8                  principle.  He used the mean or average.  He
  

 9                  did not use the median.  The average can be
  

10                  distorted greatly by the presence of a few
  

11                  high-priced homes.  For example, if you had
  

12                  100 homes and the average price was 260, and
  

13                  say ten of them had sold for 800,000.  If
  

14                  those ten sold for a million that would
  

15                  change the average from 260 to 280 and that
  

16                  would happen, you know, if you had one home
  

17                  it would disproportionately change the
  

18                  average.  But if you use the mean it wouldn't
  

19                  change.  Did not apply the principles or
  

20                  methods reliably, and I would reserve the
  

21                  right to argue this at the end of the case.
  

22                       I don't think Mr. Beddingfield's
  

23                  testimony was substantial or material.  He's
  

24                  testified about a report that he had done and
  

25                  he kind of explained how it could affect this
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 1                  case and the report said that you need to
  

 2                  have between five to 100 feet from a
  

 3                  flammable home clear of flammable material.
  

 4                  When I asked him about 180 feet across a
  

 5                  gravel ground with nothing flammable and not
  

 6                  so flammable tank because of the double-wall
  

 7                  sealed tank, the outside of the tank doesn't
  

 8                  burn, he jumped off into things that he's not
  

 9                  qualified to talk about.  Thank you, ma'am.
  

10             MR. GULDEN:  Well, and we would object to his
  

11                  motion.  We ask that that testimony be
  

12                  allowed.  And of course, Rule 702 talks about
  

13                  scientific, technical or other specialized
  

14                  knowledge.  He had the right to cross-examine
  

15                  each one of those witnesses and because he
  

16                  opened the door and got the answer he didn't
  

17                  want, doesn't mean it's not scientific, that
  

18                  it's not specialized, or it's not technical.
  

19                  Using the mean or the median, I would move to
  

20                  strike Lynn Carmichael's testimony because,
  

21                  A, first time she testified she didn't
  

22                  provide any technical data and she didn't
  

23                  give any scientific evidence as to why a
  

24                  half-mile, a mile or five miles were
  

25                  appropriate.  And in fact, our expert, the
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 1                  MAI said a half-mile is ineffective to
  

 2                  measure any kind of data because there are
  

 3                  very few homes around industrial sites.  So
  

 4                  we would move to strike her testimony.
  

 5                       And we're prepared to call our witness.
  

 6                  We would call -- and we're doing it for the
  

 7                  record.  We would move to strike Mr.
  

 8                  Vandenmeiracker's testimony, his opinion
  

 9                  testimony about health because he was not
  

10                  qualified as a medical expert or had any
  

11                  qualifications in the field of health.  He
  

12                  was an engineer, no specialized training in
  

13                  health.
  

14                       We would call Laura Evans to the stand.
  

15                       LAURA EVANS, being first duly identified
  

16   and sworn was examined and testified as follows:
  

17             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Please be seated and if you
  

18                  would, state your name for the court reporter
  

19                  and spell it for her also, please.
  

20             THE WITNESS:  Laura Evans, L-a-u-r-a  E-v-a-n-s.
  

21   D I R E C T  E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

22   Q.   Good afternoon, Ms. Evans.  Can you tell the board
  

23        where you live?
  

24   A.   I live on 285 Cabin Hollow Drive which is the gravel
  

25        end of Frank Rector Road.
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 1   Q.   And you understand why we're here, don't you?
  

 2   A.   Yes.  I'm here today because the proposed asphalt plant
  

 3        will practically be in my backyard.
  

 4   Q.   And let me talk about that real quick.  When you say it
  

 5        will practically be in your backyard, from your
  

 6        property are you able to see the quarry or parts of it?
  

 7        Tell us why it's practically in your backyard?
  

 8   A.   We live on the ridge above the quarry just over the
  

 9        river.  That's where Cabin Hollow Drive is.  And almost
  

10        every home on Cabin Hollow Drive looks into the quarry.
  

11        I know we've heard a lot of testimony over these days
  

12        about people knowing where the quarry is or knowing
  

13        where the drive is and can see it here or see it from
  

14        there, but we see it every day.  If I were to stand up
  

15        like this, she would be the quarry.  I know that's hard
  

16        to believe but we see the trucks.  We see the dust.
  

17        When they blow up --
  

18   Q.   You can sit down.
  

19   A.   Okay.  I mean, it's incredible -- I hate to say this
  

20        but when we bought the property in 2010, we only
  

21        visited on the weekends so we didn't know the quarry
  

22        was right there but we have come to learn to live with
  

23        the quarry because it was there before us.
  

24   Q.   And Ms. Evans if you can come down.  I've already
  

25        identified this as Opposition, I would say, 2 but it
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 1        might be 3 or 1.  You get an idea of where the quarry
  

 2        is and this is the river obviously, this is downtown
  

 3        Marshall.  Point to on this board so that this board
  

 4        knows where you live.
  

 5   A.   We live right -- right about right -- no, no, that's us
  

 6        right there, right there.
  

 7   Q.   Oh, that big clearing?
  

 8   A.   That big clearing, that's what we call that our upper
  

 9        pasture and that's my house and since I bought this
  

10        property and built that house two of my sisters -- we
  

11        like each other -- bought property on either side of
  

12        me.
  

13   Q.   And that's unlikely for sisters.
  

14   A.   Right.
  

15   Q.   So all right.  You can head back up there.  So you can
  

16        head back up there.  So you live in this big clearing.
  

17        And I'm going to walk it up to the board.  I'm going to
  

18        walk the board up to the board to indicate to them
  

19        where that was.  And Ms. Evans, I'm pointing right
  

20        here.  That's where you indicated --
  

21   A.   That's exactly it.  You can see the red of the roof of
  

22        my house.
  

23             MR. GULDEN:  And she was just talking about that
  

24                  parcel of property.
  

25   Q.   And how many acres do you own right there?
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 1   A.   Just a little over 26.
  

 2   Q.   And what use do you make of your property?
  

 3   A.   Well, I actually looked for land with my sister for
  

 4        probably four or five years.  We wanted -- we always
  

 5        had in our mind that we wanted to have a small farm,
  

 6        that we wanted to run a summer camp.  I'm a retired
  

 7        school teacher.  My sister is still teaching.  This is,
  

 8        I think, her 19th or 20th year.  And so we looked and
  

 9        looked all up and down the mountains of North Carolina.
  

10        We love North Carolina.  We wanted to be in the
  

11        mountains.  But when we pulled onto Jean Mitchem's farm
  

12        one Saturday, we said, this is it.  This is it.  Had a
  

13        beautiful old barn.  It had an old house on it.  It had
  

14        some level areas and we thought, this is where we could
  

15        have our summer camp.
  

16             And so six years ago we started a summer camp
  

17        program for elementary school children.  We bought -- I
  

18        bought that property in 2010.  I built my house there
  

19        in 2012.  I retired from public education, 40 years, in
  

20        2017 and then moved here October of that year.
  

21   Q.   So you moved here in October of 2017?
  

22   A.   Yes, sir.
  

23   Q.   When did you start your summer camp for elementary
  

24        school children?
  

25   A.   We started the camp in 2012, I think.  Patty is saying
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 1        '14.  That's my sister back there.  We started --
  

 2   Q.   That you can recall.
  

 3   A.   2014, yes.  And we've had it every summer.  This will
  

 4        be our sixth summer.
  

 5   Q.   Well, that makes sense then, 2014.  Tell me a little
  

 6        bit about what you do at your summer camp that involves
  

 7        the children.
  

 8   A.   Okay.  So we do take elementary school children,
  

 9        approximately 20 to 25 children a week through the
  

10        summer and they are on our property from as early as
  

11        eight o'clock in the morning to as late as 6:00 in the
  

12        evening.  It's a day camp.  And our purpose is to
  

13        introduce the children to farm life, where does your
  

14        food come from, how to respect animals, how to take
  

15        care of animals, how to grow your own food, how to
  

16        prepare your own food.  And in the midst of all those
  

17        learning things, we also have a whole activity farm
  

18        chores.  But in the midst of all those activities, they
  

19        are outside playing and it's just incredible because it
  

20        reminds us of the way we grew up and that they just
  

21        play all day long outside, even when it's raining.
  

22        It's unbelievable.  They just like being outside.
  

23   Q.   How many children are usually there?
  

24   A.   In any week it's 20 to 25 and they range in age from as
  

25        young as four.  They have to be going into kindergarten



Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. VI -
May 16, 2019

662

  

 1        and then as old as going into sixth grade which I think
  

 2        is like 11 or 12.  A lot of our campers have been with
  

 3        us now for several summers and so once they reach
  

 4        beyond sixth grade, they can come back as a junior
  

 5        counselor.  So we have a few older kids each week.
  

 6   Q.   And you may have already said this, how many weeks do
  

 7        you run it over the --
  

 8   A.   We run it for six weeks.  Our goal is to run it longer
  

 9        but Patty -- because Patty is still working, that's not
  

10        really possible right now because she doesn't get out
  

11        of school till late June and goes back fairly early in
  

12        August.  So the weeks she's off for the summer is when
  

13        we have our camp.
  

14   Q.   And you're talking about farming.  Do these young
  

15        children, four to 11 that are outside playing and
  

16        farming, do they -- what do they do when you talk about
  

17        farming, are they growing vegetables?
  

18   A.   Yes.  We have a great, big vegetable garden and they
  

19        tend to it, they weed it.  Right now Patty and I are
  

20        doing it.  So it's always great when they come.  It's a
  

21        huge help.  But they tend to it then they harvest their
  

22        vegetables.  We teach them how to prepare their lunch,
  

23        to prepare their snacks.  We have fruit trees on our
  

24        farm so they'll easily, the peaches come ripe while
  

25        they're there.  They'll easily walk by that tree and
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 1        grab a peach off of that tree and eat it.  They eat
  

 2        tomatoes out of the garden, the cucumbers, beans.  They
  

 3        love peppers, you know, stuff like that.  I mean, it's
  

 4        just amazing how they connect where their food is
  

 5        coming from.  It's very different from walking through
  

 6        the grocery store.
  

 7   Q.   Yeah.  So you had said that the quarry is basically in
  

 8        your backyard.  Are you going to be -- you know where
  

 9        the proposed asphalt plant is going to be located, do
  

10        you not?
  

11   A.   Yes.
  

12   Q.   Are you going to be able to see that asphalt plant from
  

13        your property?
  

14   A.   Yes.  We are very concerned about the asphalt plant.
  

15        As I explained, we bought the property not knowing that
  

16        the quarry was there.  We live with the quarry.
  

17        Because I'm retired I wake up to the quarry.  In the
  

18        evening I sit outside and drink my evening cocktail to
  

19        the quarry until they close.  It's noisy.  It's dusty.
  

20        The trucks on the highway, we hear them.  Just because
  

21        of the terrain it is incredible what we can hear on
  

22        Cabin Hollow Drive.
  

23   Q.   Well, let me ask you this.  Because we heard testimony
  

24        from one of the witnesses from the Applicant that
  

25        there's going to be an increase in decibels related to
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 1        the asphalt plant of about 98 decibels.
  

 2             MR. SNEED:  Objection.  That's not the testimony.
  

 3             MR. GULDEN:  I think that's exactly the testimony.
  

 4             MR. SNEED:  It's 98 decibels ten feet from the
  

 5                  quarry.
  

 6   Q.   There's going to be an increase from the asphalt plant
  

 7        of 98 decibels.  Mr. Sneed just testified to that
  

 8        again.  How is the increase in noise going to affect
  

 9        you and your use of the property?
  

10   A.   We feel it's going to be terrible.  It's terrible for
  

11        us alone because we live there every day, but our
  

12        parents, our camp parents, are not going to like it.
  

13        We're worried about the smell.  We're worried about the
  

14        increased noise.  We're worried about the pollutants.
  

15        We're worried about the loss of income we're going to
  

16        have when they realize, oh, my God, I'm driving right
  

17        by this asphalt plant.  I can see the asphalt plant
  

18        from my yard, or will be able to.  We're very concerned
  

19        about that.  We're particularly concerned about the
  

20        pollutants because these are young children and they do
  

21        work outside.  They do work in the dirt.  They're all
  

22        over the property.  We actually have a trail that goes
  

23        down to the river and that puts us super close to the
  

24        asphalt -- where the asphalt plant would be so, we're
  

25        very concerned about it.
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 1   Q.   And you heard Dr. Cloverdale and Dr. McGhee's testimony
  

 2        about the effects that the pollutants would have from
  

 3        the asphalt plant on the child development center and
  

 4        the Elderberry Nursing home, did you not?
  

 5   A.   Yes.
  

 6   Q.   And if you walk down to the river from your property
  

 7        are you -- well, are you as close or closer to the
  

 8        proposed asphalt site than --
  

 9   A.   We are closer.  We're at the back gate.  I don't know,
  

10        when you come down the road by the river you see that
  

11        green gate, if you look across the river, that's our
  

12        property.
  

13   Q.   And you're worried about the effect that the pollutants
  

14        would have on the children.  Is that what you're
  

15        testifying --
  

16   A.   Yes, sir.  And our animals, we have cows, we have
  

17        sheep, we have goats, we have chickens and turkeys and
  

18        ducks.  We have it all because we're a farm camp.  We
  

19        have pigs.  And we sell a lot of that meat and we're
  

20        concerned about the pollutants with our animals.  We do
  

21        our best -- we're not an organic farm but we do our
  

22        best to keep any type of chemicals off of our farm.
  

23        We're right beside a vineyard, and oh, my God, they're
  

24        all about no chemicals.  So we're not going to
  

25        contribute to any problems with them either.
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 1   Q.   And you're aware of a study done by a Dr. Jim Zhang,
  

 2        Junfeng Zhang.  Dr. Zhang, I think he's sitting right
  

 3        behind me; where he studied the dietary consumption of
  

 4        contaminated vegetables and he found, in fact, that
  

 5        planting vegetables near industrial facilities may pose
  

 6        potential cancer risks to those who consume the
  

 7        vegetables?
  

 8   A.   Yes, I read that article.  And I was very alarmed by
  

 9        that because it confirmed things I've been hearing.
  

10        I've been trying to come to these hearings every time.
  

11        I'm very alarmed by that because the article also said
  

12        it's more -- it more impacts young children which is
  

13        who we serve at our farm.
  

14   Q.   And do your young children eat the vegetables that will
  

15        be grown in close proximity to this industrial site?
  

16   A.   Every day.
  

17   Q.   This industrial site at the least is, as was testified
  

18        to by the Applicant's own experts, benzenes?
  

19   A.   Yes.
  

20   Q.   Yeah.  Benzo(a) --
  

21   A.   Yes.
  

22   Q.   -- pyrenes.
  

23   A.   Yes, cancer-causing chemicals, yes.  We're very
  

24        concerned about it all.
  

25   Q.   How is that going to affect your business and your
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 1        summer camp?
  

 2   A.   Well, my first thought was our parents are not going to
  

 3        like it.  We're probably going to lose campers.  But
  

 4        then my second thought was, I don't like it either and
  

 5        I'm not sure if we can operate a summer camp so close
  

 6        to an industrial site that could cause those kinds of
  

 7        dangers for our clients.  I hadn't talked to my sister
  

 8        about it.  That's the very first time I've said it.
  

 9        I'm sure she's shocked.  But I'm very concerned about
  

10        that.  This is our retirement income.  We are teachers.
  

11        We didn't make a lot of money, you know, we do have a
  

12        little bit of a state pension which is nice but we knew
  

13        all along that we were going to have to do something
  

14        else when we retired and we're doing something we love
  

15        and we feel like we're making a difference in
  

16        children's lives.
  

17             So the asphalt plant, it's pretty disruptive for
  

18        me and my sister.  Like I said, the quarry was there.
  

19        We knew the quarry was there.  We found out about the
  

20        quarry.  All the folks who live along Cabin Hollow
  

21        Road, we've come to accept the quarry but to put one
  

22        more -- one more thing on that same site, especially an
  

23        asphalt plant that sends pollutants into the air and
  

24        smell and increases the noise and the beep, beep, beep,
  

25        beep, beep, we hear all day long with trucks backing up
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 1        and along the highway, it's just too much to ask, we
  

 2        feel.
  

 3   Q.   And you mentioned smell.  You were here when the
  

 4        Applicant himself testified that some of these property
  

 5        owners may get a whiff of odor.  Do you recall him
  

 6        saying that?
  

 7   A.   Yeah.  And I was thinking in my mind, we're going to
  

 8        get more than a whiff.  Because here in the mountains
  

 9        --
  

10             MR. SNEED:  I object.
  

11             MR. GULDEN:  I think the Applicant said that and I
  

12                  have an absolute right to quote what the
  

13                  Applicant said and ask her about it.
  

14             MR. SNEED:  He said you might get a whiff of odor
  

15                  standing at the edge of the asphalt site.
  

16             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Sustained.
  

17   BY MR. GULDEN:
  

18   Q.   If you're standing at the edge of the asphalt site and
  

19        get a whiff of that odor, do you -- how do you think
  

20        that's going to affect you and your property?
  

21   A.   Well, I've been talking about the health risks of the
  

22        children but my sister and I, she tells me we're
  

23        elderly.  And you know, it's a risk for us too.  So
  

24        we're very concerned about it.
  

25   Q.   Do you have concerns about odor?
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 1   A.   Yes, we do.
  

 2   Q.   And what are those concerns?
  

 3   A.   Well, we just feel like the location of our property
  

 4        and the fact that there's constant wind blowing.  I
  

 5        don't know, I feel like we live in a little ecosystem
  

 6        up there that whatever little smells will become big
  

 7        smells for us and the folks who live on Cabin Hollow
  

 8        Drive.  We are, like I said, we are just above and if
  

 9        it's going up in the air, it's coming up to us.
  

10   Q.   Just a few more questions.  Did you get a notice from
  

11        Madison County informing you of this hearing?
  

12   A.   I did.  My sisters did not but I did.
  

13   Q.   But you did.  What effect or do you have an opinion as
  

14        to whether or not if this plant is approved what effect
  

15        it would have on the value of your property, just
  

16        yours?
  

17             MR. SNEED:  Objection.
  

18             MR. GULDEN:  Two people in a hearing can testify
  

19                  to the value of the property.  A properly
  

20                  qualified appraiser or the owner of the
  

21                  property.  There is case law replete with
  

22                  that, two individuals.
  

23             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Overruled.
  

24             MR. GULDEN:  Thank you.
  

25   Q.   You may answer that.
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 1   A.   We do.  That's basically one of the very first things
  

 2        my sister said to me.  She said, you know, not only was
  

 3        this our retirement plan, but hopefully in 20 to 25
  

 4        years I plan on being healthy that long, when we're not
  

 5        able to walk up hill to tend to our animals, we had
  

 6        planned to sell the property and then live the
  

 7        remaining years on whatever we make and we strongly
  

 8        believe that an asphalt plant outside our windows, that
  

 9        you can clearly see from our house, will negatively
  

10        impact any income we're going to make on our
  

11        properties.
  

12   Q.   And will it negatively impact your value of your
  

13        property moving forward?
  

14   A.   Yes.  Yes.
  

15             MR. GULDEN:  Those would be my questions.
  

16   C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. SNEED:
  

17   Q.   Ms. Evans, my name is Albert Sneed and I represent the
  

18        Reed family and Madison Asphalt.  Lots of talk about
  

19        asphalt and all sorts of things and I know it must
  

20        create fear for you.  And I hear you're talking about
  

21        your fears and I understand that.  Have you ever
  

22        personally visited any operating asphalt plant?
  

23   A.   I have not.
  

24   Q.   So you really are basing your opinions on lots of
  

25        things you've heard from people that are afraid of it.
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 1   A.   I've driven by asphalt plants and I do smell it.  I
  

 2        have been listening to the expert testimony throughout
  

 3        the hearing this week and we've heard conflicting
  

 4        testimony.  It just reminds me, my mother died of lung
  

 5        cancer.  In her early years she was as smoker, and in
  

 6        her early years nobody thought cigarettes caused lung
  

 7        cancer but she quit when she was 40 years old.  When
  

 8        she was 73 she was diagnosed with lung cancer and she
  

 9        was dead by 74.  So expert witnesses, either way, I
  

10        don't want to be the guinea pig to having an asphalt
  

11        plant just outside my property because I don't want to
  

12        die any sooner.  I want to live a long life.
  

13   Q.   We don't want you to either.
  

14   A.   Thank you.
  

15   Q.   What asphalt plant did you visit?
  

16   A.   I said I didn't visit any but I've driven by many in my
  

17        lifetime.
  

18   Q.   Where?
  

19   A.   All over, all through my life, I can't specifically say
  

20        but I do smell them when I drive by them.
  

21   Q.   But you haven't been -- driven by any in Buncombe
  

22        County or Henderson County or --
  

23   A.   No, I've spent most of my time in Wake County in
  

24        Raleigh and in Houston, Texas.
  

25   Q.   Above your land, which you've heard in this courtroom



Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. VI -
May 16, 2019

672

  

 1        from some opponents, do you have any personal evidence
  

 2        other than your fears about whether you can see it or
  

 3        whether you can smell it or whether it will put
  

 4        chemicals on it?
  

 5   A.   I wouldn't characterize how I feel as fears because I
  

 6        believe what is being said about the pollutants from an
  

 7        asphalt plant.  I believe the noise is going to be
  

 8        greater.  I believe the traffic is going to be greater.
  

 9        I believe that this will be detrimental to my farm, to
  

10        my income.  These are all things I strongly believe,
  

11        not fears.
  

12   Q.   And when you bought the quarry was there, you say you
  

13        didn't know it was there, but you soon found out that
  

14        it was there and then you bought some more property for
  

15        your sister?
  

16   A.   I didn't buy any more property for my sister.  My
  

17        sister bought her own property but we've come to terms
  

18        with the quarry but we are not -- we're not in favor of
  

19        another industrial site being on that same property
  

20        just across the river from us.
  

21   Q.   What if you couldn't hear it?
  

22   A.   I'm going to hear it.
  

23   Q.   How do you know that?
  

24   A.   Because I hear the quarry every day, beep, beep, beep,
  

25        the trucks, the crusher machine, all the noise down
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 1        there.  And on a real clear day I can actually hear
  

 2        noises like people talking.  That's how close we are.
  

 3   Q.   Your website said that you bought the property, you
  

 4        love the wooded slope down to the river and the
  

 5        quietness in the air.  Isn't that what it says?
  

 6   A.   Yeah, the quietness except the quarry but you can't do
  

 7        anything about a quarry.
  

 8   Q.   It doesn't say anything about the quarry.
  

 9   A.   Thanks for looking at our website.
  

10   Q.   It's a nice website.
  

11   A.   Thank you.  Did you watch the video of my sister?
  

12        (Laughter)
  

13   Q.   No.  That's all the questions I have.
  

14             MR. GULDEN:  Just a few follow-up, Madam Chair.
  

15   R E D I R E C T  E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

16   Q.   Mr. Sneed asked you can you see the quarry from your
  

17        property and you didn't answer that question so I'm
  

18        going to ask it.  Can you see the quarry from your
  

19        property?
  

20   A.   I can see the quarry from my property.  I walk out my
  

21        front door, I only have one door in my house.  But I
  

22        walk out my door and walk into my front yard and I can
  

23        see the quarry.  I can see the trucks.  I can see the
  

24        explosions that by the way, don't just happen on one
  

25        day of the week, they happen lots of different times.
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 1   Q.   You've got some familiarity with asphalt plants.  You
  

 2        said you'd smelled it before?
  

 3   A.   Yes.
  

 4   Q.   Now this asphalt plant isn't in existence yet, is it?
  

 5   A.   No.
  

 6   Q.   No.  And so some of the pollutants that they say are
  

 7        going to be emitted may or may not -- they may or may
  

 8        not be in the volume that they said; they may exceed
  

 9        those levels.  But we don't know what odor is going to
  

10        be out there, but based on your familiarity with odors
  

11        of asphalt plants that you've driven by over your 42
  

12        years of life --
  

13   A.   Thank you.
  

14   Q.   -- do you believe you'll be able to smell -- Mr. Sneed
  

15        asked, how do you know you're going to be able to smell
  

16        it.  Do you believe you're going to be able to smell it
  

17        from your property?
  

18   A.   Absolutely, absolutely.
  

19   Q.   And you can see when the quarry blasts, do you get some
  

20        of the dust particulates up on your property?
  

21   A.   Yes, yes.  It actually looks like an atom bomb going
  

22        off.  If anybody wants to see it, come on up.  It's
  

23        just incredible.
  

24   Q.   And some of those dust particulates, because of the
  

25        little microclimate you are in and testified to, make
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 1        it to your property?
  

 2   A.   Yes.
  

 3   Q.   Make it to your property that's located across the
  

 4        river and uphill?
  

 5   A.   Yes.
  

 6   Q.   You've heard the testimony that some of the fine
  

 7        particulate matters are going to be able to mix in,
  

 8        because you can't separate out the pollutants and say
  

 9        you go here and you go there, they're going to mix in.
  

10        Do you know if you'll get some of those pollutants on
  

11        your property?
  

12   A.   I believe that we will.
  

13   Q.   Will that have an effect on the -- on your use of your
  

14        property and its value?
  

15   A.   Absolutely.
  

16   Q.   Those would be my questions.
  

17   R E C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. SNEED:
  

18   Q.   So how far -- your house is right up here by this spot
  

19        right here, this -- it's at the top of that hill, that
  

20        field right there.  Is that where it is?
  

21   A.   It's the red roof.  You see the red roof?
  

22             MR. GULDEN:  You can come down, Ms. Evans, if you
  

23                  can point it out to Mr. Sneed.
  

24             MR. SNEED:  I see it.
  

25   Q.   So that's about -- it's little over a half a mile from
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 1        the site that he has marked here for the asphalt plant.
  

 2   A.   I don't know that.  Somebody told me that our property
  

 3        lines touch and I do believe that's true.
  

 4   Q.   With the quarry property?
  

 5   A.   Yes, yes.
  

 6   Q.   But the asphalt site is located about, more than a half
  

 7        a mile from your house.  And my question is this, if
  

 8        you can see the site where the asphalt plant is going,
  

 9        then somebody at the asphalt plant site can see your
  

10        house.  Would you agree with that?
  

11   A.   I've never been there so I can't tell you, given the
  

12        terrain around here.  You can see my house, depending
  

13        on the time of year.  From the Citgo on the bypass, you
  

14        can clearly see my house, just depends on the time of
  

15        year.  So I don't know if they're going to be able to
  

16        see my house.
  

17   Q.   But if they can't see your house, you can't see them,
  

18        can you?
  

19   A.   I can see in the quarry, just like I can see everything
  

20        about her.  I can see everything in the quarry.
  

21   Q.   You can see every piece of ground in the quarry?
  

22   A.   Pretty much, come on up, come on up, yeah.
  

23   Q.   That's all.  Thank you.
  

24   F U R T H E R  E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

25   Q.   Just a few follow-up questions.  The individual who, on
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 1        the site of the asphalt plant is going to be looking at
  

 2        your property, are they 50 feet tall -- or strike that.
  

 3             Are they 49.5 feet tall?
  

 4   A.   I don't think so.
  

 5   Q.   Do you believe you'll be able to see a 49.5-foot silo
  

 6        on the asphalt site?
  

 7   A.   Oh, yes, yes, we see the trucks, yes.
  

 8   Q.   Those would be my questions.  Thank you.  Unless the
  

 9        board has some questions for you.
  

10             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  No.  Thank you.
  

11             MR. GULDEN:  Jeannie Blethen.
  

12                       JEANNIE BLETHEN, being first duly
  

13   identified and sworn was examined and testified as follows:
  

14             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  You may be seated and if you
  

15                  will state your name for the court reporter
  

16                  and spell your name, please.
  

17             THE WITNESS:  My name is Jeannie Blethen.  Blethen
  

18                  is B-l-e-t-h-e-n.
  

19   D I R E C T  E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

20   Q.   Thank you, Ms. Blethen.  Can you tell the board where
  

21        you reside?
  

22   A.   My property adjoins Laura Evans' and Patty Evans'
  

23        property.  It's just behind it.
  

24   Q.   And if you can come down and on the board show the
  

25        board where your property is.
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 1             MR. GULDEN:  Mr. Sneed, if you want to walk up,
  

 2                  I'll walk up before you.
  

 3             THE WITNESS:  I may have to get my glasses.
  

 4   Q.   You're welcome to use mine.  And what I will do is for
  

 5        ease, Ms. Evans said her house was right there.  You
  

 6        can see her roof.
  

 7   A.   Then mine is right here.
  

 8   Q.   Right behind it?
  

 9   A.   And our farm adjoins her farm.  She's got like a hill
  

10        right here and we have a hill right beside her hill.
  

11   Q.   Perfect.  You can go back.  Thank you.
  

12             MR. GULDEN:  Did the board see all that?
  

13   Q.   And Ms. Blethen, how long have you lived -- and you
  

14        called it a farm, so how long have you lived on your
  

15        farm?
  

16   A.   A little over 11 years.
  

17   Q.   And you also, you purchased that farm after the quarry
  

18        was in operation?
  

19   A.   Yes, but like Laura we found it over the Thanksgiving
  

20        holiday and every time we went to look at it it was in
  

21        the evening or on a weekend.  So we knew there was a
  

22        quarry but we were not really prepared for the noise or
  

23        the dust.  But as Laura said, we again, because it was
  

24        there already, we've come to accept it, but I can tell
  

25        you that the explosions are terrible.  I have pictures
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 1        of the dust.  You can't even see the quarry or the
  

 2        adjoining property when the explosions happen for about
  

 3        15 minutes and you can write your name in the dust on
  

 4        my furniture even if I dusted twice a day.  It's just
  

 5        hopeless.
  

 6   Q.   So -- well, I want to talk a little bit about your
  

 7        property.  What use do you make of your property?
  

 8   A.   Well, we have a farm.  We have 25 acres.  An acre of
  

 9        that is a teaching vineyard.  My husband, Chuck, is a
  

10        great expert.  He's actually worked in vineyards and
  

11        wineries all over the world and that's his passion.  So
  

12        we have an acre of native wild muscadine grapes.  We
  

13        chose them because they are local and because we don't
  

14        have to spray them with anything.  There are no
  

15        chemicals on our property anywhere, not on our food,
  

16        our garden, our animals or our house.  We'd like to
  

17        keep that way.  We don't even put treated posts in the
  

18        ground.  We want to grow everything sustainably.
  

19             So we teach classes about growing grapes.
  

20        Everything about growing grapes and using grapes, not
  

21        just for wine but for other products too.  So we built
  

22        a classroom about three years ago.  We took an old
  

23        computer lab from the high school, used sawmill slabs
  

24        and converted it into a really rustic-looking, little
  

25        cabin that has a classroom in it.  And it also has an
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 1        apartment in it that we have planned to use for either
  

 2        an intern or to rent for people who would like to come
  

 3        and enjoy a working farm and vineyard.  We have
  

 4        Scottish Highland cattle that we raise for grass-fed
  

 5        beef.
  

 6   Q.   Now, have you been here and listened to the testimony,
  

 7        you heard the testimony of the Dr. McGhee and Dr.
  

 8        Cloverdale as it relates to the particulates?
  

 9   A.   I did.
  

10   Q.   And you get some of the particulates from the quarry
  

11        traveling up to your house.  Do you have any worries
  

12        about the emissions of benzene and benzo(a)pyrene and
  

13        how it will affect your property?
  

14   A.   Of course.
  

15   Q.   And what worries, what concerns do you have about that?
  

16   A.   We just know that it's not going to be healthy.  It's
  

17        not going to be something that we want on our farm.  We
  

18        are also on the agri-tourism movement.  We have people
  

19        come to our farm to see what it's like to be on a farm.
  

20        We can't imagine anybody wanting to come to see our
  

21        farm if they know they're going to be looking at an
  

22        asphalt plant and yes, you can see the quarry from our
  

23        property, from our classroom on the hill and from our
  

24        backyard.
  

25             And in recent years, the quarry has expanded a lot
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 1        so you can see a lot more of it now.  When we first
  

 2        moved there, you could barely see it.  You could hear
  

 3        it more than you can see it but now it's wide open.  We
  

 4        can see the cement plant too, the tower in the cement
  

 5        plant.
  

 6   Q.   So from your property the cement plant is right here,
  

 7        correct?
  

 8   A.   Uh-huh.
  

 9   Q.   And from your property you can see the cement plant?
  

10   A.   Yes.
  

11   Q.   Is that --
  

12   A.   We can see the tower.  We can't see anything else but
  

13        that big high tower, we can see.
  

14   Q.   Are you going to be able to see the 49.5-foot silo on
  

15        the asphalt plant?
  

16   A.   I'm sure we'll be able to.  And just the thought of
  

17        having something -- because we know what asphalt smells
  

18        like, we've been behind plenty of asphalt trucks and
  

19        plenty of paving.  In fact, I once heard that the three
  

20        R's of North Carolina were roads, roads and roads.  So
  

21        there's always road construction going on here so you
  

22        smell a lot of asphalt.  I can't even imagine what it
  

23        would be like to have that in our backyard.  It would
  

24        be devastating.
  

25             We have spent that 11 years working.  Both of us
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 1        are older people.  We're living on social security and
  

 2        a small income from an internet business and every cent
  

 3        we have made, just about, we have put into this farm.
  

 4        There was nothing there when we bought it, no
  

 5        outbuildings, no landscaping, no fences, nothing.  And
  

 6        we have spent that 11 years putting in flowers, shrubs,
  

 7        trees, a garden, a garage, a chicken house, a garden
  

 8        shed, completely redoing two barns, hauling off years
  

 9        of trash and old equipment and old bottles full of oil
  

10        to try to make this into a beautiful, serene place that
  

11        people want to come and see.  We're proud of it and we
  

12        love it and now it's being threatened, just like we
  

13        feel that's going to be taken away from us and it's
  

14        terrifying.
  

15   Q.   Do you -- is part of your income generated from
  

16        teaching these classes?  Do you charge those
  

17        individuals?
  

18   A.   Yes, we charge people to tour our farm and we charge
  

19        for the classes that we teach and we also sell some of
  

20        our beef.
  

21   Q.   And what effect do you think the, as you indicated, the
  

22        pollutants, what effect do you think the pollutants
  

23        will have on your business or income generated from
  

24        your business?
  

25   A.   I'm just -- if I were a person who were reading about



Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. VI -
May 16, 2019

683

  

 1        my farm and I knew it was overlooking an asphalt plant,
  

 2        I don't think I would want to come and see it.  So from
  

 3        a common sense point of view, I feel like it's going to
  

 4        very adversely affect our agri-tourism business and our
  

 5        food, our grapes.  As I said we don't spray our grapes
  

 6        with anything.  You all may not know this, but ordinary
  

 7        vineyards growing European vinifera are sprayed almost
  

 8        weekly, 14 to 24 times a year, a summer.  We don't
  

 9        spray ours at all.  So what you're looking at,
  

10        basically is somebody else spraying our grapes.
  

11   Q.   Yeah.  And you're aware of Dr. Zhang's study that he
  

12        did indicating that plant -- planting vegetables near
  

13        industrial facilities may pose potential cancer risks
  

14        to those who consume those vegetables?
  

15   A.   I'm sorry, I didn't hear that testimony.  I'm very hard
  

16        of hearing and I'm missing a lot of the testimony.
  

17        I've heard a lot of it but I'm missing a lot of it.
  

18   Q.   Well, maybe you'll get an opportunity to testify to
  

19        that again.  So do you have an opinion on how this
  

20        proposed asphalt plant, if approved, how it will affect
  

21        the value of your property?
  

22   A.   Absolutely.
  

23   Q.   And how will it affect it?
  

24   A.   It will --
  

25             MR. SNEED:  I object again.  I object again.
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 1             MR. GULDEN:  The same argument, two people can
  

 2                  testify, a qualified appraiser, real estate
  

 3                  agent qualified as an expert or someone who
  

 4                  owns the property can give that opinion.
  

 5             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Overruled.
  

 6   Q.   You may answer.
  

 7   A.   Okay.  I was going to say I did hear the testimony of
  

 8        the gentleman who testified about the dropping property
  

 9        values near an asphalt plant.
  

10   Q.   I want you to testify --
  

11   A.   I feel like it will devalue our property because who
  

12        wants to live overlooking an asphalt plant?  This is
  

13        supposed to be a farm with mountain -- we bought the
  

14        place because of the gorgeous mountain views and the
  

15        south facing slopes for the vineyard.  But it's bad
  

16        enough that we'd be overlooking a quarry, but if we
  

17        ever come to the point where we had to sell our
  

18        property, if someone were trying to choose between our
  

19        property and a property somewhere else that was not
  

20        overlooking an asphalt plant, which one would you
  

21        choose?
  

22   Q.   Now, you had said you've got some familiarity with the
  

23        smell of asphalt.
  

24   A.   I think we all do.
  

25   Q.   Because of roads, roads, roads.  Are you going to be
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 1        able to smell the asphalt plant from your property?
  

 2   A.   Where we live the prevailing winds are from the
  

 3        northeast.  Guess where the quarry is from our
  

 4        property?  It's from the northeast.  So it all comes
  

 5        right up -- it comes up to us because we're overlooking
  

 6        it.  It's down from us.  We're only about a quarter of
  

 7        a mile, maybe less, the way the crow flies, from the
  

 8        quarry.  So all of that is going to come up there.
  

 9        Now, if you even read in the articles about the
  

10        temperature inversion or the inversions, air
  

11        inversions, that happen here, it can also cause the
  

12        smell and the dust and the particulates and everything
  

13        else to be worse.  There's no question that we're going
  

14        to smell them.  We can hear it; we can see it; there's
  

15        no question, we'll be able to smell it.
  

16   Q.   And that was going to be my question.  Do you hear the
  

17        quarry from your property?
  

18   A.   Yes.  In fact, I heard there was an expert who had
  

19        testified that you could see an asphalt plant before
  

20        you could hear it.  I invite him to come and spend a
  

21        day at my farm.  When I'm hanging my clothes out, I'm
  

22        hearing the crushers, loud.  If this asphalt plant is
  

23        going to be producing something like 150,000 tons of
  

24        asphalt, they're going to need gravel, right?  So guess
  

25        what, the quarry is going to be upping its production
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 1        of gravel 150,000 times, I don't know.  I am not doing
  

 2        the math but I'm just saying, the noise and the dust
  

 3        from the quarry is going to be multiplied to the point
  

 4        of ridiculous.  I don't know if we'll even be able to
  

 5        stay on our farm.
  

 6   Q.   Well, and let's -- it's 100,000 tons a year that
  

 7        they'll be producing but we're not going to talk about
  

 8        the relationship between the asphalt plant and the
  

 9        quarry.  My question is, you can hear the industrial
  

10        uses of the quarry?
  

11   A.   Yes.  The crushers, the trucks dumping the gravel.  You
  

12        can hear it, like if you have somebody bring gravel to
  

13        your house and they unload it.  Well, they're unloading
  

14        it into a truck with, I guess, with a front-end loader,
  

15        so it's loud going into that truck.  We can hear that
  

16        and we can hear the beeping of the trucks backing up
  

17        and we can hear the jake brakes of the truck on the --
  

18        road 251 when they put on their brakes and then take
  

19        off again.
  

20   Q.   And you heard the testimony that truck traffic on that
  

21        site related to the proposed asphalt plant may increase
  

22        by 15 to 20 trucks a day.  Are you going to be able to
  

23        hear those trucks?
  

24   A.   Of course.
  

25   Q.   And how is all that increased noise going to affect you
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 1        and your property and your use of the property?
  

 2   A.   Well, number one, it's going to affect our peace of
  

 3        mind.  People are supposed to be entitled to the
  

 4        peaceful enjoyment of their property.  And I just can't
  

 5        even imagine what it will be like to have to hear that
  

 6        kind of noise all day.  If a train went by our house
  

 7        every five or ten minutes, we couldn't stand it.  We do
  

 8        hear the trains but the only go by a few times a day.
  

 9        So all I'm saying is the noise and the dust is going to
  

10        be extremely injurious to our peace of mind, to the
  

11        sustainability, the organic quality of our farm because
  

12        of the pollutants that are going to be put onto our
  

13        property from this plant and the fact that we want to
  

14        have people come to our farm to see what it's like to
  

15        be in a small vineyard or on a working farm with cattle
  

16        and chickens and an organic garden.  It's going to
  

17        affect that adversely, there's no question about it.
  

18   Q.   And you had said it and you know the board has to make
  

19        specific findings.  If approved do you have an opinion
  

20        as to whether or not this asphalt plant will be
  

21        detrimental to your welfare?
  

22   A.   Of course.
  

23             MR. SNEED:  I object.
  

24   A.   It has to be.
  

25   Q.   Well, he objected.
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 1   A.   He objected?
  

 2   Q.   Mr. Sneed objected to your testifying about your
  

 3        welfare.
  

 4   A.   Because what?
  

 5   Q.   Mr. Sneed objected to you testifying about your welfare
  

 6        and we're waiting on -- we're going to wait on Madam
  

 7        Chair to make a ruling.
  

 8             MR. GULDEN:  I don't know what his objection is
  

 9                  for.
  

10             MR. SNEED:  Well --
  

11   A.   Okay.  I guess I don't understand what he's objecting
  

12        to, but --
  

13             MR. SNEED:  The objection has no basis in fact.
  

14                  It does have a basis in fear.  It does have a
  

15                  basis in suspicions about things but she
  

16                  actually has not got any facts.  That's my
  

17                  basis.
  

18             MR. GULDEN:  So that -- I was just going to say,
  

19                  she can testify about what she understands
  

20                  the asphalt plant -- it has not been built
  

21                  yet and so she can give an opinion about how
  

22                  it will be -- whether it will be detrimental
  

23                  to her welfare.  She's part of the public.  I
  

24                  didn't ask about the public.  I just asked
  

25                  about her welfare.
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 1             MR. SNEED:  Based on facts.
  

 2             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  I'm overruling.
  

 3             MR. GULDEN:  Thank you.
  

 4   Q.   You may answer.  Do you think -- do you have an opinion
  

 5        as to whether this will be detrimental to your welfare?
  

 6   A.   I don't think there's any question.  It should be
  

 7        common sense that something is loud, noisy, polluting,
  

 8        dangerous as an asphalt plant is going to affect our
  

 9        farm, the quality of life on our farm and what we do
  

10        with our farm.
  

11             THE WITNESS:  Mr. Sneed, I don't have to put my
  

12                  hand in a hornet's nest to know what's going
  

13                  to happen if I do.
  

14   Q.   Thank you, Ms. Blethen.  Those would be my questions.
  

15   A.   Thank you.
  

16   C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. SNEED:
  

17   Q.   Ms. Blethen, I understand your concern.  I understand
  

18        how you are concerned and I understand that you hear a
  

19        lot of people saying frightening things about asphalt
  

20        plants.  So did you go look at an asphalt plant?
  

21   A.   You may have to come up here for me to hear you, sir,
  

22        I'm sorry.  Either that or use your microphone.  I hope
  

23        I'm being loud enough for you all to hear me.  So if
  

24        you'll do that too.
  

25   Q.   I understand your concern.  You're very concerned and
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 1        afraid and you've heard many statements that are
  

 2        inflammatory about an asphalt plant and I understand
  

 3        that.  That would be very scary.  Have you been to an
  

 4        asphalt plant to see one?
  

 5   A.   No, sir.  I've only heard testimony from people who do
  

 6        live by one and I believe them.
  

 7   Q.   People who live by an asphalt plant?
  

 8   A.   Uh-huh.
  

 9   Q.   Where did you hear that?
  

10   A.   The people who live in Burnsville testified that they
  

11        can hear it and smell it all the time.  That they can't
  

12        even sit on their front porch at night.  They can't
  

13        stay out in the yard.  In fact, they say they can't
  

14        even leave their windows open.  Even with the windows
  

15        closed, they can still smell it.  And I don't think
  

16        they would be making that up.
  

17   Q.   Did you go hear them testify?
  

18   A.   I'm sorry?
  

19   Q.   Did you go hear them testify?
  

20   A.   I don't remember where I heard them.  I just heard them
  

21        say it.  I don't remember where.  I guess it was here
  

22        at this hearing but I don't remember.
  

23   Q.   It's something you heard somewhere?
  

24   A.   Yes, sir.  Like I said I believed them.
  

25   Q.   And the only time you've ever smelled the asphalt is
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 1        when they're paving on the road and the smoke is coming
  

 2        off and you drive by the paver, right?
  

 3   A.   When they're paving, yes, or driving behind an asphalt
  

 4        truck.
  

 5   Q.   And sometimes you can smell a little bit behind the
  

 6        asphalt truck?
  

 7   A.   Any time you're behind an asphalt truck you can smell
  

 8        it.  I can smell it.
  

 9   Q.   Right, okay.  But that's -- how high above the river
  

10        are you?
  

11   A.   I'm sorry?
  

12   Q.   How high is your house above the river?
  

13   A.   Five hundred feet, I think.
  

14   Q.   Five hundred, okay.
  

15   A.   I think so.  Because our well is 550 feet.  My husband
  

16        says it's 50 feet below the river, so we're 500 feet
  

17        above the river.
  

18   Q.   And you would agree, wouldn't you, that if you can see
  

19        the asphalt plant site then a person at the asphalt
  

20        plant site can see your house?
  

21   A.   Oh, yes, sir, I've been to the quarry and looked up and
  

22        you can see my house.
  

23   Q.   And where did you go in the quarry?
  

24   A.   I'm sorry?
  

25   Q.   Where did you go in the quarry?
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 1   A.   Where they load the gravel into your truck, where
  

 2        there's a big level spot in the middle and if you look
  

 3        up from there, I took a picture of my house.  You can
  

 4        see my house from there.
  

 5   Q.   And what kind of roof do you have, what color roof?
  

 6   A.   What kind of what?
  

 7   Q.   What color roof?
  

 8   A.   I'm sorry?
  

 9   Q.   On your house, what color is the roof?
  

10   A.   Oh, the roof is green.
  

11   Q.   Green, okay.
  

12   A.   We have a neighbor right next to us who's roof is
  

13        silver and they have a tower, so their house looks like
  

14        a ranger's tower.  You can see their house from the
  

15        quarry and from the bypass.  In front of the quarry
  

16        where you go into the quarry if you're on the bypass if
  

17        you look up you can see their tower and you can see our
  

18        roof.
  

19   Q.   So if I recall your house is right over here next to
  

20        Ms. Evans' house?
  

21   A.   I think that's it because it's right -- our property
  

22        adjoins hers.  She's the next house down the road from
  

23        us.
  

24   Q.   And that's probably about eight-tenths of a mile to the
  

25        quarry, to the asphalt plant site?
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 1   A.   I doubt that seriously.  I'm not good at measuring
  

 2        things but I would guess that it's more like a quarter
  

 3        of a mile from our house to the quarry.  I mean, we're
  

 4        literally looking right at it.  It's not a long way
  

 5        away.  Eight-tenths of a mile, you wouldn't be able to
  

 6        see the detail we can see.
  

 7   Q.   I understand you can see the quarry and the quarry is
  

 8        quite big.
  

 9   A.   Yes.
  

10   Q.   It looks to be like it would be two-tenths of a mile
  

11        long or three-tenths of a mile long from the bottom to
  

12        the top.
  

13   A.   Okay.
  

14   Q.   I'm asking you about the distance to the asphalt plant
  

15        site and I guess your answer is you think it's close
  

16        but you don't know how far?
  

17   A.   I don't know exactly where the asphalt plant is in the
  

18        quarry.
  

19   Q.   Okay.  That's all.  Thank you.
  

20             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Does the board have any
  

21                  questions?
  

22             MR. TUZIW:  I'd like just to try to --
  

23             THE WITNESS:  I won't be able to hear you from
  

24                  there.
  

25             MR. TUZIW:  It's not a question for you.  The --
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 1                  process some of the questioning here, under
  

 2                  UNC School of Government, it states, "In
  

 3                  North Carolina, an owner of real property is
  

 4                  generally competent to testify as to the
  

 5                  value of her own property even though her
  

 6                  knowledge of the subject would not qualify
  

 7                  her as a witness were she not the owner."
  

 8                  Just to speed it up a little bit.
  

 9             MR. SNEED:  Yes, sir, there are exceptions to that
  

10                  and I'm just protecting the record and I'll
  

11                  try to be quick.
  

12             MR. TUZIW:  I'm just trying to speed it up a bit.
  

13             MR. SNEED:  Okay.
  

14             MR. GULDEN:  Those would be all my questions.
  

15                  Thank you, Ms. Blethen.
  

16             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.
  

17             MR. GULDEN:  Thank you.  We call Emily Sontag to
  

18                  the stand.
  

19                       EMILY SONTAG, being first duly
  

20   identified and sworn was examined and testified as follows:
  

21             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  You may sit down if you would
  

22                  please.  State your name and spell your name
  

23                  for the court reporter.
  

24             THE WITNESS:  My name is Emily Sontag.  It's
  

25                  E-m-i-l-y  S-o-n-t-a-g.



Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. VI -
May 16, 2019

695

  

 1   D I R E C T  E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

 2   Q.   Good afternoon, Ms. Sontag.  Can you tell the board
  

 3        where you reside?
  

 4   A.   I live on Tillery Branch Road, 620 Tillery Branch.
  

 5   Q.   I was going to ask on this board that we've been making
  

 6        reference to which I think we've all identified as
  

 7        Opposition Exhibit 2, can you come down and point on
  

 8        the board for the board where your house is?
  

 9   A.   Yes.  It's right here although you can't see it because
  

10        it wasn't built when this GIS was taken.  It's a new
  

11        house.  I'm about .69 miles from the proposed site.
  

12        I'm closer to the quarry --
  

13             MR. GULDEN:  Mr. Sneed, I'm just going to walk up
  

14                  real quick to speed up the testimony, show
  

15                  the board on this board where her house is.
  

16             THE WITNESS:  Here.
  

17             MR. GULDEN:  Thank you.
  

18   Q.   Ms. Sontag, how long have you lived there?
  

19   A.   We've owned the property for about four years and we've
  

20        been building, taking a very long time to build our
  

21        house.  And so we rented in Shelton Laurel for about
  

22        four years on and off for the last two and a half years
  

23        straight.
  

24   Q.   And what use do you make of your property?  What use --
  

25        why did you buy the property?  Why did you buy there?
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 1   A.   Well, we bought because we have amazing views.  I knew
  

 2        the quarry was there but when we bought they hadn't
  

 3        expanded into the lower bowl.  I thought .69 miles
  

 4        would be a non-issue.  I was wrong.  But we have
  

 5        chickens.  We have honeybees.  We had intended to build
  

 6        up a grass-fed Angus herd which we kind of stopped with
  

 7        all this going on because I'm a little fearful of doing
  

 8        that.  We grow a lot of our own food.  We make honey.
  

 9        We do a lot.
  

10   Q.   Do you have any children?
  

11   A.   I have three children.  My oldest daughter has asthma
  

12        and my youngest daughter has reactive airway disease
  

13        which is also one of the reasons we bought our
  

14        property, why we moved here specifically.  We moved
  

15        from Savannah, Georgia.  We lived in Savannah, Georgia
  

16        and my eldest daughter's asthma had us in the hospital
  

17        for breathing treatments every three months.  So I
  

18        heard Ms. -- Dr. Cloverdale's testimony and it really
  

19        hit home because when we lived somewhere with really
  

20        poor air quality it was a constant taking care of her,
  

21        getting breathing treatments, spending money.  And one
  

22        of the reasons we moved here, specifically to Marshall,
  

23        was for the air, clean air.
  

24   Q.   And you're familiar with the location of the proposed
  

25        asphalt plant?
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 1   A.   I am.
  

 2   Q.   And you heard the testimony that there may be increased
  

 3        traffic -- strike that.
  

 4             You heard that there may be an increase of 15 to
  

 5        20 trucks a day?
  

 6   A.   Yes.
  

 7   Q.   Did you understand -- well, you understand that there
  

 8        is a lineup potentially be idling there --
  

 9   A.   Yes.  And I mean, already I hear the trucks too.  You
  

10        wouldn't think, you know, people have given testimony
  

11        that, oh, you can't hear the quarry, you know, or the
  

12        asphalt plant, you won't be able to hear it but I hear
  

13        the trucks in the quarry.  I hear the beeping from
  

14        where I live.  It's something about this mountain
  

15        topography and I can hear the quarry even though I can
  

16        only see when they blast.  I look down over it and when
  

17        they blast it's become a huge problem because the dust
  

18        literally comes up the entire Tillery Branch and
  

19        engulfs my house.  The last time it happened, I was in
  

20        my bee yard which is at the bottom of my hill and I had
  

21        to run up and it -- I was coughing for two days.
  

22        Luckily they don't blast more than once a week,
  

23        sometimes it's once a month.  But again, I agree it's
  

24        going to increase when they have an increased demand.
  

25   Q.   And I'm going to hand to you what I have marked as
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 1        Opposition Exhibit 13.
  

 2             (WHEREUPON, Opposition Exhibit Number 13 was
  

 3                  marked for identification and passed to the
  

 4                  witness for review)
  

 5   Q.   And if you can look at this series of four pictures and
  

 6        identify those for the board.
  

 7   A.   These are pictures I took of a blast not too long ago
  

 8        showing how the particulate matter starts out and
  

 9        plumes into this huge mushroom and just rushes up
  

10        Tillery Branch and even at .69 miles away -- well, I
  

11        guess, you know, it just engulfs my entire house.
  

12   Q.   And do those pictures fairly and accurately represent
  

13        or do they fairly and accurately demonstrate your
  

14        testimony about the dust cloud engulfing your house?
  

15   A.   Yes, they do.
  

16   Q.   And just the dust and breathing, how does it affect you
  

17        and your children with --
  

18   A.   Luckily my kids aren't home when they blast.  It's
  

19        during the middle of -- usually around one o'clock.  My
  

20        kids are in school.  The dust is -- you can wipe my
  

21        deck off and there's dust but it's rock dust so it
  

22        hasn't felt that scary.  But done a lot of research,
  

23        read a lot of stuff about asphalt plants and I know now
  

24        that dust is going to be carrying particulates from the
  

25        asphalt plant.  They're going to mingle and those are
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 1        going to end up on my property.  If I'm down working my
  

 2        bees, down taking care of my animals and that's what
  

 3        I'm breathing, it's going to be a whole lot scarier to
  

 4        me than rock dust.
  

 5   Q.   Do you have any concerns about the idling diesel trucks
  

 6        on that property?
  

 7   A.   Sure.  I mean, for me also just the noise because I can
  

 8        hear the trucks and idling trucks are not going to be
  

 9        quiet, starting and stopping all the beeping.  The
  

10        beeping is really loud.
  

11   Q.   Are you aware of the article Dr. Zhang wrote, I think
  

12        he's sitting right behind you, Dr. Zhang wrote that
  

13        talked about short-term exposure to diesel traffic led
  

14        to significant reduction in lung function?
  

15   A.   Yes.  I read several of Dr. Zhang's studies today.
  

16        They're pretty scary.
  

17   Q.   Does that concern you, that with a child with asthma
  

18        the increase in traffic?
  

19   A.   Yes.
  

20   Q.   What is the concern or how does it concern you?
  

21   A.   Well, I don't think we can continue to live there if
  

22        this is what's going to happen.  My daughter's lungs
  

23        can't handle it.  My youngest daughter, she has
  

24        reactive airway so it's not all the time but I don't
  

25        want to see her get -- it turn into asthma.  So how is
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 1        it going to affect me?  It's literally going to force
  

 2        me to find a new home after I've built my dream house
  

 3        and built a farm because I can't have my children
  

 4        breathing this air.  I can't have -- not just from
  

 5        idling trucks, but I know when the particulate -- when
  

 6        the blasts happen, it's going to carry that.  That's
  

 7        another whole -- my kids play in the dirt, I have
  

 8        chickens, I have cattle.  It's all going to be, you
  

 9        know, when you talk to Dr. -- listen to Dr. Cloverdale
  

10        talking about re-aerosolizing, I watch my kids play in
  

11        that dirt.  We garden, we eat the food we grow and it's
  

12        just not -- it's not something I can do with my kids
  

13        with their health.
  

14   Q.   If approved how will -- will the asphalt plant affect
  

15        the use and thus the value of your property?
  

16   A.   Well, it's already affecting me because we can't -- I'm
  

17        not comfortable doing what we planned with our land
  

18        because of the proposed asphalt plant.  We put
  

19        everything on hold because I don't want to risk it.  I
  

20        don't want to put more money into what is, you know,
  

21        organic farming and grass-fed cattle that I can't
  

22        morally or ethically live with selling or eating
  

23        myself.
  

24   Q.   Are you able to hear some of the industrial activities
  

25        that occur down there on that piece of property?
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 1   A.   Yes.
  

 2   Q.   And you understood -- you heard the testimony that the
  

 3        sound associated with the asphalt plant will increase
  

 4        by 98 or it puts out 98 decibels of noise?
  

 5   A.   Yes.
  

 6   Q.   How will that increase in noise affect you and your use
  

 7        of the property?
  

 8   A.   Well, it's going to change because right now the quarry
  

 9        is just active during the day and I heard Mr. Reed say
  

10        he would like to have the opportunity to work on nights
  

11        and weekends.  That's when we're home, my kids are home
  

12        when we're going to hear it; whereas, now I work from
  

13        home so I hear it but it's a little different than our
  

14        leisure time and our family time hearing it around the
  

15        clock.
  

16   Q.   And do you have an opinion if the proposed asphalt
  

17        site, if the proposed asphalt plant, is approved on how
  

18        it will affect the value of your property?
  

19             MR. SNEED:  I'm going to object for the record.
  

20             MR. GULDEN:  You can --
  

21   A.   I believe it will be --
  

22             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Overruled.
  

23   A.   -- injurious to my property value.  I heard Dr. --
  

24        Donald Read's testimony.  I have also looked at a lot
  

25        of research myself and talked to people who live near
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 1        asphalt plants and I have no doubt that it will affect
  

 2        my property value.
  

 3   Q.   Are you familiar -- you said you've -- have you ever
  

 4        gone to an asphalt plant?
  

 5   A.   Yes.
  

 6   Q.   Have you -- are you familiar with what, if any, odor is
  

 7        emitted from an asphalt plant?
  

 8   A.   When I first learned of this I was encouraged to go
  

 9        look at some asphalt plants by a friend of TJ's and I
  

10        did.  A couple of them were -- one was running when I
  

11        went to look and one was closed.  I wasn't able to go
  

12        on the site but I went as close as I could.  I also
  

13        went and I didn't just want to look at the asphalt
  

14        plant, I wanted to talk to people who lived nearby so I
  

15        did that.  I went and I tried to hit half-mile radius
  

16        knocking on doors because that's about where I live.
  

17        And that is one of the reasons I am here and why I am
  

18        so worried about this.
  

19   Q.   And what did you, in visiting some of these plants,
  

20        what did you observe or smell?
  

21   A.   Well, I mean, they smell like asphalt and oil and
  

22        burning oil.  They're really noisy.
  

23   Q.   And do you -- will you be able to hear and -- well,
  

24        we'll start with that.  Will you be able to hear the
  

25        asphalt plant on your property?
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 1   A.   I believe so.  I can hear the quarry so why wouldn't I
  

 2        hear the asphalt plant?
  

 3   Q.   And will you be able to smell the asphalt plant from
  

 4        your property?
  

 5   A.   The way the wind blows up Tillery Branch I will be able
  

 6        to smell it when they blast.  The way I have to breathe
  

 7        the particulates, I'm going to be breathing that now
  

 8        around the clock when the wind blows.
  

 9   Q.   Do you have an opinion as to whether or not if this
  

10        plant is approved, will it be detrimental to your
  

11        welfare?
  

12   A.   Well, it already is because I don't know what to do
  

13        with my property and my children's health and
  

14        everything else.  I'm -- yes, it will be detrimental.
  

15        My daughter's health can't live -- we can't live this
  

16        close to an asphalt plant.  It's just not -- I did not
  

17        buy my property to live next to an asphalt plant.  I
  

18        was trying to buy property with clean air, somewhere
  

19        where it has clean air.
  

20   Q.   And you live -- elevation-wise, are you above where the
  

21        proposed site is going to be?
  

22   A.   Yes.  So I look down, I'm on a ridge and I look down to
  

23        the quarry.
  

24   Q.   And you were here for Mr. Schewe's testimony about how
  

25        the particulates travel?
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 1   A.   Yes.
  

 2   Q.   And do you believe that the particulates will travel
  

 3        and hit your ridge, your property?
  

 4   A.   For sure.  And I mean, even when they're blasting I
  

 5        have solid proof of what I experience that they're
  

 6        going to be mixing and hitting my house and so I know
  

 7        they're going to reach my house.
  

 8   Q.   And what is your opinion as to the effect it would have
  

 9        on your daughters?
  

10   A.   It would be devastating to their health.
  

11   Q.   Those would be my questions.
  

12   C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. SNEED:
  

13   Q.   Which asphalt plants did you look at?
  

14   A.   The one in Weaverville on Goldview Road and the Black
  

15        Mountain near the KOA.
  

16   Q.   And which one was running?
  

17   A.   The Black Mountain was running when I went.  The
  

18        Weaverville was shut down.   They were shut down for --
  

19        not just the winter, for longer, a little longer.  They
  

20        told me for repairs when I went to try to see if I
  

21        could look at it.
  

22   Q.   How close did you get to the plants?
  

23   A.   The Black Mountain plant, I just went to the outside of
  

24        the quarry and then I went and talked to the people at
  

25        the KOA and talked to -- there's houses in the
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 1        neighborhood about half a mile away.
  

 2   Q.   And are you aware that there's an asphalt, cement
  

 3        manufacturing distributing plant there?
  

 4   A.   Yes, I saw -- there's several around the Black Mountain
  

 5        plant, yeah, I saw the other entry.  I didn't know
  

 6        exactly what it was.
  

 7   Q.   And are you aware that in the Salisbury study the smell
  

 8        was found to have come from the asphalt cement plant,
  

 9        not the asphalt plant?
  

10   A.   I read the Salisbury study and I don't recall reading
  

11        that.  That was one of the first studies I read when I
  

12        was researching all of this.
  

13   Q.   Now, what part of the quarry are they blasting in now?
  

14   A.   They have expanded into the lower part of the quarry.
  

15        It's a new little -- the lower basin.
  

16   Q.   And what leads you to believe that any particulate or
  

17        substance at the asphalt plant would get blown up and
  

18        come to your house if -- unless they blow up the
  

19        asphalt plant?
  

20   A.   Well, already the particulates reach my house so --
  

21        we're talking about three different sources of
  

22        pollution in one spot with the cement plant and the
  

23        quarry and my house and those are all mixing when they
  

24        blast.  That cloud is going to be carrying all of the
  

25        particulates now, not just the rock dust from the
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 1        blasting.
  

 2   Q.   Well, I just don't understand how that could be if the
  

 3        blasting is 700 yards away from the asphalt plant.
  

 4   A.   Have you seen -- have you seen how the blast cloud
  

 5        takes -- it covers -- it doesn't just stay in one part
  

 6        of the quarry.  If you look at these pictures, it
  

 7        surrounds, I would say at least maybe, probably a
  

 8        quarter of a mile from where they blast on either side
  

 9        and then moves up and disperses.
  

10   Q.   It comes from where they blow it up though, doesn't it?
  

11   A.   Right.  But it doesn't just come and move up.
  

12        Literally it's like a huge mushroom cloud.
  

13   Q.   But it doesn't come from -- it doesn't come from every
  

14        inch of the quarry.  It just comes from where they blow
  

15        it up.
  

16   A.   It comes from where they blow it up and spreads and
  

17        mixes with all the air around it and the wind blows it
  

18        straight up Tillery Branch.
  

19   Q.   And are you concerned about the rock dust as it is now?
  

20   A.   Of course, I'm concerned but it's a once a week,
  

21        sometimes once a month, sometimes it goes several
  

22        months without blasting.
  

23   Q.   Okay.  You could live with at the present, just the
  

24        quarry?
  

25   A.   I live with it.  I did not think it would be such a
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 1        problem but I -- it is a problem, not something I'm
  

 2        happy about, but I do live with it.  It was there
  

 3        first.
  

 4   Q.   Did you -- you didn't go to Rogers Plant over in
  

 5        Hendersonville?
  

 6   A.   I did not.
  

 7   Q.   Thank you, ma'am.
  

 8   R E D I R E C T  E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

 9   Q.   Just a quick follow-up question.  Mr. Sneed asked about
  

10        the Salisbury study and I think he might have been
  

11        asking about -- one of the conclusions.  You've read
  

12        this study?
  

13   A.   Yeah.
  

14   Q.   You're aware of one of the conclusions that the
  

15        Salisbury particulate levels could cause asthmatic and
  

16        sensitive individuals to experience respiratory
  

17        irritation.  Do you remember reading that?
  

18   A.   I do.  That's the whole reason that I -- I'm sitting
  

19        here was that study was -- before I went and looked at
  

20        asphalt plants, I spoke to neighbors who told me how
  

21        horrible it was to live half a mile away from an
  

22        asphalt plant, I read that study and it's scared me to
  

23        death.
  

24   Q.   Those would be my questions.
  

25             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Does the board have any



Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. VI -
May 16, 2019

708

  

 1                  questions?
  

 2             MR. BRIGGS:  I have a couple of questions about
  

 3                  your farm.  Why -- you said you were going to
  

 4                  do Angus beef operation?
  

 5             THE WITNESS:  That was the plan.  We aren't
  

 6                  building a herd right now because I just --
  

 7                  I'm not sure if we're going to be able to
  

 8                  keep our property, depending on what happens
  

 9                  here.
  

10             MR. BRIGGS:  Why did you pick Angus?
  

11             THE WITNESS:  Because I have a mentor who --
  

12                  that's what he does and he -- the first two
  

13                  cattle I was going to buy were from -- were
  

14                  his babies and he basically was going to hold
  

15                  my hand through the whole process building a
  

16                  herd up and it's the first time I've ever
  

17                  done it so I need help.
  

18             MR. BRIGGS:  Were you just going to grow beef for
  

19                  personal consumption?
  

20             THE WITNESS:  Personal consumption and selling,
  

21                  you know, sides to people, friends and it
  

22                  just -- we have -- surrounding us is all
  

23                  cattle, it's all Angus and so a lot of my
  

24                  neighbors are able to kind of help with that.
  

25             MR. BRIGGS:  That's all.  Thank you.



Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. VI -
May 16, 2019

709

  

 1             MR. GULDEN:  We call John Davis.
  

 2                       JOHN DAVIS, being first duly identified
  

 3   and sworn was examined and testified as follows:
  

 4             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  If you would sit down.  Please
  

 5                  state your name and spell your name for the
  

 6                  court reporter.
  

 7             THE WITNESS:  It's John Davis.  J-o-h-n
  

 8                  D-a-v-i-s.
  

 9   D I R E C T  E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

10   Q.   Mr. Davis, where do you currently reside?
  

11   A.   100 Hill Street.
  

12   Q.   And is that in close proximity to where we sit today?
  

13   A.   Yes, actually you can see the house right up the --
  

14        through the court windows.
  

15   Q.   So if we're looking at the board and talking about it,
  

16        1.23 miles away downtown Marshall you live in that
  

17        general -- I mean, you live right there but where in
  

18        relation to that proposed asphalt plant, where is it?
  

19   A.   Right.  We live in downtown Marshall so approximately
  

20        it's like 1.3, 1.4 miles from the proposed site.
  

21   Q.   How long have you lived there, Mr. Davis?
  

22   A.   We've been there three years.
  

23   Q.   And what was your intent when you bought that property?
  

24   A.   We bought the house, it's a house on the historic
  

25        property in Marshall, it's on the Historic National
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 1        Register.  And we bought it with the intent of building
  

 2        an inn which it had been for many years.  So my wife
  

 3        and I have invested pretty much most of our savings on
  

 4        restoring the building and starting a business to bring
  

 5        people to Marshall.
  

 6   Q.   And have you utilized the property or are you utilizing
  

 7        the property for that purpose?
  

 8   A.   Yes.  Yes, we do.  We've been welcoming guests for
  

 9        about two and a quarter years so far.
  

10   Q.   Prior to living in that house, where did you reside?
  

11   A.   We actually lived in Yancey County south of Burnsville
  

12        for almost 20 years.
  

13   Q.   Refresh my recollection.  Have we been talking about
  

14        Yancey County or Burnsville as it relates to an asphalt
  

15        plant?
  

16   A.   Yes.  In 2009, 2010 there's an asphalt plant built in
  

17        Yancey County in Burnsville approximately a mile and a
  

18        half from downtown.
  

19   Q.   And how close or I guess, how close were you from that
  

20        asphalt plant?
  

21   A.   Well, we actually lived south of Burnsville.  I had an
  

22        office in downtown Burnsville based on South Main
  

23        Street during that time and it was actually interesting
  

24        to hear about the smell because that was one of the big
  

25        issues we had there, was that we were quite often able
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 1        to smell the asphalt plant from downtown.
  

 2   Q.   And how far away was that?  And you just told me and I
  

 3        forgot, how far away was downtown Burnsville from the
  

 4        asphalt plant?
  

 5   A.   Right.  I just looked on Google Earth yesterday, it's
  

 6        1.3 miles from the site in Burnsville which is a former
  

 7        OMC plant site where the asphalt plant was located to
  

 8        downtown.
  

 9   Q.   And while you were working at your business, you --
  

10             MR. SNEED:  Madam Chairman, I have an objection.
  

11                  Unless they can show that this plant in
  

12                  Burnsville is in some way similar to the
  

13                  plant we propose I object to this testimony
  

14                  and I can put a witness on that knows about
  

15                  the status of that plant and how it got to be
  

16                  what it was.  It was not a new plant.  It was
  

17                  cobbled together from various parts and
  

18                  pieces of plants --
  

19             MR. GULDEN:  Well, he's testifying and --
  

20             MR. SNEED:  -- and that's what I will show.  I'm
  

21                  not trying to testify but I object unless
  

22                  they show the plant is similar to what we're
  

23                  trying to build.
  

24             MR. GULDEN:  And the line of questioning relates
  

25                  to what -- how he's familiar with the asphalt
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 1                  plant, what he could smell and the effect
  

 2                  that it may or may not have on now moving
  

 3                  here.
  

 4             MR. SNEED:  That -- that is subject to being --
  

 5                  no, it's subject to being -- well, if he's
  

 6                  going to talk about that plant, it's subject
  

 7                  to being qualified and having a basis that
  

 8                  establishes that plant is similar to this,
  

 9                  otherwise I object to that evidence.  The
  

10                  plant is not and was not similar to what
  

11                  we're talking about building here.  He can
  

12                  talk about smells but I don't want -- I don't
  

13                  think the evidence of that plant which was
  

14                  leaky as a sieve, is appropriate in this case
  

15                  unless they lay a foundation and that's my
  

16                  assertion.
  

17             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  It is -- previously we have had
  

18                  discussions on the two different types of
  

19                  plants and it's been accepted into testimony.
  

20             MR. SNEED:  Yes, ma'am, what my evidence will show
  

21                  about this plant was it was pieced together
  

22                  from parts from various different brands and
  

23                  sizes of asphalt plants and that's why it
  

24                  leaked and smelled so much.  It was not a
  

25                  brand new plant made by the same
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 1                  manufacturer.
  

 2             MR. GULDEN:  And I'm going to object to his
  

 3                  objection as far as it relates to testimony.
  

 4                  We all have been talking about it based on
  

 5                  his questions, anyone's familiarity with
  

 6                  asphalt plants.  He's asking about them.
  

 7                  That's all I'm asking about, familiarity with
  

 8                  the asphalt plant.
  

 9             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  I'm going to overrule.
  

10   Q.   Were you able to smell the Burnsville plant in downtown
  

11        -- or strike that.
  

12             The Yancey County plant in downtown Burnsville?
  

13   A.   Yes.
  

14   Q.   And how often were you able to smell?
  

15   A.   It wasn't 100 percent of the time.  It would basically
  

16        vary depending on the weather conditions I think and
  

17        which way the wind was blowing and also whether -- and
  

18        Burnsville, again, also has inversions so there were
  

19        some days where it was noticeably worse than others.
  

20   Q.   And you've heard the testimony as it relates to the
  

21        inversions here.  Do you have -- what are your concerns
  

22        if this asphalt plant is approved in that location?
  

23   A.   We have several concerns.  Our biggest is the financial
  

24        one.  We'd be running in -- last year we brought about
  

25        almost 1700 people into Marshall.  A large portion of
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 1        those guests aren't coming directly to Marshall.  They
  

 2        don't Google Marshall directly and say, gosh, I got to
  

 3        go there.  They're looking online.  They find us as an
  

 4        alternative to Asheville.  We do a lot of marketing for
  

 5        that to people who want to come to the Asheville area
  

 6        but maybe they don't want to stay downtown.  They want
  

 7        to be more outdoors.  We have companies we work with
  

 8        that do rafting, horseback riding, things like that.
  

 9             So those guests come here and a large number of
  

10        folks that are looking for accommodations -- lot of
  

11        studies show 60, 70 percent of people researching
  

12        places look at reviews.  So my biggest fear is that
  

13        we'll have reviews that say, gosh, the inn is great but
  

14        we can't sit on the lovely porch because it smells like
  

15        an asphalt plant out front.  And we're about the same
  

16        distance that we were in Burnsville from the plant
  

17        here.
  

18   Q.   And do you experience -- Mr. Basist talked about fog
  

19        that comes down the river.  Do you experience that in
  

20        your place right here?
  

21   A.   Sure, you can see fog over the river many, many
  

22        mornings.
  

23   Q.   Does that concern you about -- he testified about
  

24        electrostatic nuclei.  That's totally the wrong term
  

25        but it was something along those lines.  Does that
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 1        cause you any concern as it's enveloped in the fog?
  

 2   A.   Sure.  I mean, the fact that the inversion is tracking
  

 3        the pollutants and potentially increasing the
  

 4        concentration of the pollutants would be concerning as
  

 5        from a health standpoint and again from the odor
  

 6        standpoint.
  

 7   Q.   Do you have an opinion if this plant is approved as to
  

 8        whether it will be -- will have -- will it have an
  

 9        injurious effect on your use of the property and its
  

10        value?
  

11   A.   Yes.  I would think it's common sense --
  

12             MR. SNEED:  Objection.
  

13             MR. GULDEN:  Just for the record?
  

14             MR. SNEED:  Yes.
  

15             MR. GULDEN:  Okay.
  

16   A.   I would think it's common sense that A, it has a
  

17        potential to impact our revenues, our operational
  

18        revenues which we have to repay our loans for this and
  

19        also impacts the property in terms of resale value.  I
  

20        mean, we ourselves would not move here if this plant
  

21        was in place we would not have bought this property.
  

22        And it just common sense.  If you're looking at this
  

23        property and it smells and you look at another property
  

24        that doesn't smell, that's a big turnoff to a lot of
  

25        people I would think.  I can't imagine too many people
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 1        are going to say, gosh, it smells like asphalt, let me
  

 2        buy that one.
  

 3   Q.   Are you -- other than the familiarity with odor
  

 4        associated with an asphalt plant, are you familiar with
  

 5        anything else, like increased traffic?
  

 6   A.   No.  I mean, where we were downtown we could see the
  

 7        increased traffic, I mean, there were -- you could hear
  

 8        the plant sometimes if you drove by because it was also
  

 9        a diesel-fired plant.  They did eventually switch to
  

10        natural gas apparently because of the issues with
  

11        noise.
  

12   Q.   Were you able to hear the noise, did you say that?
  

13   A.   No.  Only if you were driving by, not from our office.
  

14        We only smelled it there.  The noise you'd hear if you
  

15        drove past the property.
  

16   Q.   Anything else you'd like to add to your testimony?
  

17   A.   No.  I guess we were just really hoping this is not
  

18        approved.
  

19   Q.   Those would be my questions.  Thank you.  Stay up
  

20        there.
  

21   C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. SNEED:
  

22   Q.   Mr. Davis, I understand you've got a lot of concerns
  

23        and there are a lot of people projecting a lot of
  

24        fearful things.  Have you actually gone to look at an
  

25        operating asphalt plant in Buncombe or Henderson
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 1        County?
  

 2   A.   No, sir, I haven't.  We had the experience of living
  

 3        with one a mile and three-quarters from our office or a
  

 4        mile and three-tenths from our office for many years,
  

 5        so I didn't need to go another one to know that it
  

 6        smells.
  

 7   Q.   Perhaps you ought to go look because they don't.
  

 8   A.   Well, I assure you, sir, perhaps you should have gone
  

 9        to Burnsville when that was operating because it did
  

10        smell.  And in fact, they actually had to add deodorant
  

11        to the plant to minimize the smell.
  

12   Q.   I have heard that it smelled.  Have you read the KOA
  

13        reviews over there next to the Black Mountain plant?
  

14   A.   No, sir.  I look at reviews of property similar to
  

15        ours.  We don't look at campground reviews.
  

16   Q.   That's all.  Thank you.
  

17             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Does the board have any
  

18                  questions?  No questions.
  

19             MR. GULDEN:  Thank you, Mr. Davis.  Lisa Feldmann.
  

20                       LISA CAROLE LONG FELDMANN, being first
  

21   duly identified and sworn was examined and testified as
  

22   follows:
  

23             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Would you state your name and
  

24                  spell your name for the court reporter?
  

25             THE WITNESS:  Certainly.  My name is Lisa Carole
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 1                  Long Feldmann.  It's L-i-s-a  C-a-r-o-l-e
  

 2                  L-o-n-g  F-e-l-d-m-a-n-n.  That's two N's on
  

 3                  the end.  I'm not related to the Vivian Long
  

 4                  but we might be cousins from way back.
  

 5   D I R E C T  E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

 6   Q.   Ms. Feldmann --
  

 7   A.   That's Mrs.
  

 8   Q.   Sorry.  Mrs. Feldmann, do you currently own property in
  

 9        and around the proposed asphalt site?
  

10   A.   Yes.  My husband and I have the wonderful distinction
  

11        of being the closest property.  We are 800 feet from
  

12        the proposed asphalt plant.
  

13   Q.   Is that 800 feet, your house is 800 feet or --
  

14   A.   Apparently the measurement was made in earlier
  

15        testimony that property -- property line, I think it
  

16        was actually the plant to the house.  Either way we are
  

17        --
  

18   Q.   Did you get notice from the county?
  

19   A.   I did.  I did get a notice.
  

20   Q.   Does your property adjoin the quarry site?
  

21   A.   Yes.
  

22   Q.   Do you share a property line?
  

23   A.   We do.
  

24   Q.   If you can some down and we're going to walk over here
  

25        --



Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. VI -
May 16, 2019

719

  

 1             MR. GULDEN:  -- Mr. Sneed, to just point out the
  

 2                  property.
  

 3             MR. RAMSEY:  Can you point it out on this one
  

 4                  here, the sheet that you gave us last night?
  

 5                  I know that will show us a little better.
  

 6             MR. GULDEN:  So that's Coates Road.
  

 7             THE WITNESS:  Right, there we go.
  

 8   Q.   Well, testify when you get up there.  So if you go up
  

 9        there, we'll point it out to the -- if you can, again,
  

10        the testimony that you said in front of the board that
  

11        may have not gotten recorded, that may not have been
  

12        recorded by Madam Court Reporter, do you live off --
  

13        you're the last house on Coates Road?
  

14   A.   Yes, the address is actually 796 River Run Road but we
  

15        like to say that we live at the end of two dead-end
  

16        roads, so Coates Road and River Run come together and
  

17        our house is there, so we are essentially the last
  

18        house on Coates Road but the address is River Run Road,
  

19        796 River Run Road.
  

20   Q.   And how long have you owned that house?
  

21   A.   Fourteen and a half years, we've been there.
  

22   Q.   And the quarry was in operation?
  

23   A.   It was.  And we belong to an elite club of people who
  

24        shopped on the weekend and first Monday morning, cup of
  

25        coffee, oh, okay, there's an industrial site right next
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 1        door so we all belong to a very elite club.  And we're
  

 2        at 2,000 feet on our property.
  

 3   Q.   Do you -- is that higher than the quarry site?
  

 4   A.   It is.  We can -- at the point where our properties
  

 5        come together, we can look down into where the proposed
  

 6        asphalt plant is.
  

 7   Q.   And are you going to be able to see from property, a
  

 8        49.5-foot tall silo located on the proposed asphalt
  

 9        site?
  

10   A.   You know that's a really good question.  I've been
  

11        wondering about that because we keep looking at the
  

12        plant from above and we have seen the elevation
  

13        drawings with the stacks.  So I actually have this
  

14        feeling that the 49 and a half feet might actually be
  

15        right at our ground level.  So I'm not sure we can see
  

16        the stack.  I think the stack might actually reach
  

17        2,000 feet.  I'm not sure.  Can someone correct me
  

18        there, but I'm not sure we're going to see the stacks
  

19        because we're at 2,000 feet and maybe the stack
  

20        actually is going to end right at our ground level, is
  

21        what I'm thinking.
  

22   Q.   And your property is wooded?
  

23   A.   We have woods between us and the -- we have our yard
  

24        and then we have woods between us and the property that
  

25        we share with the quarry.
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 1   Q.   You've been here and heard some of the testimony as it
  

 2        relates to the proposed asphalt plant?
  

 3   A.   Yes.
  

 4   Q.   What concerns do you have in relation to the proposed
  

 5        asphalt plant's effect on your property and you,
  

 6        personally?
  

 7   A.   Well, there's a multiple of concerns, multiple
  

 8        concerns.  I think my husband and I are very concerned
  

 9        about the air quality.  My husband has asthma and uses
  

10        an inhaler everyday so we're very concerned about -- I
  

11        understand the Reeds have done a good job to try to
  

12        find the best plant they could possibly build.  I
  

13        understand that.  Listening to his testimony on the
  

14        first day, I was impressed that he was trying very
  

15        hard.  But even with that, one percentage more of
  

16        benzene, one percentage more of arsenic is too much for
  

17        us, right?  So any of that added to the air quality
  

18        means that it is changing the air quality of our
  

19        property and that's too much for us to deal with.  As
  

20        everyone else, we've made our peace with the quarry.
  

21        We are extremely concerned about the expansion of that
  

22        property to include an asphalt plant which will expand
  

23        the level of pollutants that will be in the air for us
  

24        to breathe.
  

25             But I'm most concerned about the accumulative
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 1        effect of all of these industrial activities, right?
  

 2        It's not just the asphalt plant now.  It's the -- going
  

 3        to be the cement plant obviously and the quarry, but
  

 4        the asphalt plant on top of that.  The accumulative
  

 5        effect of that is what concerns me the most I have to
  

 6        say.  And then, of course, we are so close.  I have
  

 7        recordings.  Our neighbor, Tim Ruemler, did some
  

 8        decibel recordings and we, on a regular day, have
  

 9        reached decibel levels from the quarry from our back
  

10        porch drinking a cup of coffee, between 47 and 67
  

11        decibels on just a regular day, not the blasting days.
  

12        So that's all day long, Monday through Friday, so the
  

13        noise level is there and we understand it's going to be
  

14        increased.  And it's going to be seven days a week,
  

15        right, Saturday, Sunday, when we've had some peace.  We
  

16        are not going to have that potentially.
  

17   Q.   And so how is --
  

18             MR. RAMSEY:  Can you tell us what 67 decibels is,
  

19                  right, 67 decibels, what's that equal to --
  

20             THE WITNESS:  Well, I understand that 54 decibels
  

21                  is just an air condition unit running but
  

22                  we're talking 67 decibels of crushing rock,
  

23                  of beeping noises, of the trucks moving.
  

24                  It's not like --
  

25             MR. RAMSEY:  So a beeping of a truck backing up is
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 1                  --
  

 2             THE WITNESS:  67, and the crushing rocks and the
  

 3                  crushing of the rocks, is 67.  And so that's
  

 4                  -- that -- a different kind of sound than
  

 5                  what they call white noise of an air
  

 6                  conditioning unit running beside -- so I
  

 7                  wanted to bring this up too because Carlos
  

 8                  Cardenas told us he sat in a asphalt plant
  

 9                  and didn't hear it and I was like, well, you
  

10                  should come to our property and hear that
  

11                  because it's a very different story which
  

12                  you've already heard from everyone.  So we're
  

13                  concerned about the noise, the accumulative
  

14                  impact of all three of these industrial sites
  

15                  running, the air quality.
  

16                       The smell, of course, and I want to
  

17                  believe that, yes, it's going to be, every
  

18                  once in a while, a whiff, but if you're
  

19                  sitting with your father on the back porch
  

20                  celebrating his birthday and you have no idea
  

21                  if that whiff is going to happen today while
  

22                  you're serving his fried livermush sandwich,
  

23                  and you're wondering, okay, is this the day
  

24                  I'm going to smell the whiff or I'm going to
  

25                  have my nieces and nephews; we invite our
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 1                  families up.  This is our family celebration
  

 2                  house.  We always are there for parties and
  

 3                  4th of July.  Are the kids going to be
  

 4                  hanging out on the back porch and we're going
  

 5                  to have the smell of the asphalt?  Obviously
  

 6                  I'm hoping it's not going to be every day but
  

 7                  do we sit around waiting for when that day
  

 8                  when it's going to happen?  So it's the
  

 9                  smell, the noise, the air, the accumulative
  

10                  effect.
  

11   BY MR. GULDEN:
  

12   Q.   And it was a good question by the board member.  When
  

13        you're talking about, like, bird chirpings and is it
  

14        louder than bird chirping, the 67 or the 70 decibels?
  

15   A.   Right.  It is -- I can hear the birds and I can hear --
  

16        as if the truck is in the driveway beeping so it's that
  

17        loud.  Now, again, we've made our peace with the
  

18        quarry.  What I'm concerned about is the additional
  

19        noise on top of all of that.
  

20   Q.   And how does that noise -- how will that additional
  

21        noise -- and will that affect you and your enjoyment of
  

22        your property?
  

23   A.   Well, I understand that there's the right to run this
  

24        plant seven days a week and sometimes at night.  They
  

25        have the right to do that.  Should I have to listen to
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 1        that at nighttime?  Should I have to listen to that on
  

 2        Saturday, Sunday?  I mean, there's a point where I feel
  

 3        like my rights are being abused.  As a person, as a --
  

 4        it was said in a very lovely way before, how much do we
  

 5        have to take, how many bullets do we take for the plant
  

 6        to run, right?  So yes, that is going to affect us
  

 7        mentally and -- I mean, how do you spend your time
  

 8        outside enjoying your property if you're listening to
  

 9        that?
  

10   Q.   Have you ever been to an asphalt plant?
  

11   A.   I have not.  I have not gone to visit an asphalt plant.
  

12   Q.   You ever smelled asphalt?
  

13   A.   Yes.
  

14   Q.   You know what it smells like?
  

15   A.   Yes, I do.
  

16   Q.   Does the odor -- you're talking about livermush
  

17        sandwich on your porch, what effect would the odor, the
  

18        whiff of odor, have on your enjoyment of that livermush
  

19        sandwich?
  

20   A.   Maybe I should have picked, I don't know, chicken
  

21        salad.  I think it would -- it's like in a restaurant
  

22        and you're sitting too close to the bathroom at a
  

23        restaurant and you're trying to enjoy a meal, it really
  

24        turns your stomach.  I'm sorry.  I'm sorry to bring up
  

25        something that's disgusting but it turns your stomach
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 1        and I think that's what we're looking at.
  

 2   Q.   And do you have an opinion that if the asphalt plant is
  

 3        approved, what effect or would it be injurious to the
  

 4        value of your property?
  

 5             MR. SNEED:  Objection for the record.
  

 6   Q.   And you may answer that.
  

 7             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Yes, please proceed.
  

 8   A.   Because we live so close to the proximity of the
  

 9        potential plant, I can't imagine that a family would
  

10        want to buy our property, period.  There's an asphalt
  

11        plant right next door.  Imagine, right now there's a
  

12        quarry next door.  I think if someone came on a Monday
  

13        or a Tuesday, they would have to very tolerant of that
  

14        kind of urban sound.  You know, imagine that we have --
  

15        we're at 2,000 feet and we can see the Blue Ridge from
  

16        our porch.  We have this beautiful knoll that runs out
  

17        in front.  It's 24 acres.  We're above the river by
  

18        about 1,000 feet.  And you have beautiful views of the
  

19        -- Ms. Evans and her sister across the way now.  So the
  

20        clouds come down the river and then they open up and at
  

21        7:30 a.m., you're listening to an urban sound.  Not the
  

22        sound of the bees, not the sound of birds.  Right now
  

23        it's honeysuckle season, is it not?  And when you walk
  

24        out -- we have paths and we have trails, we walk along
  

25        the trail and you smell the burning -- not burning, the
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 1        heating of the pine mixed with that honeysuckle.
  

 2        Imagine that whiff of the asphalt plant.
  

 3             The plant will transform our lives, my husband's
  

 4        and mine if it were to be built.  This place like
  

 5        everyone else, we've invested emotionally, financially
  

 6        and this place is our future.  Madison County is our
  

 7        future.  We chose this place for many reasons which I
  

 8        think would take too long for me to explain.  And so
  

 9        when we have had to -- this is the fourth time we've
  

10        had to defend our dream against the industrial
  

11        expansion of the quarry.  And we feel so lucky because
  

12        we're part of this community that is out here defending
  

13        the county's nursery school.  They're defending the
  

14        county's ballparks, right?  We feel like we're part of
  

15        a really important thing.  This is something to be
  

16        proud of for this county.  And so we've defended our
  

17        little slice of paradise right here in Madison County
  

18        for the fourth time now against that.  So we're not
  

19        sure how much we can touch the burning stove.  How many
  

20        times can we do that before we're like, okay, but we
  

21        don't have any option.  Nobody's going to buy our
  

22        house.  We don't have any options.
  

23   Q.   Ms. Feldmann -- Mrs. Feldmann, do you think that the
  

24        proposed asphalt plant, do you have an opinion if the
  

25        proposed asphalt plant is approved will that injure the
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 1        value of your property?
  

 2   A.   It will injure the value of our property.  I'm sorry. I
  

 3        could have just made it short, yes, it will injure the
  

 4        value of the property.
  

 5             MR. SNEED:  I object for the record.
  

 6   A.   I think it will be detrimental to our welfare as well.
  

 7             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Overruled.
  

 8             MR. GULDEN:  Thank you, Madam Chair, and I
  

 9                  apologize.
  

10   Q.   And that was going to be my next question.  Do you have
  

11        an opinion as to whether or not if the proposed asphalt
  

12        plant is approved will it be detrimental to your
  

13        health, safety and your welfare?
  

14   A.   Yes, absolutely.  One percentage more of benzene, one
  

15        percentage more of any of these other chemicals begins
  

16        to change the air quality and that to me is injurious
  

17        to our health.
  

18   Q.   Those would be my questions.
  

19   C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. SNEED:
  

20   Q.   Ms. Reda, when they --
  

21             MR. GULDEN:  Feldmann.
  

22   Q.   Feldmann.
  

23   A.   That's okay.
  

24   Q.   When they blast in the quarry do you get any dust on
  

25        your property?
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 1   A.   Yes, of course, because we are literally right next
  

 2        door.  We don't see -- we don't see the quarry like all
  

 3        the other folks on the other side.  We hear it.  And we
  

 4        can hear -- we can smell the trucks as well, especially
  

 5        in the wintertime when the leaves are off the trees.
  

 6   Q.   You can smell the diesel --
  

 7   A.   The trucks, yeah.
  

 8   Q.   And would it belay your concerns if we're not asking to
  

 9        operate seven days a week?
  

10   A.   It would make me feel so much better, it would, uh-huh.
  

11        I mean, I still have concerns about what's happening
  

12        and the accumulative effect Monday through Friday.  You
  

13        know, that as I understand from all the witnesses are
  

14        -- the chemicals have an accumulative effect plus
  

15        you've got the three plants running at the same --
  

16        three industrial activities running at the same time.
  

17   Q.   You're talking about concrete plant, that's up above on
  

18        the hill?
  

19   A.   Yes.
  

20   Q.   Does that affect your property at all?
  

21   A.   Well, I don't see it, I don't hear it.  But I don't
  

22        know what the chemical concerns would be, I mean, I
  

23        don't have any way to measure that.
  

24   Q.   And you're actually closer -- well, no, you're not.
  

25        That's about 1100 feet away.  Let me ask you --
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 1   A.   I've heard it was 800 feet, but --
  

 2   Q.   To your house from the asphalt plant --
  

 3   A.   Cement plant.  I'm sorry, yes.
  

 4   Q.   Cement plant is about --
  

 5   A.   A little further, yes.
  

 6   Q.   When you look down there are trees between you and the
  

 7        quarry, right?
  

 8   A.   Yes.
  

 9   Q.   And there's some ridges?
  

10   A.   There are.
  

11   Q.   Would it make you feel better if the -- you knew that
  

12        from the floor of the asphalt plant site to the top of
  

13        the first ridge is 50 feet and the trees are on top of
  

14        that ridge?
  

15   A.   Not really, uh-uh.
  

16   Q.   Would --
  

17   A.   No.  I'm still living next door to an asphalt plant.
  

18   Q.   So you're still next door but you can't see it.
  

19   A.   Can't see it but I'll hear it and I'm assuming a whiff
  

20        will be smelled every once in a while.  Do you know
  

21        when we bought our place in the paperwork it said a
  

22        quarry can occasionally be heard.  A whiff will
  

23        occasionally be smelled.  So I equate that.  I don't
  

24        know what to trust there.  I am assuming a whiff will
  

25        be smelled occasionally.
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 1   Q.   Where did you get the evidence that whiff will be
  

 2        smelled --
  

 3   A.   Your client said that in his testimony.
  

 4   Q.   When you're standing in the site.
  

 5   A.   I am literally -- my husband and I are literally beside
  

 6        the site.  We are beside the site.
  

 7   Q.   Thank you, ma'am.
  

 8   A.   Thank you.
  

 9   R E D I R E C T  E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

10   Q.   Just one quick follow-up before the board asks you
  

11        questions.  You did mention something about the smell
  

12        of diesel and diesel --
  

13   A.   Oh, yeah, uh-huh.
  

14   Q.   Did you read the article that Dr. Zhang wrote where he
  

15        concluded that after exposure to diesel exhaust
  

16        subjects with asthma demonstrated increased airway
  

17        hyperactivity and obstruction?
  

18   A.   I believe I read the abstract on that because I didn't
  

19        have access to JSTOR so I couldn't download the article
  

20        but I read that abstract on that, uh-huh.
  

21   Q.   Does that cause you concern for your husband?
  

22   A.   Of course it does, yes.
  

23   Q.   Those would be my questions.
  

24             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Does the board have any
  

25                  questions?  No questions, thank you.
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 1             THE WITNESS:  Thank you so much.
  

 2             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  We're going to take a break and
  

 3                  return at five minutes after 8:00.
  

 4             (WHEREUPON, the hearing was recessed at 7:48 p.m.
  

 5                  and reconvened at 8:10 p.m.)
  

 6             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Mr. Gulden, are you ready to
  

 7                  proceed?
  

 8             MR. GULDEN:  We are Madam Chair, thank you.  We
  

 9                  would call Tim Ruemler to the stand.
  

10                       TIM RUEMLER, being first duly identified
  

11   and sworn was examined and testified as follows:
  

12             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Will you state your name and
  

13                  spell your name for the court reporter?
  

14             THE WITNESS:  Sure.  My name is Tim Ruemler.  It's
  

15                  R-u-e-m-l-e-r.
  

16   D I R E C T  E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

17   Q.   Mr. Ruemler, where do you currently reside?
  

18   A.   At 476 River Run Road.
  

19   Q.   And we've been talking about River Run Road previously.
  

20        If I can have you come down and point out to the board.
  

21             MR. GULDEN:  And maybe we'll walk up there, Mr.
  

22                  Sneed.  Mr. Board member, you have one of
  

23                  these.  There was another one too.
  

24   Q.   Using one of these maps, can you show the board where
  

25        you reside?
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 1   A.   So this is my house here.
  

 2   Q.   And do you know the approximate distance your house is
  

 3        located from the proposed asphalt plant?
  

 4   A.   As best I can determine, it's roughly 16 to 1800 feet
  

 5        from the proposed asphalt plant site.
  

 6   Q.   And how long have you resided at that location?
  

 7   A.   We closed in 2008, almost 11 years ago.
  

 8   Q.   And in 2008 the quarry was already in existence and
  

 9        operational?
  

10   A.   Yes.  I also belong to the elite club where the seller
  

11        lied to us in the contract and said that, yes, there is
  

12        a quarry but you hardly ever hear it.  That was a
  

13        quote.
  

14   Q.   So just to clarify some things, are you -- from your
  

15        house, are you able to hear the industrial sounds
  

16        generated by the quarry?
  

17   A.   Almost every day.  I can hear the rock crushers, I can
  

18        hear trucks virtually every day from my property.  Not
  

19        always when I'm inside the house with the doors and
  

20        windows closed but some days with the doors and windows
  

21        closed I can hear the rock crusher so loud that I want
  

22        to leave the property.  I leave my house because I
  

23        cannot tolerate the noise.
  

24   Q.   Now, did you take any decibel readings of the sounds of
  

25        those industrial noises from the facility?
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 1   A.   I have taken several decibel readings over the last, I
  

 2        don't know, two and a half weeks, two weeks, something
  

 3        like that.
  

 4   Q.   And where have you taken those from?
  

 5   A.   From my property, from the intersection of Coates Road,
  

 6        the dead-end of Coates Road and River Run Road at the
  

 7        Feldmann's property from their back porch, from their
  

 8        Coates Road access, walking along Coates Road up
  

 9        towards or yeah, north towards Bruggeman's house.
  

10   Q.   And from your house do you recall what your reading
  

11        was?
  

12   A.   Yes.  Because I wanted to compare what a quiet day, our
  

13        atmosphere, noise levels were compared to when the rock
  

14        crusher was running and when the wind was blowing at me
  

15        and when the wind was blowing away.  So that's why I
  

16        started taking readings.  And I too was quite perplexed
  

17        that somebody had testified they couldn't hear the rock
  

18        crusher until they got out of their pickup truck beside
  

19        it because you don't have to be right beside the rock
  

20        crusher to hear it when it's running.  If it's not
  

21        running, sure, you're not going to hear it if it's not
  

22        running, but if it's running, you're going to hear it.
  

23   Q.   So I just want you to describe for the board the volume
  

24        that you measured at your house and what that
  

25        practically is.  I mean, is it like birds chirping or
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 1        crickets chirping or is it louder than that?  Just give
  

 2        them a sense of what it's like from your house.
  

 3   A.   From my house.  So without any outside interference, no
  

 4        wind interference, no strong wind at all that's blowing
  

 5        the trees or leaves, just a quiet, calm day with no
  

 6        outside noises other than nature, the typical readings
  

 7        that I was getting was in the mid to upper 30s on my
  

 8        decibel meter.  I actually was using a separate decibel
  

 9        meter and an app on my iPhone to compare the two to see
  

10        if they were consistent with one another and they were
  

11        very consistent.  They were within one or two decibels
  

12        of each other at all times.  So I'm pretty confident
  

13        that they were giving me an accurate reading.
  

14             And so what I wanted to do is see, okay, when it's
  

15        quiet, what is my situation and then when I can hear
  

16        the rock crusher, on a typical day, which from my
  

17        property it's not that loud all the time, but from a
  

18        quiet, no outside noises in the mid to upper 30s, let's
  

19        say, let's pick a number, 38 decibels on a quiet nature
  

20        --
  

21   Q.   Right.  What was it when you recorded --
  

22   A.   So when I recorded the rock crusher running at my front
  

23        door it was in the mid 40s.  And I'm not an expert in
  

24        sound by any means.
  

25   Q.   No, but how did that just in layman's terms, how does
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 1        that amount -- what's that increase in volume?  What
  

 2        effect does it have?
  

 3   A.   It's not linear.  I know that.  If you go up ten
  

 4        decibels then it's twice the intensity in terms of
  

 5        sound.  You only have to go ten decibels and it's twice
  

 6        the intensity level.  So from a layman's standpoint
  

 7        such as me, all I can tell you is it is very disturbing
  

 8        noise and it grates on your nerves over a long period
  

 9        of time.  It's a noise that you do not find pleasant in
  

10        any way listening to and when it's so loud when the
  

11        wind is blowing, I had readings in the mid 50s at my
  

12        front porch.  Okay?
  

13   Q.   From the --
  

14   A.   From the rock crusher.
  

15   Q.   Now, you understood, you heard the testimony that the
  

16        asphalt plant will increase the sound decibels by 98
  

17        decibels?
  

18   A.   Yes, I heard that testimony.
  

19   Q.   Do you believe you'll be able to hear that increased
  

20        sound on your property?
  

21   A.   Absolutely, I'll hear increased noise on my property if
  

22        the proposed asphalt plant is in operation.
  

23   Q.   Do you -- have you gone out and visited any asphalt
  

24        plants, have you been around any of them?
  

25   A.   My summer jobs between semesters in high school and
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 1        college, I worked at an asphalt plant.  I drove the
  

 2        front-end loader to keep the bins full of sand and
  

 3        aggregates.  That was my primary job for two and a half
  

 4        summers.
  

 5   Q.   Did the asphalt plant that you worked on, did it have
  

 6        an odor?
  

 7   A.   It has -- it had a terrible odor.  All I can tell you
  

 8        is from my experience working in an asphalt plant I
  

 9        never wanted to live 1600 feet away from another
  

10        asphalt plant no matter how many trees, no matter how
  

11        many ridges, no matter how many walls you can build, I
  

12        do not want to live that close to an asphalt plant and
  

13        I will not live that close to an asphalt plant.  If the
  

14        board in their wisdom decides this is okay, I will sell
  

15        my property if anybody will buy it at whatever price
  

16        and I will move.
  

17   Q.   And we're going to get there.  I want to focus you back
  

18        on the noise based upon your experience and how you
  

19        think you will be able to hear.  What effect do you
  

20        think an increase in noise will have on you and your
  

21        use of your property?
  

22   A.   An increase in noise will increase my stress level.
  

23        Okay?  That's something that we haven't even talked
  

24        about here until last night was the stress associated
  

25        to this.  Just the proposed plant, the stress that it
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 1        creates in me is sometimes ridiculous.  Increased heart
  

 2        rate, blood pressure will skyrocket sometimes thinking
  

 3        of the impacts that I'm faced with.  And just so you
  

 4        understand, if you can relate to this, my wife died as
  

 5        a result of stress-causing cancer.  Okay?  She died as
  

 6        a result of stress causing her cancer.  I took care of
  

 7        her for a year and a half in this home.  And the
  

 8        thought of me having to move now because of this
  

 9        asphalt plant is a tremendous stress on me and I can
  

10        tell you already I've been impacted poorly, adversely
  

11        as a result of this proposed asphalt plant.
  

12   Q.   Do you have an opinion as to whether or not if approved
  

13        this asphalt plant will adversely affect your health?
  

14   A.   No doubt in my mind, it's already adversely affected my
  

15        health.  It will adversely affect my health.
  

16   Q.   You live on, well, you pointed out where you lived.
  

17        Are you familiar with the inversions that occur in that
  

18        area?
  

19   A.   I am very familiar with the inversions, I refer to it
  

20        as fog because I've lived here long enough and
  

21        witnessed it long enough and unless you see it
  

22        firsthand every day, you don't realize there can be
  

23        weeks on end during the summertime where the fog
  

24        doesn't lift until 10:30 or later.  I witnessed that
  

25        weeks in a row many times where the fog is so thick it
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 1        stays until 10:30 and I am amazed that I can drive to
  

 2        the bypass and it's completely clear blue skies less
  

 3        than a mile away from my house.
  

 4             So the concern is, which I wasn't even aware of
  

 5        until the meteorologist talked about it and the impacts
  

 6        of holding all of that air and particulates that
  

 7        accumulated in that, they're going to fall out and the
  

 8        most susceptible people are the people in Rollins that
  

 9        are right down below from the quarry on the river.
  

10        They're at the lowest point.  They're going to suffer
  

11        some of the worst from these additional toxic particles
  

12        that we've talked about.  And it's going to run right
  

13        down to Marshall.  You can -- on a foggy day --
  

14        morning, you can watch the fog move at whatever pace
  

15        the river is flowing and it's visual.  It's so easy to
  

16        see it.
  

17   Q.   And do you think that -- what you're just talking about
  

18        here, will have -- what effect do you think it will
  

19        have on your health and your welfare?
  

20   A.   Well, we've heard testimony that they're only going to
  

21        emit acceptable limits that are approved by the state
  

22        or they're going to be under acceptable emissions from
  

23        the state perspective for the permitting.  Well, from
  

24        my perspective, any additional pollutants are going to
  

25        be injurious to me, any additional pollutants will
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 1        injure my health and well-being.  And given what the
  

 2        meteorologist talked about, which I wasn't even that
  

 3        familiar with until they made it very clear that
  

 4        because of the way this river gorge creates its own
  

 5        climate, which I knew it created some climate, but I
  

 6        didn't realize that the actual ridgetops, the
  

 7        ridgelines, are going to be the most susceptible to the
  

 8        accumulation of the dust particles that are really fine
  

 9        and that's where my house is, right there at the
  

10        ridgeline.  So yes, I believe wholeheartedly I'm going
  

11        to be impacted negatively as a result of the additional
  

12        pollutants that are going to be emitted.
  

13   Q.   And earlier you said if the plant is approved you're
  

14        going to move.  You're saying that for certain?
  

15   A.   As I told you before I worked at an asphalt plant for
  

16        two and a half years.  I do not want to live within
  

17        1600 feet of an asphalt plant based upon that
  

18        experience.  So yes, I will be forced to make a move;
  

19        otherwise, I won't -- I won't stay, I won't -- I would
  

20        not want to spend any time at my property because I
  

21        don't want any exposure to benzene.  Benzene, there is
  

22        no safe level and we heard that from all the medical
  

23        professionals.  There is no safe limit of benzene.  My
  

24        grandfather died from leukemia as a result of benzene.
  

25        Do I want to breathe any additional benzene that I
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 1        currently don't have in my life, absolutely not.  I
  

 2        want no benzene added to my load that I currently am
  

 3        exposed to.  I don't want any more.
  

 4   Q.   And do you have an opinion that, or do you have an
  

 5        opinion that if the asphalt plant is approved whether
  

 6        it will have a detrimental, be injurious to the value
  

 7        and the use of your property by you?
  

 8             MR. SNEED:  Object.
  

 9             MR. GULDEN:  For the record?
  

10             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Overruled.
  

11   Q.   You can answer that question.  Will it have a
  

12        detrimental or injurious effect on the value and the
  

13        use of your property?
  

14   A.   I absolutely believe it will decrease my property value
  

15        and be injurious to my health not only physically but
  

16        mentally.  The stress that I will experience as a
  

17        result of having to let go of my property that I took
  

18        care of my wife in when she was sick is a stress that
  

19        very few people can relate to.  You can only relate to
  

20        it if you took care of your dying spouse in that house
  

21        by yourself for a year and a half and that is the only
  

22        way you can relate to it.
  

23   Q.   Those would be my questions, Mr. Ruemler.
  

24   C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. SNEED:
  

25   Q.   Mr. Ruemler, where did you work at a asphalt plant?
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 1   A.   Monon, Indiana.
  

 2   Q.   How long ago?
  

 3   A.   I told you it was in my high school and college
  

 4        semesters, summertime.  So that would have been 1977,
  

 5        '78, '79.
  

 6   Q.   How many silos did it have?
  

 7   A.   It only had one silo.  It had a horizontal fuel tank.
  

 8   Q.   And when you were driving up to it how close did you
  

 9        get before you could smell it?  When you were driving
  

10        up to it how close did you get before you could smell
  

11        it?
  

12   A.   I was working in the plant so I smelled it constantly.
  

13   Q.   Well, I'm talking about when you approached it.
  

14   A.   It wasn't running when we approached it.  We started it
  

15        up, we ran it so it wasn't running until we got there.
  

16   Q.   So you don't know how far away from it you got before
  

17        you stopped smelling it?
  

18   A.   No, I don't know that answer.
  

19   Q.   Have you checked any of the asphalt plants in Western
  

20        North Carolina?
  

21   A.   I have.
  

22   Q.   Which one?
  

23   A.   I've drove by the Weaverville plant I drove by the
  

24        Black Mountain plant.
  

25   Q.   And how close did you get to the Weaverville plant
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 1        before you could smell it?
  

 2   A.   Well, it's right beside the road.  I smelled it when I
  

 3        drove by it.
  

 4   Q.   Right as you got to it?
  

 5   A.   Before I got to it and there's a road just past it to
  

 6        the right that I pulled into and got out of my car and
  

 7        I could smell it from there.  I don't know what the
  

 8        distance was.  It's closer than what my house would be
  

 9        from this one --
  

10   Q.   It's 60 yards to the silo from that little road.
  

11   A.   Sixty yards?
  

12   Q.   Yes.
  

13   A.   It was further away than that from where I was parked.
  

14   Q.   And did you smell it when the trucks were loading?
  

15   A.   I could not see if and when the trucks were loading, so
  

16        I don't know if any trucks were loading when I was
  

17        there.
  

18   Q.   So the road you turned in, was it right there next to
  

19        the plant?
  

20   A.   No.  I drove up Gold -- whatever --
  

21   Q.   View Road.
  

22   A.   Goldview Road and drove into the neighborhood that's
  

23        past it on the left as you're coming up from River Road
  

24        and then I pulled into a road to the right.
  

25   Q.   And you couldn't see into the plant at that point?
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 1   A.   I could see the silos but I couldn't see down into the
  

 2        plant.
  

 3   Q.   And this is really created a lot of stress for you?
  

 4   A.   Yes, it has.
  

 5   Q.   Because of the uncertainty of the future?
  

 6   A.   Not from the uncertainty, just the proposed potential
  

 7        of the asphalt plant.
  

 8   Q.   And when the fog comes on the river, does it come over
  

 9        your house?
  

10   A.   Yes, it does.
  

11   Q.   Sometimes you can see over it and sometimes you can't?
  

12   A.   Usually cannot see over it.  I'm usually always
  

13        underneath it.
  

14   Q.   And do you know the elevation of your house?
  

15   A.   Yes, it's roughly 2050.
  

16   Q.   2050.  I'm sorry about your wife.  That's all I have.
  

17             MR. GULDEN:  Thank you, Mr. Sneed.  Just one quick
  

18                  question.
  

19   R E D I R E C T  E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

20   Q.   When you went out to the Weaverville plant did you also
  

21        hear its operations?
  

22   A.   Absolutely, the noise, it was loud.  It was a loud
  

23        noise.
  

24   Q.   Nothing further.
  

25             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Does the board have any
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 1                  questions?  No questions.  Thank you.
  

 2             MR. GULDEN:  Mr. Reda.
  

 3                       ADAM REDA, being first duly identified
  

 4   and sworn was examined and testified as follows:
  

 5             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Will you state your name and
  

 6                  spell your name for the court reporter?
  

 7             THE WITNESS:  Adam Reda, it's A-d-a-m  R-e-d-a.
  

 8   D I R E C T  E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

 9   Q.   Mr. Reda, if you can -- where do you currently live?
  

10   A.   Coates Road.
  

11   Q.   And if you can come on down here and just show the
  

12        board, we've got another map over here I think that's
  

13        going to be better.
  

14             MR. GULDEN:  Mr. Sneed, if you want to come here
  

15                  real quick with us.
  

16   Q.   If you can point out your house where you live?
  

17             MR. GULDEN:  Mr. Sneed, it's right here.
  

18   Q.   How long have you lived there, Mr. Reda?
  

19   A.   About four years.
  

20   Q.   You bought that property the quarry was already in
  

21        existence?
  

22   A.   That's correct.
  

23   Q.   Can you hear the quarry?  Can you see the plumes from
  

24        your house?
  

25   A.   I hear noise from the quarry.
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 1   Q.   Can you see the plumes from your house?
  

 2   A.   Not necessarily.
  

 3   Q.   When -- well, do you know how far away you are from the
  

 4        quarry?  Strike that.
  

 5             Do you know how far you are away from the proposed
  

 6        asphalt plant site?
  

 7   A.   My property line or my house?
  

 8   Q.   Your property line.
  

 9   A.   Probably 900 feet.
  

10   Q.   Do you adjoin the quarry's property line?
  

11   A.   I do.
  

12   Q.   Who do you live there with at your house?
  

13   A.   My wife and my son, couple dogs and chickens and ducks,
  

14        couple geese.
  

15   Q.   You've been here and heard the testimony of some of the
  

16        individuals both for and against this asphalt plant?
  

17   A.   I've been here every night.
  

18   Q.   What concerns do you have about this proposed asphalt
  

19        plant if approved and the effect it will have on your
  

20        use and enjoyment of your property?
  

21   A.   I have the same concerns that have been reiterated for
  

22        five or six hearings, the noise, increased noise, the
  

23        pollutants, the whiff, my health.  I mean, my heart and
  

24        stress right now feels like it's coming out of the
  

25        chair.
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 1   Q.   Yeah.  Do your kids play outside?
  

 2   A.   Yeah, I have one child.
  

 3   Q.   And your kid, your son, daughter?
  

 4   A.   Son.
  

 5   Q.   Son, he plays outside?
  

 6   A.   Yeah.
  

 7   Q.   You understand that there -- that the pollutants have
  

 8        the potential to travel over your property?
  

 9   A.   I do.
  

10   Q.   Does that cause you concern for the health and safety
  

11        of your child?
  

12   A.   Absolutely.
  

13   Q.   Do you have an opinion as to whether if approved, this
  

14        plant would have an adverse or injurious effect on the
  

15        health and safety of you and your child?
  

16             MR. SNEED:  Objection.
  

17   A.   I do.
  

18             MR. SNEED:  For the record.
  

19             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Right.  Overruled.
  

20   A.   I do.
  

21   Q.   And what is that opinion?
  

22   A.   Exactly -- it's that it's going to affect the property,
  

23        the value of my property.  It's going to affect my
  

24        health.  My wife currently has a respiratory --
  

25        reactive respiratory disease, so I feel like she's
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 1        sensitive and at risk.  My son not only plays outside,
  

 2        but also plays at the ballfield so he's getting a
  

 3        double whammy.  I mean, I eat the eggs that my chickens
  

 4        are, you know, foraging through the woods, so yeah, I
  

 5        have -- yeah.
  

 6   Q.   Is there anything else you'd like to add for the board?
  

 7        And I think I already asked --
  

 8   A.   I think there's been enough said.
  

 9   Q.   Those would be my questions.  Thank you, Mr. Reda.
  

10   C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. SNEED:
  

11   Q.   Mr. Reda, would you dispute the fact that your house is
  

12        1389 feet from the quarry, the asphalt site?  That's to
  

13        your house, not your property line.
  

14   A.   Okay.
  

15   Q.   Does that sound about right?  Does the quarry dust
  

16        bother you at your house at this point?
  

17   A.   Well, my wife was diagnosed with this reactive airway
  

18        disease since we've lived at the site, so yes.
  

19   Q.   That's all I have.
  

20             MR. GULDEN:  Those would be my questions.
  

21             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Does the board have any
  

22                  questions.  No more questions.  Thank you.
  

23             MR. GULDEN:  Those would be my witnesses, Madam
  

24                  Chair.
  

25             MR. SNEED:  I call Dr. Zhang.  Z-h-a-n-g.
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 1             (WHEREUPON, due to the accent of the following
  

 2                  witness, there were words and/or phrases that
  

 3                  were unintelligible)
  

 4                       DR. JUNFENG ZHANG, being first duly
  

 5   identified and sworn was examined and testified as follows:
  

 6   D I R E C T  E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

 7   Q.   Dr. Zhang, if you would please tell the court your
  

 8        name, address and occupation.
  

 9   A.   My name is Junfeng Zhang, spelled as J-u-n-f-e-n-g
  

10        Z-h-a-n-g but everybody calls me Jim so Jim Zhang.  I'm
  

11        a professor of environmental and global health at Duke
  

12        University School of the Environment and also Global
  

13        Health Institute.
  

14   Q.   And would you tell the board what your education is?
  

15   A.   So I got applied chemistry bachelor degree and I got my
  

16        first master of science degree in atmospheric chemistry
  

17        and I got my second master degree in environmental
  

18        sciences.  I got my PhD in public health and
  

19        environmental sciences, specialized in environmental
  

20        health.
  

21   Q.   And where did you that degree?
  

22   A.   My bachelor degree was from Peking University in China,
  

23        first master degree Peking University in China, second
  

24        master degree Rutgers University and PhD in Rutgers
  

25        University.
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 1   Q.   And do you have any experience -- well, let me ask you
  

 2        this, have you ever published any peer-reviewed
  

 3        articles?
  

 4   A.   I have published about 210 peer-reviewed oriental
  

 5        research papers.
  

 6   Q.   And what are they primarily about?
  

 7   A.   They were -- I think I did two categories on my sort of
  

 8        environmental science part, I published papers on
  

 9        characterizing environmental pollutants, mostly in the
  

10        air because my degree is -- I have a degree in
  

11        atmospheric chemistry.  So lots of those papers and in
  

12        the later 20 years, I would say most of the papers are
  

13        about the toxic effects of environmental pollutants.
  

14   Q.   And have you received any grants from the NIH?
  

15   A.   I have been funded by NIH, National Cancer Institute,
  

16        to a less -- mostly from National Institute of
  

17        Environmental Health and Science and yes, for 30 years,
  

18        25 years.
  

19   Q.   And approximately how much grants have they granted you
  

20        for research?
  

21   A.   I probably have got so far I've done I would say, 30 to
  

22        40 grants.
  

23   Q.   And can you tell the board some of your employment
  

24        history?
  

25   A.   I was -- after I got my PhD degree I did a post-doc,
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 1        two year post-doc in a government funded policy
  

 2        research at an institute called East-West Center and
  

 3        then I started my faculty appointment at Rutgers
  

 4        University in the department of -- community medicine.
  

 5        Later I moved to School of Public Health over there and
  

 6        got promoted from assistant professor to associate
  

 7        professor to full professor to department chair to
  

 8        associate dean for the School of Public Health and then
  

 9        after 15 years I moved to University of Southern
  

10        California as a professor, tenure professor.  And after
  

11        three years I moved to Duke University with my current
  

12        titles that I mentioned earlier in 2013.  So I have
  

13        been at Duke for a little over five years.
  

14   Q.   At Duke?
  

15   A.   Yes.
  

16   Q.   And what sort of courses are you teaching?
  

17   A.   I taught a number of courses that -- I think I teach
  

18        air pollution from source to health effects.  I'm
  

19        teaching exposure assessment as part of the risk --
  

20        health and risk assessment, of course, I teach global
  

21        environmental health.  And I probably teach some other
  

22        minor courses, but those are the main courses that I
  

23        teach right now.
  

24   Q.   Have you ever had experience in air dispersion
  

25        modeling?
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 1   A.   Yes.  That's in the air pollution course I teach -- I
  

 2        cover that as part of the teaching.  My real sort of
  

 3        hands-on project that I'm working on, was a long time
  

 4        ago when I was doing my masters degree, second masters
  

 5        degree, I worked for a consulting firm based in New
  

 6        York and actually did exactly (unintelligible)
  

 7        dispersion modeling which is still, it's being used at
  

 8        -- because it's recommended by U.S. EPA.
  

 9   Q.   Right.  Now, did you have an occasion to review Exhibit
  

10        Number 10 prepared by TRC?
  

11   A.   Yes, I have.
  

12   Q.   And have you also reviewed the amendment, the 10A,
  

13        which included the modeling for nickel?
  

14   A.   Yes, I have.
  

15   Q.   Can you explain generally how that air dispersion
  

16        modeling was done by them?
  

17   A.   So the dispersion modeling as we know, I love to
  

18        measure things because there's actual numbers.  But
  

19        this is a future hypothetical plant so you can't do it.
  

20        So that's why the models are designed.  So those models
  

21        being used for, as I told you, that when I was doing my
  

22        graduate studies already was that.  So over a long time
  

23        those have been validated.  So that, the TRC performed
  

24        those modeling following the standard protocols,
  

25        procedures.
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 1             Just to explain the first is started with
  

 2        emission.  You know how much come out from this
  

 3        proposed plant so they have done that.  I think that's
  

 4        because you know the capacity, they did that.  First
  

 5        level for that ignition calculation is if is emission
  

 6        above certain levels that the NCDEQ will say, well, if
  

 7        below that you don't have to go further to do a
  

 8        concentration modeling which is so-called dispersion
  

 9        modeling.
  

10             Now, dispersion modeling is the model is already
  

11        developed, based on mathematical principles, physics
  

12        have air moving in the atmosphere, what is affecting
  

13        that of course is how much is coming out.  And also the
  

14        weather conditions, the meteorology, you have to get
  

15        those.  The topography, you're going to have to know
  

16        the surrounding area.  So those parameters has to be
  

17        put into this model and it will generate a
  

18        concentration.
  

19             So what this model did is say this is the step,
  

20        this is the source, that will go disperse.  That's what
  

21        they call it.  And then the concentration will go as a
  

22        function of this, you know, distance -- different
  

23        directions.  Most of the time we will focus on the
  

24        downwind because that's where the highest concentration
  

25        you would expect.  So what -- there's a report, what
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 1        you call -- I call it the TRC report but it's a permit,
  

 2        whatever that document.  It's exactly to that.  Then
  

 3        you define the grids, whatever, and they did the
  

 4        distance up to -- I could be wrong but we can check the
  

 5        numbers, up to 25 miles away from that with a two
  

 6        kilometer grids.  I think that's what they did.
  

 7             So anyway, then reported the maximum concentration
  

 8        in the report.  And also said that maximum
  

 9        concentration will occur at the boundary of the plant
  

10        because they did all these calculations.  So they only
  

11        recorded the highest values.  That's the we would worse
  

12        case scenario, and those models has been -- those
  

13        models was run for three consecutive years.  Based on
  

14        that three years weather, meteorology data, of course,
  

15        the topography will not change so that value just those
  

16        parameters.
  

17   Q.   Well, let me ask you.  It states in there that they ran
  

18        it for 14 weeks, eight hours a day, do you recall that?
  

19   A.   I recall that they did say the maximum operation.  So
  

20        what's the maximum output of the emission of the
  

21        pollutants based on the -- you probably remember the
  

22        numbers.  How many days a year and how many hours per
  

23        day, how many days per week but it was not continuous.
  

24   Q.   The plant is permitted for 100,000 tons and the most it
  

25        could put out is 170 tons an hour.  So they calculated
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 1        that if you ran 14 weeks, five days a week, eight hours
  

 2        a day that would be the maximum you could put out.
  

 3   A.   The model used the -- anticipates the maximum capacity
  

 4        operation.
  

 5   Q.   And then once they add the figures for the 14 weeks,
  

 6        they ran those figures all year long for 8,760 hours,
  

 7        is that --
  

 8   A.   Correct, yes.
  

 9   Q.   And then they were given a model -- they were given a
  

10        weather station nearby which gave the general local
  

11        weather, is that right?
  

12   A.   So they said they got the nearest one that they -- they
  

13        contacted NCDEQ and I believe it's about ten miles from
  

14        here, whatever, I could be wrong.  But it is the
  

15        closest one, weather station, they can get.
  

16   Q.   Seven kilometers, does that refresh your memory?
  

17   A.   Seven kilometers, that's about what, four miles, five
  

18        miles.
  

19   Q.   Now, the weather models, can you tell me whether or not
  

20        they have stable air or otherwise called temperature
  

21        inversions?
  

22   A.   So what they did is they run continuously for every day
  

23        so that the model would capture whatever, because this
  

24        is actual data.  They went back to the 2015, '14 and
  

25        '15, so that year were today the weather conditions,
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 1        wind speed, wind direction, atmospheric stability,
  

 2        which is an indicator of inversion, those things they
  

 3        all used the actual number, actual parameter.  And they
  

 4        generally did a concentration for that day for the
  

 5        compounds that -- at each allowable level which is
  

 6        regulatory level, is annually reported a annual mean.
  

 7        If it was formaldehyde, for example, that AAL, the
  

 8        allowable ambient level, was an hour -- hourly max so
  

 9        they did -- they reported within that year there was
  

10        one hour has that highest number, they reported that
  

11        number.  That's my understanding.
  

12   Q.   Let me show you Exhibit 54.
  

13             MR. TUZIW:  I'd like to ask a question while
  

14                  you're getting that out.  You said they took
  

15                  into account topography?
  

16             THE WITNESS:  Yes.
  

17             MR. TUZIW:  What topography did they use?
  

18             THE WITNESS:  So they have to use with models, you
  

19                  have to do the stack, on the stack height,
  

20                  the temperature, how much of that plume can
  

21                  go up and the surrounding area --
  

22             MR. TUZIW:  I understand how they do that.  I want
  

23                  to know what topography did they use.
  

24             THE WITNESS:  So that coordinated one with the
  

25                  grids.  They will have to have the -- they
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 1                  have to consider the terrain surface
  

 2                  roughness, that's the model that I run when I
  

 3                  was -- done this before.  So you have to --
  

 4                  the surface is treated, you know, the ridge
  

 5                  or whatever, you have a parameter that you
  

 6                  have to put into these models.  I believe
  

 7                  that's what they did.
  

 8             MR. TUZIW:  So once again, what topography did
  

 9                  they use?  Did they use the topography of
  

10                  where the plant is actually going with the
  

11                  river and the mountains, all the bowls we
  

12                  have, all the knobs, all the ridgelines --
  

13             THE WITNESS:  Yes.
  

14             MR. TUZIW:  -- all the hollows, did they use the
  

15                  actual topography where this plant is going
  

16                  or did they use a model topography as a
  

17                  static that they use --
  

18             THE WITNESS:  I have not -- that was not provided
  

19                  with their raw calculation, that sort of
  

20                  thing.  But from their description, my
  

21                  understanding is they have the actual -- the
  

22                  topography within 25 miles, a radius, or
  

23                  whatever that is, so that within two
  

24                  kilometer, they have to -- if done correctly,
  

25                  they have to put in the surface roughness,
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 1                  that sort of thing, into it, what kind of
  

 2                  surface type.
  

 3             MR. TUZIW:  Maybe I'm not understanding you.  Are
  

 4                  you saying they used the actual topography
  

 5                  around where the plant site is?
  

 6             THE WITNESS:  Yes, correct.
  

 7             MR. TUZIW:  Thank you.
  

 8   BY MR. SNEED:
  

 9   Q.   Now, let me show you Exhibit 54 and ask if you can
  

10        identify it.
  

11             (WHEREUPON, Applicant Exhibit Number 54 was marked
  

12                  for identification and passed to the witness
  

13                  for review)
  

14   A.   Yes, I have seen this.
  

15   Q.   Is that from the report?
  

16   A.   Yes.
  

17   Q.   And what is it?
  

18   A.   So this is the predicted concentration, the maximum
  

19        concentration I explained earlier.  Gee, the black,
  

20        this thing it's hard now to read.  First of all, I
  

21        believe the first column after the column that's
  

22        showing the year, I believe that's formaldehyde, is
  

23        that right?  It's the black and it's hard to read.
  

24        That says that one hour, that means the one hour
  

25        maximum.  So they round this dispersion models, again,
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 1        they won't even quote the maximum concentration.  If
  

 2        you further go down the concentration will decrease and
  

 3        -- will decrease.  So the -- in 2015 there was one day
  

 4        -- there was one hour the formaldehyde concentration
  

 5        was 23.1.  Based on that year's meteorology with the
  

 6        emissions that, you know, I assume the emission from
  

 7        this plant as the operation the, you know, the whatever
  

 8        many hours a day, whatever they said over there.
  

 9   Q.   Right.
  

10             MR. SNEED:  May I offer these into evidence?  They
  

11                  are pages out of the -- they're bad copies --
  

12   A.   So that's 23.1 for that year, that's the highest
  

13        number.  Then 2014, 32.3 --
  

14   Q.   Wait, wait, wait just a minute, we'll go through it.
  

15   A.   Okay.  Sorry.
  

16   Q.   I've got some questions about it.  The first column is
  

17        the year, they did it for three years?
  

18   A.   Uh-huh.
  

19   Q.   And then on the second column it's formaldehyde, right?
  

20   A.   Yes.
  

21   Q.   And on that they -- they came up with the highest value
  

22        they found for each year, is that right?
  

23   A.   Correct.
  

24   Q.   And that's hourly value for the formaldehyde?
  

25   A.   Correct.
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 1   Q.   And which is the highest value that they found for
  

 2        formaldehyde?
  

 3   A.   It's -- it's according to the 2014 weather condition
  

 4        that was 32.3.  That's the highest for formaldehyde,
  

 5        one hour max.
  

 6   Q.   And then at the bottom they had the AAL, which is the
  

 7        allowed ambient limit, right?
  

 8   A.   Correct.
  

 9   Q.   So what is the allowed ambient limit?
  

10   A.   That's -- those numbers 150.  This is -- this is
  

11        recommended by a -- not recommended, regulated by a
  

12        regulatory authority and the, I believe that this one
  

13        is from NCDEQ.  So what it says that about 100 -- this
  

14        is microgram per cubic meter, I believe that -- again,
  

15        I cannot see the unit.  Oh yes, at the top says.  So
  

16        then that's the sort of safety level if you interpret
  

17        it that way.
  

18             MR. RAMSEY:  So Jim, how did they come up with
  

19                  150?  I mean, where did they -- where did
  

20                  they get that number?  I mean, like is the --
  

21                  you said that's the safe level or the maximum
  

22                  allowable, how did they determine that?
  

23             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  So I'm glad you asked the
  

24                  question.  I was not involved in the NC
  

25                  Department, DEQ, but I was on U.S. EPA Clean
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 1                  Air counsel, no, they call it -- yes,
  

 2                  Scientific Clear -- Clear whatever.  So those
  

 3                  are the, for example, the EPA also have
  

 4                  standards, right, for PM, for particulate
  

 5                  matter, for ozone, for CO2, that kind of
  

 6                  thing.  So what -- how this number come from
  

 7                  is that this is a very, very serious, I would
  

 8                  say.  So they got a expert from different
  

 9                  field, engineers, one or two to understand
  

10                  the thing; mostly health scientists.  And
  

11                  then those people are charged to review all
  

12                  the literature and then they come out with a
  

13                  sort of systematic unbiased, you know,
  

14                  evidence.  And then say what is -- do we feel
  

15                  that this level, that's safe.  Basically
  

16                  that's the question.  That's -- that number
  

17                  comes and then it goes through public
  

18                  hearing, whatever, then goes through the
  

19                  Congress, whatever they sign.  That's for the
  

20                  EPA process.  I believe the DEQ is probably
  

21                  similar.
  

22   Q.   Well, what -- to follow up to help understand, what is
  

23        the goal of this whole process?
  

24   A.   It is to protect public health.  Again, I'm more
  

25        familiar with the EPA standard because I've been
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 1        involved with the EPA and not -- review for the last
  

 2        time we -- we revised those kind of numbers.  So the
  

 3        goal says this is designed to protect public health
  

 4        including sensitive individuals.
  

 5   Q.   Does it include children?
  

 6   A.   Children, the elderly, people with preexisting
  

 7        conditions.
  

 8   Q.   And what, if you have formaldehyde at a level of 150
  

 9        which is the AAL, what would the -- what would the
  

10        prognosis for a person exposed to that daily be?
  

11   A.   So that would be the -- definitely at, you know, about
  

12        150 you would say the health risk with this.  Because,
  

13        you know, significant or whatever.  Below that doesn't
  

14        mean there's no health risk but sort of people consider
  

15        that, you know, acceptable, whatever.  And those things
  

16        are the -- they get reviewed for EPA, they got to
  

17        review that every five years, if necessary they will
  

18        change, revise.
  

19   Q.   All right.  Now, the next column is benzene, right?
  

20   A.   Yes.
  

21   Q.   And it's annual.  And what were the findings on that?
  

22   A.   The benzene, the ambient -- allowable ambient level,
  

23        AAL, is 0.12 micrograms per cubic meter as a annual
  

24        mean.  Now, this is going back to the health and
  

25        science, why they think formaldehyde should have a
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 1        hourly thing because it's more acute toxic -- toxic
  

 2        compound.  For benzene more cumulative type of thing,
  

 3        so that's why the health and science they feel the best
  

 4        -- the better indicator is to do a longer term average
  

 5        than, you know, daily average, whatever.  On the other
  

 6        hand, a PM, particulate matter which is not recorded
  

 7        here, you have a 24-hour average and also a annual
  

 8        average.
  

 9   Q.   All right.  Well, we'll get into the particulate matter
  

10        later, but on benzene, what was the highest year?
  

11   A.   The highest year was 2014.  I think that's reflect that
  

12        year probably the meteorology was where they probably
  

13        has more inversion days, so that sort of thing.
  

14        Because consistently it looks like that year has a high
  

15        concentration.  So it's .093.
  

16   Q.   So that's about 75 percent of the AAL?
  

17   A.   That's about, yeah, point 0, yeah, about right.
  

18   Q.   And then with the arsenic what was the highest year?
  

19   A.   It's still 2014.
  

20   Q.   And that's an annual average, right?
  

21   A.   That's also annual average.
  

22   Q.   And then what's the AAL for that year?
  

23   A.   AAL will be the same for, doesn't matter which year.
  

24        It's says 0.002.  The numbers are, let's see, 3230, so
  

25        it's about 100 times lower than the AAL.
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 1   Q.   A hundred, 100 times?
  

 2   A.   One hundred times lower.
  

 3   Q.   Right.  And nickel, which was the highest year there?
  

 4   A.   2015 and 2014 is about the same, 0.098.  The AAL is six
  

 5        so that's about close to 100, maybe 50, 60 times lower.
  

 6   Q.   Sixty times lower?
  

 7   A.   Yeah.
  

 8   Q.   And those are at the highest levels at the boundary of
  

 9        the leasehold?
  

10   A.   Correct.
  

11   Q.   And the leasehold is set inside the quarry?
  

12   A.   Okay.
  

13   Q.   And there were some exhibits prepared that showed the
  

14        length at the edge of the quarry, actually the highest
  

15        level at the edge of the quarry, right?
  

16   A.   That's what this, in the report says that boundary of
  

17        the quarry, yes.
  

18   Q.   So let me show you Exhibit 23.
  

19             (WHEREUPON, Applicant Exhibit Number 23 previously
  

20                  marked for identification was passed to the
  

21                  witness for review)
  

22             MR. RAMSEY:  While he's doing that, Jim, let me
  

23                  ask you something, I'm not as smart as the
  

24                  average bear (inaudible).  If I smoke one
  

25                  cigarette, and I'm trying to use an analogy
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 1                  to compare this to because I'm not real sure
  

 2                  about these numbers.  If I smoke one
  

 3                  cigarette, that's one year and if I smoke two
  

 4                  cigarettes, that's two years.  If I smoke
  

 5                  three cigarettes, that's three years, four
  

 6                  and all down the road.  So 30, 40 years down
  

 7                  the road if I smoke that many cigarettes is
  

 8                  that cumulative?  Is that like -- is this
  

 9                  like that, is it cumulative and it's going to
  

10                  have effect on the public health?
  

11             THE WITNESS:  For -- that's a very good toxicology
  

12                  question.  So some pollutants they say to
  

13                  have cumulative effects.  Benzene is one
  

14                  because potentially will, benzene is a
  

15                  carcinogen so that is cumulative.  So you
  

16                  have a, you know --
  

17             MR. RAMSEY:  So I guess what I'm saying --
  

18             THE WITNESS:  But formaldehyde maybe not, it's
  

19                  reversible things will go back if you stop.
  

20             MR. RAMSEY:  So if you take those numbers, is it
  

21                  like the cigarettes, if I smoke one cigarette
  

22                  this year I'm okay.  If I smoke two
  

23                  cigarettes, that's doubling up, is this -- is
  

24                  what's you're saying is these numbers
  

25                  accumulate so that it will grow?
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 1             THE WITNESS:  For -- for benzene, yes.
  

 2             MR. RAMSEY:  For benzene.  Okay.
  

 3             THE WITNESS:  Yes.
  

 4   BY MR. SNEED:
  

 5   Q.   So let's -- let me show you Exhibit 23 and ask you if
  

 6        you can identify that.  It's been previously put into
  

 7        evidence.
  

 8   A.   Yes, I have seen this one.
  

 9   Q.   So that shows again, the allowable ambient level of
  

10        150?
  

11   A.   Yes.
  

12   Q.   And what's -- and this is the level at the quarry
  

13        boundary, 23, and what is the level at the quarry
  

14        boundary?
  

15   A.   This was the formaldehyde, it's the one hour max, 15.2.
  

16   Q.   So that's like one tenth of the limit?
  

17   A.   Correct.
  

18   Q.   And what is your opinion as a toxicologist as to the
  

19        seriousness of this level of output?
  

20   A.   So, you know, in toxicology the first principle is the
  

21        dose makes poison.
  

22   Q.   Say it again, first principle --
  

23   A.   Dose makes poison.  So the dose is how much you get.
  

24        Because if you get too much of a very good thing it's
  

25        still going to -- will be a poison.  But if something
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 1        is toxic but dose is so small, then you may not worry
  

 2        that much because we all hope we're living in world
  

 3        that's free of any toxic stuff.  That's what I do,
  

 4        that's what I spend all my time, to identify risk, try
  

 5        to protect people.  I'm in the environment school,
  

 6        public health school.  But same time, then we have to
  

 7        put everything into perspective.  We don't focus our
  

 8        attention to things that really matters to us, things
  

 9        are really, you know, do not matter much.  So that's --
  

10        that's the toxicology.  So give --
  

11             MR. RAMSEY:  Jim, back to another question.  You
  

12                  really got me curious about this because I'm
  

13                  confused on it again.  So with toxicology, if
  

14                  you've got a young person, a kid in a daycare
  

15                  and their first formative years like the
  

16                  doctor covered with us yesterday, and they're
  

17                  at these levels, again, if they're smoking
  

18                  one cigarette their first year, two
  

19                  cigarettes the second year, are these levels
  

20                  dangerous for a young child like that?
  

21             THE WITNESS:  Those levels are not --
  

22             MR. RAMSEY:  So -- so in 10 years you're saying
  

23                  that that's not a dangerous level?
  

24             THE WITNESS:  No.  Because benzene -- for example,
  

25                  formaldehyde is a short-term thing so they
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 1                  don't accumulate.
  

 2             MR. RAMSEY:  No, I wasn't --
  

 3   Q.   Let's stay -- let's take one at a time.  Let's talk
  

 4        about formaldehyde and then we'll get to the benzene.
  

 5   A.   Formaldehyde at 15.2, maybe this -- we'll have more
  

 6        than 15.2.
  

 7             MR. RAMSEY:  I'm talking about the cumulative
  

 8                  ones, the ones you said that were cumulative,
  

 9                  the, I can't remember the term.
  

10             THE WITNESS:  It's the -- it's the benzene, yeah.
  

11             MR. SNEED:  He goes one by one if I can't --
  

12             MR. RAMSEY:  I'm interested in one -- get to --
  

13             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  I can do -- I can do benzene.
  

14                  For example, again, same thing, the cigarette
  

15                  smoking is very good example because
  

16                  cigarette smoking does emit a lot, lots of
  

17                  benzene.  One cigarette smoke probably
  

18                  produce a dose, benzene dose will be
  

19                  equivalent to, actually that's what's in my
  

20                  lecture at -- I didn't bring that out.  It's
  

21                  going to be, let's see, the daily dose
  

22                  probably will be in the 1,000th, and the
  

23                  value you're sort of background read -- we
  

24                  all get benzene.  This one, there will be
  

25                  benzene.  Benzene background will be one,
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 1                  that one cigarette will bring up to 1,000.
  

 2                  That's just to give you a --
  

 3             MR. RAMSEY:  Yeah.  Thank you for keeping it
  

 4                  simple.
  

 5   BY MR. SNEED:
  

 6   Q.   I didn't understand.  One cigarette will bring you up
  

 7        to what level?
  

 8   A.   To relative -- let's see, if background is one, if --
  

 9        for one cigarette, smoke one cigarette the dose you're
  

10        going to get is 1,000 times.
  

11   Q.   One thousand times?
  

12   A.   Yes.
  

13   Q.   And the basic background level for benzene everywhere
  

14        is one?
  

15   A.   No, no.  I said if there's a background is one, that
  

16        person is getting from all the other places whether
  

17        that -- if you get other cigarette smoke directly get
  

18        into lung, that benzene will be 1,000 times from what
  

19        you get.
  

20   Q.   One thousand --
  

21   A.   One thousand.
  

22             MR. RAMSEY:  So back -- back to the concern of the
  

23                  daycare area.  We've got small children there
  

24                  in their formative years as Dr. Cloverdale
  

25                  said, their -- their lungs are not fully
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 1                  developed and with your expertise, what's
  

 2                  that going to have -- what kind of effect is
  

 3                  that going to have on them?
  

 4             THE WITNESS:  Again, this levels I do not see
  

 5                  there is any additional significant effects,
  

 6                  because we talked about background levels.
  

 7                  Where I live, my home, all the level --
  

 8             MR. RAMSEY:  Will you -- will you guarantee that
  

 9                  to the daycare?  Because I'm concerned about
  

10                  children --
  

11             THE WITNESS:  The daycare I would say that, I'm
  

12                  not saying the things that -- what's not
  

13                  reported here.  The compounds reported here,
  

14                  they're coming as a result of the plant with
  

15                  that emission everything said in there I only
  

16                  reviewed what I got.  That number is way
  

17                  below the background.  With benzene we have
  

18                  it from furniture, we have -- any commercial
  

19                  sources like a gas -- a gas combustion.  If
  

20                  you're in the winter we have wood combustion
  

21                  that would increase very high.  Second-hand
  

22                  smoke I'll say, you know, the traffic, all
  

23                  those things.
  

24             MR. SNEED:  Let me walk through this.  I know
  

25                  where you're going --
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 1             MR. RAMSEY:  I'm not anywhere.  I'm trying -- I'm
  

 2                  trying to get both sides of this -- both
  

 3                  sides.
  

 4   BY MR. SNEED:
  

 5   Q.   So we were talking about formaldehyde and the levels of
  

 6        formaldehyde on exhibit -- the exhibit you have there
  

 7        is 15.2 and that's hourly, right?
  

 8   A.   Yes.
  

 9   Q.   So what is the normal level of formaldehyde in the
  

10        average home?
  

11   A.   The average home in the United -- U.S. homes would be
  

12        anywhere, you know, some homes with no effects of, no
  

13        (unintelligible) effect anything, probably would be
  

14        close to 10 something.  But the newer homes or
  

15        whatever, if you go you're going to measure normally
  

16        about 100.
  

17   Q.   One hundred?
  

18   A.   One hundred.  When I did some studies published my
  

19        papers in some intercities when, you know, formaldehyde
  

20        you can go up to 500.  That's what -- in mobile homes
  

21        with lots of the --
  

22   Q.   Synthetics --
  

23   A.   The plywood, it's all those things compressed with
  

24        those things that they break the -- (unintelligible)
  

25        break and things like that.
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 1   Q.   But the average home would be somewhere around 10, is
  

 2        that the number?
  

 3   A.   I would think the median in the U.S. home is probably
  

 4        -- again, I'm sorry, this has to go through the
  

 5        literature, it just doesn't come off my shoulder, you
  

 6        know, I can't be precise, just roughly would be
  

 7        probably about 30, 40.  So 30 percent -- 50 percent of
  

 8        homes would be below that, 50 percent of homes would be
  

 9        above it.
  

10   Q.   And that's above the limit?
  

11   A.   That's below the ambient limit.
  

12   Q.   It's the ambient limit but it's way above the limit at
  

13        the boundary, right?
  

14   A.   Correct.
  

15   Q.   All right.  Now, let's move to benzene unless you have
  

16        anything more to say about formaldehyde?
  

17   A.   No, I don't.
  

18   Q.   Now, we have this Exhibit 24 on benzene and what has
  

19        been previously identified, where does benzene come
  

20        from?
  

21   A.   Benzene is -- in the U.S. what the probably the biggest
  

22        source is gasoline.  Benzene is part of the
  

23        hydrocarbons in the gasoline.  So if you have a
  

24        lawnmower, if you park -- have attached garage, you
  

25        park it over there, the gasoline evaporates and will
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 1        come to be, probably to the majority of the benzene
  

 2        that we're going to measure in the home.  And that
  

 3        combustion, benzene's also a product of incomplete
  

 4        combustion, burn wood generally more.  Natural gas
  

 5        less, but it still produce some.
  

 6             And benzene is a impurity.  It is somewhat the
  

 7        product we use in the home with the building materials,
  

 8        paint, that kind of thing, so they put off gas.  So for
  

 9        that reason benzene, the average -- well, not average,
  

10        the range of benzene in the U.S. homes, this you can
  

11        get, the EPA reports or the M. Hayes reports is about
  

12        2.5 or 2.6 micrograms per cubic meter inside the home.
  

13   Q.   So comparing that to the level found at the boundary of
  

14        the asphalt plant, how much more is that than the
  

15        boundary of the asphalt plant?
  

16   A.   The boundary in the benzene report is about 0.09, so
  

17        let's see, that's 1 -- so 0.1.  So the -- as I said,
  

18        the homes range from two to six, so that's about 50 to
  

19        100 times --
  

20   Q.   Fifty to 100 times what is found at this boundary?
  

21   A.   Yes.
  

22   Q.   Well, this -- that's the boundary of the leasehold
  

23        site?
  

24   A.   I don't know what, but that's according to the modeling
  

25        exercise.  That's the -- within 25 miles that's the
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 1        highest place, highest concentration the particulate
  

 2        which is at the boundary of the quarry.  That's what I
  

 3        read, but I don't know the plant details.
  

 4   Q.   All right.  Now, look at Exhibit 24.
  

 5   A.   Okay.
  

 6   Q.   That's the ambient air impact at the quarry boundary,
  

 7        right?
  

 8   A.   Uh-huh.
  

 9   Q.   So that's 100 feet away from the leasehold site.
  

10   A.   Okay.
  

11   Q.   A hundred to 150.  That level is .046 so the average in
  

12        the home is what?
  

13   A.   Two to six.
  

14   Q.   So that could be 100 times that, right?
  

15   A.   Correct.
  

16   Q.   Now, what happens to benzene when it goes into the
  

17        atmosphere?
  

18   A.   Benzene is a gas molecule so unlike big particles will
  

19        fall down whatever, benzene, that's chance for benzene
  

20        to immediately fall down to the ground.  It's a very
  

21        small.  So benzene will disperse, follow the wind or
  

22        you know, turbulence going upward.  So that's -- they
  

23        will -- they will disperse, they will travel.
  

24             MR. RAMSEY:  Again, you're saying they dispense
  

25                  always dispense upwards?
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 1             THE WITNESS:  How many?
  

 2             MR. RAMSEY:  You're saying -- you're leading me to
  

 3                  believe that, and I'm trying to figure this
  

 4                  out because I'm really simple again.  You're
  

 5                  trying to say it always goes up?  Doesn't it
  

 6                  -- can it come down too --
  

 7             THE WITNESS:  No.  So --
  

 8             MR. RAMSEY:  Like -- like with our inversions here
  

 9                  --
  

10             THE WITNESS:  When inversions that being -- the
  

11                  inversion happens is, let's see, this is --
  

12                  this is the source (demonstrating), this is
  

13                  the stack, here in this room, this is the
  

14                  stack.  And if no inversion the molecules can
  

15                  go up, go -- disperse like there's no wind.
  

16                  If there is a wind of course the wind will
  

17                  blow and they will travel more onto the
  

18                  downwind.  Same time they will go up.  So how
  

19                  up they can go, that depends on how stable
  

20                  this molecule in the atmosphere.  Sometimes
  

21                  they can go that far before it's going to be
  

22                  destroyed by reaction, that kind of thing.
  

23                       So there are some compounds are very
  

24                  persistent, but that's why we worry about
  

25                  carbon dioxide, CO2, it's a global pollutant
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 1                  because carbon dioxide is almost the end
  

 2                  form.  They can last to 56 years.  That's why
  

 3                  we worry about CO2 coming out from China,
  

 4                  come here to affect our climate.  But these
  

 5                  molecules, no.  They are not going to travel
  

 6                  that far.  Benzene will get destroyed in the
  

 7                  atmosphere within 20 days or some as fast as
  

 8                  five day, every day.  Depends on the
  

 9                  photoactivity.
  

10   BY MR. SNEED:
  

11   Q.   Explain to them how the benzene is destroyed in the
  

12        atmosphere.
  

13   A.   Benzene is eventually destroyed through the oxidation
  

14        of -- facilitated by what we call photochemistry where
  

15        you have the sun and UV will generate those things we
  

16        call free radicals react quick; if no sun they can last
  

17        a little bit longer.  But we know sun come out.  That's
  

18        how lots of pollutant -- naturally produced were, you
  

19        know, manmade eventually get rid from our atmosphere.
  

20        That's why our atmosphere getting refreshed.
  

21   Q.   Let me see if I can walk through that.
  

22             MR. TUZIW:  I've got a question.  You said it can
  

23                  be airborne for up to 20 days?
  

24             THE WITNESS:  Yes.
  

25             MR. TUZIW:  So it can be dispersed throughout the
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 1                  air for 20 days and floating every which way.
  

 2             THE WITNESS:  Can come to -- go down let's see, 20
  

 3                  days could go 100 miles away, depends on the
  

 4                  wind --
  

 5             MR. TUZIW:  So then it's susceptible to climate
  

 6                  say, rain.  Does rain force it back down?
  

 7             THE WITNESS:  Benzene's not that water soluble.
  

 8                  So rain doesn't remove the benzene that
  

 9                  effectively.  But formaldehyde is.  If you
  

10                  have a rain that --
  

11             MR. TUZIW:  So rain doesn't -- so the benzene will
  

12                  continue to drift through the rain, it won't
  

13                  be forced back down to the ground and into
  

14                  the soil or onto the road?
  

15             THE WITNESS:  Correct.  Not much of the benzene
  

16                  because benzene is not water soluble.
  

17             MR. TUZIW:  Okay.  Benzene -- so it wouldn't force
  

18                  it down, it will continue to stay airborne
  

19                  throughout the --
  

20             THE WITNESS:  Right.  Until it's destroyed
  

21                  eventually.
  

22             MR. BRIGGS:  What about the fog?  Like a river
  

23                  fog?  Say the benzene --
  

24             THE WITNESS:  No, not for benzene.  Some compounds
  

25                  will affect, you know, get into the water but
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 1                  not benzene, no.
  

 2             MR. RAMSEY:  Benzene you said is cumulative right?
  

 3             THE WITNESS:  Is?
  

 4             MR. RAMSEY:  Cumulative.
  

 5             THE WITNESS:  Oh, you mean the health effects,
  

 6                  yes.
  

 7             MR. TUZIW:  Well, will it amass while it's in the
  

 8                  earth?  If the climate's holding, let's say,
  

 9                  the temperature inversion's holding it in
  

10                  will it amass to a larger quantity?  Can it
  

11                  congregate or does it constantly dissipate --
  

12             THE WITNESS:  So -- oh, okay.  So if you have --
  

13                  you have -- benzene come up from the air or
  

14                  someone can just light a cigarette here.  If
  

15                  there's no roof, there is a wind it will go
  

16                  disperse much faster, right?  Inversion
  

17                  happens as it just like any atmosphere, there
  

18                  is a physical roof put up there.  So
  

19                  inversion will prevent this plume, we'll call
  

20                  plume, you know, the emissions from the
  

21                  stack, from going upwards further.  So yes,
  

22                  it will be trapped within this room.  The
  

23                  concentration within this room would be much
  

24                  higher with the inversion because it will now
  

25                  have a roof.  If we don't have a roof will be
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 1                  much lower.
  

 2             MR. TUZIW:  So you're saying the inversion will
  

 3                  allow it to accumulate to a larger mass?
  

 4             THE WITNESS:  Correct.  Yeah, that's correct.
  

 5             MR. TUZIW:  So a cloud can hold it in, but rain
  

 6                  can't hold it in?
  

 7             THE WITNESS:  Inversion is not a cloud.  And rain
  

 8                  is also not inversion.  Rain comes in if
  

 9                  pollutants are easy to get -- dissolve in the
  

10                  rain, rain will wash it out quickly.
  

11             MR. TUZIW:  So if an inversion is not a cloud what
  

12                  is that white thing I'm seeing floating over
  

13                  the river?
  

14             THE WITNESS:  Inversion -- yeah, that's a good --
  

15                  inversion is a -- the air is supposed to be
  

16                  warmer at the ground and temperature should
  

17                  drop as the elevation goes up.  So because
  

18                  the pollutant come out of a stack it will go
  

19                  from warm air to the colder place.  Now, the
  

20                  inversion happens is, is actually the ground
  

21                  is colder and the top is hotter so it's just
  

22                  the physics, how the gas is moving.  Gas will
  

23                  move, like to move from a warmer place to
  

24                  colder place.
  

25             MR. TUZIW:  But that white thing I'm seeing is
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 1                  moisture-based, right?
  

 2             THE WITNESS:  That's because water vapor got
  

 3                  trapped, that's why you can see.  That's
  

 4                  because water vapor cannot go up because the
  

 5                  upper air is warmer than the cold --
  

 6             MR. TUZIW:  So that -- going back to my point that
  

 7                  the cloud can hold it in better but the
  

 8                  rainstorm can't?
  

 9             THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  If that cloud is the result
  

10                  of the inversion.
  

11   BY MR. SNEED:
  

12   Q.   Let me go on back to the questions of how long benzene
  

13        can stay in the atmosphere.  Benzene is C6H6?
  

14   A.   Correct.
  

15   Q.   And so when the -- when the bolt of light hits it in
  

16        the atmosphere or it gets enough energy to combine with
  

17        oxygen, right?
  

18   A.   Will actually be oxidized, yes, that's right.
  

19   Q.   And the result is carbon dioxide and water?
  

20   A.   That's the ultimate product, yes.
  

21   Q.   And so benzene every day the atmosphere is being
  

22        removed by that process, is that right?
  

23   A.   Correct.
  

24   Q.   And so any given amount of benzene that is put in the
  

25        atmosphere has what's called a half-life, right?
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 1   A.   Right.
  

 2   Q.   Would you explain to them what a half-life is?
  

 3   A.   Half-life is initially you -- let's you release 100
  

 4        molecules.  The time to take that 100 molecules to drop
  

 5        down to 50, so for half, that's called half-life.  So
  

 6        some, like carbon dioxide I already said will stay
  

 7        there for very long, so 50 years to destroy CO2.  But
  

 8        for benzene half-life is something like within 20 days,
  

 9        it can be as fast as, you know, five days or whatever,
  

10        it depends on the solar activity.
  

11             MR. RAMSEY:  Okay.  Jim, I want to ask you a
  

12                  question to try to tie some of this stuff
  

13                  together because we've been talking about a
  

14                  lot of different stuff and we've got you here
  

15                  right now.  So let's say the plant is up,
  

16                  operational, it's running, it's foggy out
  

17                  here, it's nine o'clock in the morning.  The
  

18                  benzene that goes up into the air is going to
  

19                  naturally go down with the fog to the river
  

20                  and as the river flows it pulls along, it
  

21                  goes down.  And from what I'm understanding,
  

22                  you tell me if I'm wrong, it comes down, goes
  

23                  down and it flows like the river, it goes
  

24                  down and if it stays for 20 days this stuff
  

25                  could be in Knoxville.  I don't know, I'm



Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. VI -
May 16, 2019

782

  

 1                  confused about what happens when it leaves
  

 2                  the plant, the benzene on a inversion day,
  

 3                  the fog that everybody's been talking about
  

 4                  that they want to know more about because
  

 5                  everybody's been really concentrating on that
  

 6                  system.  Can you kind of explain what happens
  

 7                  to the benzene in that situation on that
  

 8                  morning?
  

 9             THE WITNESS:  Okay.  So let's say this room with
  

10                  the doors closed, windows closed and with the
  

11                  roof, this is a perfect inversion condition.
  

12                  Someone light a cigarette --
  

13             MR. RAMSEY:  Good example.
  

14             THE WITNESS:  -- everything will be it.  All
  

15                  right.  So the way inversion happens the
  

16                  concentration will be trapped in that very
  

17                  local, depends, you know -- we have to, you
  

18                  know, for this one how big, whatever, through
  

19                  the area.  And then the inversion will break
  

20                  at some point because, you know, when sun
  

21                  comes down the surface will get hotter.  That
  

22                  inversion is temperature inversion because
  

23                  they just reverse the -- should be
  

24                  temperature hotter getting colder.  Now when
  

25                  it becoming normal just imagine you open the
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 1                  window, you open a door and you take --
  

 2                  that's -- that's when the inversion --
  

 3             MR. RAMSEY:  When the sun comes out but let's say
  

 4                  the inversion stays.  The fog usually sits in
  

 5                  generally around here, and I grew up, I live
  

 6                  along the river, it starts about three
  

 7                  o'clock in the morning and usually about
  

 8                  10:00, 10:30, so there's six or seven hours
  

 9                  that that's sitting there and if the river's
  

10                  flowing at three, four miles per hour, how
  

11                  far will that benzene get?  I'm confused what
  

12                  you're saying.  You said it can last for 20
  

13                  to 30 days.  In that situation you can wind
  

14                  up easily in Hot Springs.
  

15             THE WITNESS:  No.  There's 20 -- 20 whatever call
  

16                  it, that's the -- that the ozone can stay no
  

17                  matter where the benzene molecule is, 100
  

18                  miles from town or nearby, that's not a good
  

19                  average because atmosphere we have oxygen, we
  

20                  have the sun comes in, we quick off the solar
  

21                  reactions, that's that concept.
  

22                       The inversion, that's different from
  

23                  that.  The inversion is just those 3:00 a.m.
  

24                  to whatever, if you put out something they're
  

25                  not going to disperse that far.  It can be
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 1                  trapped down there.
  

 2             MR. RAMSEY:  It's going to be trapped for six
  

 3                  hours it's --
  

 4             THE WITNESS:  That when the inversion of that --
  

 5                  goes.  It's just like in this room, if you
  

 6                  prefer you would open the window, that's your
  

 7                  inversion what were happening here.  When you
  

 8                  open the window it can see that smoke is
  

 9                  going to go out.
  

10             MR. RAMSEY:  Okay.
  

11             MR. TUZIW:  So back to the cumulative basis of it.
  

12                  Say in 20 years or sorry, 20 days and you
  

13                  said this room is like a perfect example of
  

14                  an inversion so let's use this as an example.
  

15                       Right now no one smokes in here.  Let's
  

16                  say tomorrow somebody starts smoking in here
  

17                  and I come in here and I get the effects of
  

18                  that and I go away and I don't come back for
  

19                  20 days.  But for those 20 days somebody was
  

20                  smoking every day for those 20 days.  That
  

21                  20th day when I come in, that first cigarette
  

22                  smoke supposedly is now gone.  You've got 20
  

23                  days of smoke all built up that I'm being
  

24                  affected by?
  

25             THE WITNESS:  From the entire atmosphere you are
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 1                  right, but from this room that's -- those
  

 2                  molecules won't be in this room for 20 days
  

 3                  because the inversion doesn't have -- unless
  

 4                  the inversion had -- occurs for that long,
  

 5                  yeah.
  

 6             MR. TUZIW:  You say it's got 20 -- it can last up
  

 7                  to 20 days so the cigarette smoke on the
  

 8                  first day is still there all those 20 days.
  

 9                  But I've also got the smoke built up from
  

10                  each separate day on top of that building to
  

11                  where that 20th day when I walk in when I
  

12                  have one cigarette, the first one is starting
  

13                  to dissipate and go away?
  

14             THE WITNESS:  If that's --
  

15             MR. TUZIW:  I've still got the other 19 days piled
  

16                  together on top of it adding to a cumulative
  

17                  factor that's creating a larger number than
  

18                  what this is saying.  Because this is saying
  

19                  what it is at that one moment, not what it is
  

20                  cumulative over a 20-day period.
  

21             THE WITNESS:  Correct.
  

22             MR. TUZIW:  Or as some people have, 20-year
  

23                  period.
  

24             THE WITNESS:  Correct.  You're correct, and that's
  

25                  if they accumulated.  So this molecule stay
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 1                  20 days but it's not in one location.  They
  

 2                  travel very fast.  That's -- dispersion
  

 3                  model, that's why we said disperse.  But if
  

 4                  this room is locked for 20 days, someone come
  

 5                  in smoke a day today, that is still here
  

 6                  tomorrow.  Then someone come in, the same
  

 7                  person come in second day, do another month,
  

 8                  they're still here although they have all --
  

 9                  but it's just the, you know, the -- it's the
  

10                  walls or they can settle some but your
  

11                  concept is correct.
  

12                       But once the windows are open they will
  

13                  go.  They're going to -- they will go to some
  

14                  places as far as they can go before they are
  

15                  destroyed.
  

16             MR. TUZIW:  So we do have periods of the year
  

17                  where we have inversions every single day for
  

18                  weeks on end.
  

19             THE WITNESS:  If it's continuously last for that,
  

20                  that would go, but I understand that the
  

21                  mountain areas like this probably in the
  

22                  winter days you're probably in most case
  

23                  you're going to have a inversion because the,
  

24                  you know, rocks and such they get cool
  

25                  quicker at night.  But as you said, ten
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 1                  o'clock that inversion is broken.  That trap
  

 2                  thing is gone and the new ones you put in,
  

 3                  next day they will go.  If you completed no
  

 4                  breakdown for this for several days, yes,
  

 5                  that would be the worse.
  

 6             MR. TUZIW:  So this doesn't take into account
  

 7                  accumulation?
  

 8             THE WITNESS:  That -- that did.
  

 9             MR. TUZIW:  It takes into account accumulation for
  

10                  how long?
  

11             THE WITNESS:  Because the -- for a year.
  

12             MR. TUZIW:  So these numbers are taking into
  

13                  account the accumulation --
  

14             THE WITNESS:  Right. They assume this -- the
  

15                  source is always that, keep coming, they
  

16                  will, you know, dynamic.  If you have an
  

17                  inversion, inversion comes, trap it, the
  

18                  inversion disappears, will disperse quicker.
  

19                  So this take into account of the actual --
  

20                  actual meteorolgy for that year.  It's not
  

21                  just they run one day and then do it.  Based
  

22                  on how many hours, whatever, on the --
  

23   BY MR. SNEED:
  

24   Q.   8,760 hours a year.
  

25   A.   A year, right.
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 1   Q.   So they do 24/7 365?
  

 2   A.   Yeah.
  

 3   Q.   Now, and if there is an inversion and if it causes a
  

 4        spike in concentration, that system would detect that?
  

 5   A.   I think this highest number is for formaldehyde, for
  

 6        example, because that's only on hourly, that's very
  

 7        short.  So that's -- that must be the concentration
  

 8        when one of the worst inversion happened.  If that's
  

 9        the high -- that's when you expect the higher ones.
  

10        Now, for the annual averages, there will be higher
  

11        days, there will be low days of the average.  So --
  

12             MR. TUZIW:  So the formaldehyde numbers are by
  

13                  hourly, is that -- is formaldehyde, I don't
  

14                  know a lot about formaldehyde, is it
  

15                  cumulative also or not?
  

16             THE WITNESS:  It's -- from a toxicologist
  

17                  standpoint it's not a cumulative kind of
  

18                  thing.
  

19             MR. RAMSEY:  From anybody's standpoint is it
  

20                  cumulative?
  

21             THE WITNESS:  Well, you know, some things you have
  

22                  that are so toxic we call it acute.  Let's
  

23                  see, we have a viral infection, right?  You
  

24                  got to -- got sick and then you got to
  

25                  recover.  And you will not say that I got



Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. VI -
May 16, 2019

789

  

 1                  just infection, does the infection going to,
  

 2                  you know, like a viral, like flu.  You got
  

 3                  flu, that's acute, right?
  

 4             MR. RAMSEY:  Yeah.
  

 5             THE WITNESS:  You don't say that's --
  

 6             MR. RAMSEY:  Chronic.
  

 7             THE WITNESS:  Yeah, chronic.  Like cancer, yeah,
  

 8                  it's chronic.  It's everything built up.
  

 9   BY MR. SNEED:
  

10   Q.   Now, let me ask you about the particulate matters.
  

11             MR. SNEED:  Unless you have further questions
  

12                  about it?
  

13             MR. TUZIW:  No.
  

14   Q.   So here's Exhibit 53 which is a photo of a page in
  

15        Exhibit 10 we've all seen before.
  

16             (WHEREUPON, Applicant Exhibit 53 was marked for
  

17                  identification and passed to the witness for
  

18                  review)
  

19   Q.   It's already been admitted into evidence.
  

20             (WHEREUPON, there was an off-the-record
  

21                  discussion)
  

22   Q.   Now, can you read this Dr. Zhang?
  

23   A.   Yes.  Barely on my dates are here.
  

24   Q.   And this is page -- it's out of -- so this is -- what
  

25        is this?
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 1   A.   This is the emissions based on -- I'm not an engineer
  

 2        for asphalt plant or any type of engineer.  They based
  

 3        on, you know, the expected emissions they -- I'm sure
  

 4        there is published or whatever database to show if you
  

 5        want to run this at this capacity this is what you
  

 6        expect it to emit per hour or per year for those
  

 7        various pollutants here.
  

 8   Q.   So if I understand, two columns to the right, the first
  

 9        column totals up all of the stuff that could be emitted
  

10        without any control, or protections, is that right?
  

11   A.   Correct.
  

12   Q.   And the second column is after controls, right?
  

13   A.   Right.
  

14   Q.   So after controls, what kind of particulate matters
  

15        produced by a asphalt plant?
  

16   A.   So this is for after the control they would say during
  

17        operation one hour for PM10 which is particulate matter
  

18        with a diameter smaller than 10 micron, is 4 point --
  

19   Q.   I was going to ask about the total particulate matter.
  

20        What is the -- let's do it this way.  What is the
  

21        potential emission of total particulate matter coming
  

22        out of the stack of the mixer?
  

23   A.   So the total -- total of that which included larger
  

24        ones, small ones or whatever, that's the first one.  So
  

25        it's 7.2 pounds per hour or 2.31 tons per year.
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 1   Q.   Those are actual emissions after controls?
  

 2   A.   Correct.
  

 3   Q.   I wanted to know what the emissions were before
  

 4        controls.
  

 5   A.   Before controls is 7.2.
  

 6   Q.   Would it not be 4807 tons?
  

 7   A.   No, that's after.  I'm sorry, I read the -- no, those
  

 8        are the year, the before control is 48 tons per year,
  

 9        with the control is 2.3.
  

10   Q.   2.3 tons per year?
  

11   A.   Uh-huh.
  

12   Q.   And then on the particulate matter 10 microns?
  

13   A.   The before control is 23.8 and after control is 1.52.
  

14   Q.   And then although it doesn't say it, particulate matter
  

15        under 22.5 microns would be the difference between 1.52
  

16        and 2.31, right?
  

17   A.   No.
  

18   Q.   No?
  

19   A.   No, they didn't -- they didn't report here.  But if you
  

20        -- the total minus PM -- yeah, I guess -- but also that
  

21        include the ones that are larger than 10 micron.
  

22        That's what --
  

23   Q.   All right.  Now, the 10 microns, what's the source of
  

24        that particulate matter?  Is that the dust of the
  

25        gravel?
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 1   A.   10 is -- 2.5 is -- this is just the size of the
  

 2        particles, so if a 10 that would have a larger fraction
  

 3        for them from the mechanically generated particles.
  

 4        For example, the road dust resuspension and -- you
  

 5        know, I don't know the generic details but any
  

 6        mechanical abrasion or something will generate the
  

 7        larger ones.  Now, the two -- the small ones normally
  

 8        is coming from the real fine particles coming from
  

 9        combustion process.
  

10   Q.   And is there an acceptable allowable minimum for the
  

11        2.5 microns?
  

12   A.   Well, this is the emission.  I think the emission
  

13        allowance is specific to sources or whatever so they --
  

14        this is for the asphalt plant for this scale, this is
  

15        below the allowable emission plant so that's why they
  

16        said that TRC did not do further work on concentration
  

17        modeling.
  

18   Q.   And do you understand why they didn't?
  

19   A.   Because they said it was below the, I think, the
  

20        regulation -- regulator requirement rate.
  

21   Q.   Now, we've got a photograph here which is a Google
  

22        Earth map that was produced by the Opposition here and
  

23        I'm going to show you this.
  

24             MR. TUZIW:  Jim?
  

25             THE WITNESS:  Yes.
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 1             MR. TUZIW:  It talks about before controls and
  

 2                  after controls, what are the controls?
  

 3             THE WITNESS:  I think controls are from reading
  

 4                  the report, I think for PM control they use
  

 5                  the baghouse and for here also the other
  

 6                  things they probably have to use some --
  

 7                  again, the technical details was not provided
  

 8                  there.  This is just based off my knowledge
  

 9                  about other emission sources which mostly
  

10                  baghouse capture big ones.  They also put on
  

11                  some electric (unintelligible) thing which is
  

12                  to charge the particles and then use a
  

13                  electric static thing to remove them.  So the
  

14                  generic control tools, yeah --
  

15             MR. TUZIW:  (Inaudible) all the different filters
  

16                  are built into the plant --
  

17             THE WITNESS:  Correct.
  

18             MR. TUZIW:  -- that's what they're referring to?
  

19             THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Though, the details I don't
  

20                  know but that's the control, right.
  

21             MR. TUZIW:  Yeah, now it makes more sense now.
  

22             THE WITNESS:  Correct.
  

23             MR. TUZIW:  Thank you.
  

24   BY MR. SNEED:
  

25   Q.   Now, explain what these .25 micron particulates do once
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 1        they leave the plant.
  

 2   A.   The fine PM2.5 which I think, you know, I published a
  

 3        lot of paper on that.  That's the more dangerous part.
  

 4        And the larger particles don't get into our deep lung
  

 5        and so, you know, because we have a nasal area to clean
  

 6        them up and the road dust and that kind of thing.
  

 7        That's why, you know, probably more a nuisance than a
  

 8        real health hazard.  But the small, the fine particles,
  

 9        that's the one really is a health concern because they
  

10        can -- they can come into deep into a lung and you
  

11        know, with the exacerbation of lung disease, that sort
  

12        of thing which I spent some time to discover those
  

13        things.
  

14             But answer your question, once the PM2.5 come out
  

15        from the stack is going to -- the removal process to
  

16        remove from atmosphere is largely through we call dry
  

17        deposition and wet deposition.  We deposition is if you
  

18        have a rain, snow or all this water, you know, very
  

19        dense cloud that can wash them and bring down to the
  

20        ground.  For dry ones they just will be much slower,
  

21        it's going to get into the atmosphere, the, you know,
  

22        follow the airflow and removed by a surface impaction
  

23        or the tree leaves, that sort of thing.  And that's the
  

24        major removal mechanism.  But PM2.5 they can travel
  

25        three, four days if without rain, whatever.
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 1   Q.   Now, the --
  

 2             MR. TUZIW:  It's showing this is before --
  

 3             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  You need to speak louder.
  

 4             MR. TUZIW:  I'm sorry.  This is showing all the
  

 5                  before the filters, before all the process of
  

 6                  the plant.  This is showing the (inaudible)
  

 7                  that after.  So the breakdown of it is going
  

 8                  down through the particulate matter and
  

 9                  that's at 10.  They didn't do 2.5 because the
  

10                  state's telling them that these are low
  

11                  enough that they don't need to do it, so they
  

12                  didn't give us a test number for that.  But
  

13                  it's showing, basically what this is showing
  

14                  us is how clean the plant's going to be based
  

15                  on the estimates what the filter system where
  

16                  they've got the baghouse and everything else.
  

17                  So you can see the difference as to how this
  

18                  is what it would have been had they had no
  

19                  filters whatsoever, and this is what it is
  

20                  after they get it clean.
  

21             MR. RAMSEY:  What's the red?
  

22             MR. TUZIW:  This doesn't tell us what the state
  

23                  limit is.
  

24             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  We don't need --
  

25             MR. LAWS:  We don't need for the panel to discuss
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 1                  this --
  

 2   BY MR. SNEED:
  

 3   Q.   All right.  What -- what is allowable ambient limit for
  

 4        2.5 micron PM?
  

 5   A.   You mean this is the concentration, this is not
  

 6        emission.  So --
  

 7   Q.   Well, the concentration.
  

 8   A.   Concentration.  So particulate matter, even the
  

 9        importance of the health concerns, so the U.S. EPA
  

10        considers as one of the criteria pollutants, they're
  

11        regulated at the ambient level so that's, you know,
  

12        that means outside this room whatever -- of course we
  

13        cannot measure everybody's home.  But there is this --
  

14   Q.   I didn't understand what you said.  They're regulated
  

15        at?
  

16   A.   At ambient level so when you go to measure at any
  

17        location that people lives that's in principal, so
  

18        that's why there's each state you will have those
  

19        stations measured.  I probably should have checked
  

20        whether Marshall has one, maybe not, it's too small.
  

21        Maybe Asheville definitely should have one around that
  

22        area.  So you measure those levels.  The current EPA
  

23        standards for 25 -- our average is 35 microgram a cubic
  

24        meter.  For annual average is 15 microgam a cubic
  

25        meter.
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 1   Q.   I'm sorry, say that again.
  

 2   A.   So the -- those particles comes from all kinds of
  

 3        sources, combustion, the atmospheric reaction, you
  

 4        know, cars, the traffic is a big one and in Durham
  

 5        probably our 80 percent of PM2.5 is from traffic.  So
  

 6        that -- what people should concern is the level in your
  

 7        neighborhood.  What's the concentration in your
  

 8        neighborhood.  This one did not predict that because
  

 9        they said this was below the emission whatever, they
  

10        did not do the calculation.
  

11   Q.   Do you know what your level is in Chapel Hill?
  

12   A.   Chapel Hill is about 10 to 15.  On very good days I
  

13        would say 10-something.  We could get, in the
  

14        wintertime we could get to 30 at max -- 30 but again,
  

15        that's -- 35 is the national standard.
  

16   Q.   And what --
  

17   A.   Today I will come to here, my professional, just, eye
  

18        tells me out in the downtown here, I was think it's
  

19        probably seven or eight microgram per cubic meter.
  

20             MR. TUZIW:  You can see those when -- you can see
  

21                  micrograms by your --
  

22             THE WITNESS:  Well, it's just the feel, you know,
  

23                  the general thing.  Been what, 30-some years,
  

24                  yeah, I could be wrong.  I went to Beijing, I
  

25                  did (unintelligible) so, this is a 300
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 1                  microgram (unintelligible).
  

 2             MR. GULDEN:  Well, I'll object and move to strike
  

 3                  because with his naked eye he can't see 2.5,
  

 4                  but --
  

 5             THE WITNESS:  No, you can't.  2.5 is --
  

 6             MR. GULDEN:  But you're just guessing?
  

 7             THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I'm just guessing.
  

 8             MR. GULDEN:  Okay.  So we'll object to that
  

 9                  testimony.
  

10   BY MR. SNEED:
  

11   Q.   All right.  Now, based on your experience and knowledge
  

12        of toxicology and public health and environmental air
  

13        quality, have you formed an opinion as to whether or
  

14        not the emissions from this plant will adversely affect
  

15        public health?
  

16   A.   I do not believe that this --
  

17   Q.   Well, did you get an opinion?
  

18   A.   I do.  I have that opinion.
  

19   Q.   Well, what is that opinion?
  

20   A.   My opinion is that the emission levels at this level
  

21        and also the predicted concentration, maximum
  

22        concentration, even people live down at that level, I'm
  

23        not think about anything else, just the pollutants
  

24        levels we're talking about, I would not think that has
  

25        any public health concerns because where I live is
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 1        above that.
  

 2   Q.   Is above that?
  

 3   A.   Yes.
  

 4   Q.   And based on your experience and knowledge of
  

 5        toxicology and public health and environmental air
  

 6        quality have you formed an opinion satisfactory to
  

 7        yourself as to whether or not this -- these emissions
  

 8        will be injurious or have impact on persons working in
  

 9        the neighborhood?
  

10   A.   I do have a opinion.  I do not think that it will be
  

11        injurious.
  

12   Q.   And based upon the same circumstances, your education
  

13        will -- do you have an opinion as to whether or not
  

14        this -- these emissions will impact an ecosystem or
  

15        impair or damage property in the neighborhood?
  

16   A.   I do have a opinion.  I do not believe those levels
  

17        would have a eco -- will damage -- will have a impact
  

18        on ecosystem.
  

19   Q.   I direct your attention to this aerial photo or Google
  

20        Earth photo.  You can see, do you identify where you're
  

21        looking?  The red dot in the middle is, I believe, is
  

22        intended to be the site of the Madison Asphalt plant.
  

23        And you see you've got the Madison County baseball
  

24        field off to the -- about 080?
  

25   A.   Yes.
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 1   Q.   And is -- it's less than a half mile.  Will any of
  

 2        these particulates affect that baseball field?
  

 3   A.   I do not think so.
  

 4   Q.   What will happen to the particulates?
  

 5   A.   Because the maximum -- well, they didn't do the
  

 6        concentration but based on that emission my -- again, I
  

 7        did not do the model but I, based on my professional
  

 8        judgment I think it would be surprising that this
  

 9        emission will add more than one microgram per cubic
  

10        meter to the background level that you have here.
  

11   Q.   And the PM10, the big particles, how far will they
  

12        travel before they fall to earth?
  

13   A.   PM10, the larger ones they don't travel that far
  

14        compared to PM2.5.  They fall down more rapidly.
  

15   Q.   And once again, that's from gravel and dust?
  

16   A.   PM10 also include PM2.5, so the -- or the you know,
  

17        more dangerous part is part of that.  The fine one is
  

18        more from the combustion process.  The mechanical
  

19        process is more on the coarse part.
  

20   Q.   And over here you see Madison Child Development Center
  

21        at about 030.  Will those particles affect that or have
  

22        an impact on that?
  

23             MR. GULDEN:  What size particles?  I'll just
  

24                  object to the form of the question.  I'm not
  

25                  sure what particles you're talking about.



Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. VI -
May 16, 2019

801

  

 1   Q.   Do either PM10 or PM2.5 have any impact --
  

 2   A.   The PM2.5 will travel more -- a larger fraction
  

 3        compared to PM10 will travel more of travel down to the
  

 4        site.  But even with that, again, based on maximum
  

 5        occurs in the boundary, those levels will be lower than
  

 6        that.  So I do not see a concern for kids or for the,
  

 7        you know, people who are more susceptible with that
  

 8        kind of level added.
  

 9   Q.   Now, we've had some testimony that there were some
  

10        studies that were done that three -- children played
  

11        three sports that they would have more lung capacity
  

12        than the children that played one sport.  Are you
  

13        familiar with that study?
  

14   A.   That sounds like the study done in Los Angeles or
  

15        Southern California, is that right?
  

16   Q.   We weren't given a citation.
  

17   A.   Okay.  So as I mentioned, I worked at US -- University
  

18        of Southern California for three years but before that
  

19        I have lots of college friends who were working
  

20        together.  So USC Department of Preventative Medicine
  

21        done a study in Southern California looking to children
  

22        who --
  

23             MR. GULDEN:  Well, I'm going to object to a study
  

24                  that was done in USC if he's going to talk
  

25                  about the results or what it showed.  I won't
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 1                  get a chance to cross-examine the individuals
  

 2                  who offered that study.  Unless you, Dr.
  

 3                  Zhang, authored that study.
  

 4             THE WITNESS:  I'm not, but it McConnell, Robert
  

 5                  McConnell or Dr. McConnell is the author of
  

 6                  that paper.
  

 7             MR. GULDEN:  Well, I don't --
  

 8             THE WITNESS:  I don't know, I --
  

 9             MR. GULDEN:  I know you know what study it is, I
  

10                  can't -- is Dr. McConnell coming?  Is he
  

11                  going to come and testify?
  

12             THE WITNESS:  You could ask.  But anyway, so,
  

13                  because, you know, just to say that study, I
  

14                  did not read, that's why I said there was the
  

15                  study and USC did find that --
  

16             MR. GULDEN:  Well, I'm going to object to his
  

17                  testimony about what the study from USC --
  

18             MR. SNEED:  Well, but they were his colleagues.
  

19   BY MR. SNEED:
  

20   Q.   And he knew they were doing it when they (audience
  

21        member coughing).
  

22   A.   Yes, or their -- that's called Children's Health Study.
  

23        They done a study that for 25 years they published so
  

24        many paper that U.S. EPA cited for the standards.
  

25             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  I'm overruling the objection.
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 1   Q.   So go ahead and tell us about what the study did and
  

 2        what it found and why.
  

 3   A.   So I guess what I hear you is you want me to sort of
  

 4        explain what come from the study.  I know there was a
  

 5        study in Southern California when kids play compared to
  

 6        the lung function, lung capacity for children, school
  

 7        children play longer outside to the children who play
  

 8        short time.  And then the -- the finding was that
  

 9        children spending longer time playing sports in the
  

10        afternoon had a lower lung capacity because of the
  

11        pollution.  And the pollutant when it caused that
  

12        deficit is the ozone, it's the ozone really is, you
  

13        know, impairs lung function.
  

14   Q.   It wasn't PM25 or 2.5?
  

15   A.   I was not in that study.
  

16   Q.   It was just ozone?
  

17   A.   Was ozone, I believe they did -- again, I should bring
  

18        those, maybe NO2, anox or something.  But they --
  

19             MR. GULDEN:  I'm going to --
  

20   A.   I'm sorry.
  

21   Q.   But it was not -- it was not -- it is not PM2.5?
  

22   A.   (Inaudible)
  

23             MR. GULDEN:  He's just explained -- he's just
  

24                  explained he doesn't know the real findings
  

25                  he maybe should have looked at it.  We would
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 1                  again object to that, move to strike, but
  

 2                  thank you, Doctor.
  

 3             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Sustain (whispers).
  

 4             MR. RAMSEY:  Jim, are familiar with the CDC report
  

 5                  that's been causing a lot of confusion?  Have
  

 6                  you looked at -- I don't know if you guys
  

 7                  will show him the CDC --
  

 8             THE WITNESS:  It's the one I had, it'd be like 20
  

 9                  minutes before I'm on my way I looked at it.
  

10             MR. RAMSEY:  So the CDC report they've been using
  

11                  it says it's safe, it's not safe.  And --
  

12             THE WITNESS:  The CDC one is pretty clear about
  

13                  VOCs and what else, again, you know, 20
  

14                  minutes on my way.  But it I think is earlier
  

15                  was cited as the PM2.5 levels were elevated,
  

16                  right?  That's the multisites maybe was the
  

17                  North Carolina site has a -- but I try to
  

18                  find the numbers, those I couldn't find.
  

19                  Again, I was 20 minutes away.
  

20             (WHEREUPON, Applicant Exhibit Number 9 previously
  

21                  marked for identification was passed to the
  

22                  witness for review)
  

23   BY MR. SNEED:
  

24   Q.   That's the one you reviewed?
  

25   A.   Yes.
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 1   Q.   Okay.  Answer his question.
  

 2             MR. RAMSEY:  The CDC report I'm asking, you've
  

 3                  read, you're familiar with it?
  

 4             THE WITNESS:  As I said, 20 minutes away today,
  

 5                  this afternoon, on the way here.
  

 6             MR. RAMSEY:  In the report it says that children
  

 7                  playing on playgrounds and stuff it's safe
  

 8                  and in other places it says it's not safe.
  

 9                  Can you go through that, because it just
  

10                  didn't --
  

11             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  As we understand it, it states
  

12                  that children with ground to -- they're lower
  

13                  to the ground and they have a tendency to
  

14                  take things from their hand and put them in
  

15                  their mouth, a hand-to-mouth process while
  

16                  they're -- after playing or during playing
  

17                  outside in a playground area.
  

18             THE WITNESS:  I see.
  

19             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  In that report that's what it
  

20                  stated.  And in other areas within the report
  

21                  it states that it is safe -- the report says
  

22                  that it is a safe area.  So there is
  

23                  conflicting information in that statement.
  

24             MR. RAMSEY:  If you just had 20 minutes to look
  

25                  over it, I --
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 1             THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I only read the summary.  I
  

 2                  only saw that there this multisites, what is
  

 3                  their overall sites everything, the air
  

 4                  pollutants were all below the standard.  I
  

 5                  saw in one site looks like they said PM2.5
  

 6                  was above the regulatory standard.  That's
  

 7                  probably they talk about the 35 microgram per
  

 8                  cubic meter but I don't see the numbers.
  

 9                  That it said this place also the odor limit
  

10                  was -- was exceeded.  That's -- but the other
  

11                  place they said was okay, so anyway, that's
  

12                  my quick 20 minutes to read, I'm sorry.
  

13             MR. RAMSEY:  I appreciate --
  

14   C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

15   Q.   Dr. Zhang, it's a pleasure to be in front of you; I've
  

16        read some of your, quite a few of your articles.  You
  

17        -- do you have that TRC report in front of you?
  

18   A.   Yes.
  

19   Q.   The full report?  And you're just going -- you're --
  

20   A.   This?
  

21   Q.   Yes.  Your testimony is just based on the accuracy of
  

22        this report?  You didn't do any independent modeling,
  

23        you just assumed that what they're reporting is
  

24        correct?
  

25   A.   Correct.
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 1   Q.   And you know that they made some significant mistakes
  

 2        in their report?
  

 3   A.   I did not notice any significant mistakes.
  

 4   Q.   So if you -- right there, they're talking about in this
  

 5        report that was filed on February 2019, they're talking
  

 6        about, back here on Form D-1, the facility-wide
  

 7        admission summaries, they have to do modeling for
  

 8        formaldehyde, benzene, arsenic and nickel.  Is that
  

 9        what that says on Form D-1?
  

10   A.   I did not -- yes.
  

11   Q.   Yeah, that --
  

12   A.   Exhibit 4 compounds, yes.
  

13   Q.   Right, right.  But initially, this is on the Form D-1,
  

14        this is Exhibit 10 that was admitted.  They talked
  

15        about air dispersion modeling just for -- this is on
  

16        page 2.3, it says, "The worksheet calculated projected
  

17        emissions for air toxic substance and identified that
  

18        air quality modeling assessment for arsenic, benzene
  

19        and formaldehyde is required."  So in the back they're
  

20        saying we've got to model four.  But in the front
  

21        they're saying we only have to model three, so --
  

22             MR. SNEED:  I want -- I want to see the page that
  

23                  you're talking about.
  

24             MR. GULDEN:  2.2, page 2-2, Air Dispersion
  

25                  Modeling, second sentence.
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 1   Q.   "The worksheet calculated projected emissions for air
  

 2        toxic substance and identified that air quality
  

 3        modeling assessment for arsenic, benzene and
  

 4        formaldehyde is required."  So the TRC report indicates
  

 5        one thing, we've got to model four, but yet in the
  

 6        front when they're giving their summary they're saying
  

 7        we're only modeling three.  So my question is, what
  

 8        assurances do you have independent of your own
  

 9        knowledge that any of the numbers that they have are
  

10        correct?
  

11   A.   So I was explained about the addition of the nickel to
  

12        that.  I did not consider that was, you know, because
  

13        that initial -- initial something that, you know,
  

14        technically question them they are sloppy or whatever.
  

15        I did not see that.  I think the -- I was just looking
  

16        to the assumptions -- the assumptions and also the
  

17        procedures, you know, the -- it's basically do like a
  

18        cookie.  You know, you follow -- you do this kind of
  

19        thing, like what I do for research, you have to follow
  

20        whatever step recommended do that.  So --
  

21   Q.   Right, right --
  

22   A.   I did not check each number.  That would require a lot
  

23        of my time.  I did not see that need at this point.
  

24        They do have experience running this, so to me appears
  

25        they're doing the right job.
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 1   Q.   Correct, but if in your recipe for cookies you have to
  

 2        add flour, eggs and milk and you leave out the milk, is
  

 3        that going to make a good cookie?
  

 4   A.   I --
  

 5   Q.   You said -- you said it's like a recipe.
  

 6   A.   Yeah, I got that.  I do not see that they -- they
  

 7        missed a ingredient.
  

 8   Q.   Well, they did miss an ingredient, their first one,
  

 9        they -- they said we're only doing modeling for
  

10        formaldehyde, benzene --
  

11   A.   Right.  We could do another 20 compounds too because
  

12        there are so many compounds.
  

13   Q.   Well, let's show you this one.  The one that you're
  

14        looking at, Exhibit 10, right, let's go to our handy-
  

15        dandy recipe here and find these pages.
  

16             MR. SNEED:  Before you ask him the question, I
  

17                  want what page we're looking at.
  

18             MR. GULDEN:  Yeah, absolutely I will give you
  

19                  that.
  

20   Q.   On page 4.3 of Exhibit 10, the February 19th.  So on
  

21        this 4.3 February 2019, that's Exhibit 10, what
  

22        ingredient did they leave out of their modeling?
  

23   A.   No, no, they did not -- so let's put it this way.  It's
  

24        stuff they cook they make you three cookies, that late
  

25        they did a lot of cookies.  But the process for make
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 1        those three cookies are correct, you know, follow that
  

 2        thing.  This is just they did one more -- less.  That's
  

 3        (unintelligible) Later I also said why -- I asked them,
  

 4        they said well, could it be just initial get the three
  

 5        compounds, they were actually do three -- that's what I
  

 6        said, you know.
  

 7   Q.   You know, and TRC in their recipes also made a mistake
  

 8        by calculating the wrong heights of --
  

 9             MR. SNEED:  Objection.
  

10             MR. GULDEN:  Well, I'll go through it.
  

11   Q.   On one of the site plans, it's probably not attached to
  

12        this because this isn't the proper site plan.
  

13   A.   I mean, I cannot -- I did not assess that.  I did not
  

14        go to verify those answers, so I could not comment on
  

15        that.
  

16   Q.   Okay.  And I guess my question is if TRC, TRC isn't a
  

17        good chef, how can you rely on the information that's
  

18        in that document?
  

19   A.   I never said they're not a good chef.  You know,
  

20        there's just -- I don't know the rationale for you
  

21        saying that, you know, they're -- the process for
  

22        making those compounds are solid.  That's all I can
  

23        say.
  

24   Q.   You talked about the -- the site where they did their
  

25        modeling.
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 1   A.   Uh-huh.
  

 2   Q.   And it is on page 4.2.
  

 3   A.   4.2, yeah.
  

 4   Q.   And so they did their air quality modeling
  

 5        considerations based upon those sites?
  

 6   A.   Coordinates.
  

 7   Q.   Those coordinates.  Did you plat those coordinates?
  

 8        Did you begin to plot --
  

 9   A.   Well, I did not plot, that's -- what they did is from
  

10        that center, okay, the site is then every two
  

11        kilometers do this.  They did it for 25 miles.
  

12   Q.   Where does it say 25 miles?  I was going to ask you
  

13        about that next.
  

14   A.   That's probably was my phone call to them, I think.  I
  

15        did ask how far they did go.
  

16   Q.   Because they --
  

17   A.   That was 25, maybe Mr. Sneed can tell you.
  

18   Q.   Because in actuality -- so they based -- they based
  

19        their projections on how those travel off of that data
  

20        set that's there and it comes out to be a Jupiter site.
  

21        So it's about nine miles away, you know that, right?
  

22   A.   What's that site?
  

23             MR. SNEED:  No, we don't know that.
  

24             MR. GULDEN:  That was already testified to.
  

25             MR. SNEED:  No --
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 1             MR. GULDEN:  Whoa, I'm asking him if he knows, not
  

 2                  you.  And he said he doesn't know it.
  

 3             MR. SNEED:  He testified --
  

 4             THE WITNESS:  I didn't know the question.  Can you
  

 5                  repeat the question, that's my --
  

 6   Q.   Yes.
  

 7   A.   Okay.  So what's the Jupiter --
  

 8   Q.   These -- these coordinates, if you plat -- plotted them
  

 9        out it would put you at this weather data site here in
  

10        Jupiter, wouldn't it?
  

11   A.   We include everything within 25 miles.
  

12   Q.   Where in the report does it say 25 miles?
  

13   A.   Maybe that's -- today I asked them and they said --
  

14   Q.   I mean, if you could just look through it --
  

15   A.   Yeah, yeah.
  

16   Q.   -- take 20 minutes or so to look through it and see if
  

17        you can find 25 miles.
  

18   A.   They -- I called them I think somewhere, that was my
  

19        question.  So this is how I would do if I did --
  

20             MR. SNEED:  Take your time to look through the
  

21                  report.
  

22   A.   Okay.  If I would do -- you have to do that way because
  

23        that's the model designed that way.  You start from
  

24        this point and then you go, you know, you can define
  

25        your spacial resolution, the grids.  And then the
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 1        pollution, the concentration at each of those grids,
  

 2        you go and then for them it did not give me -- did not
  

 3        report all the concentration as a function of the
  

 4        distance but they record they said the highest, the
  

 5        maximum number and where that maximum number occurs.
  

 6        So that's the -- in the table here I would -- I wanted
  

 7        to -- I did review this Table 3, that's where that
  

 8        emission source, the point starts.  That's the X at Y,
  

 9        right, that's the --
  

10   Q.   Axis, yeah, go ahead.
  

11   A.   Yeah, that's the --
  

12   Q.   X and Y.
  

13   A.   -- starting from there, that's the stack height, that's
  

14        the temperature, the plume, the terms of the initial
  

15        rise of plume.  This is the speed of the plume.
  

16   Q.   Yeah.
  

17   A.   Okay.  Diameter of the stack.  So those number -- down
  

18        here, this -- I did not go to look for the website but
  

19        they must -- you have to define, you said the grids,
  

20        whatever, so go.  So I don't understand your question
  

21        of the Jupiter site.  It's not pick a site, I only want
  

22        to do this site.  You have to do the entire area.
  

23   Q.   Right.  But they're doing it based -- if they're
  

24        centering it on this Jupiter site which isn't close to
  

25        a river and it's on top of ridge, not in a valley, it
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 1        may have different results as far as the modeling and
  

 2        the dispersion of the gaseous matter.
  

 3   A.   Are you saying that's the weather station site?
  

 4   Q.   Yes.
  

 5   A.   Okay.  Okay.  I understand now.  Okay.  So, yes, it did
  

 6        say that that's the nearest weather station they can
  

 7        get the data.
  

 8   Q.   Okay.  And did you investigate whether that nearest
  

 9        weather station is similar to where that plant is going
  

10        to be?
  

11   A.   I did not do a sort of thorough careful just to do that
  

12        but normally when you around those kind of thing, sort
  

13        of you find the nearest one and then you say whether
  

14        the terrain, whatever, something similar, that's the
  

15        best you can do.  I don't think it is wrong but maybe
  

16        not as accurate.  You know, for a recent project I
  

17        would run a weather station right there to verify that.
  

18        But I think for regulators, that's when I worked for a
  

19        consulting firm and that's all people do, you find the
  

20        nearest one.
  

21   Q.   Right.  Research-wise to make sure it's accurate and
  

22        it's published and peer-reviewed.
  

23   A.   That's right.
  

24   Q.   You would have run it from the asphalt plant, but for
  

25        the health, safety and welfare of those little kids and
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 1        the elderly, Jupiter's fine?
  

 2   A.   No, that's not -- that's not -- that's not my point is.
  

 3        And so you may think, also we built (unintelligible) --
  

 4             MR. SNEED:  I can't understand --
  

 5   A.   -- is to have a safety factor built in.  If the weather
  

 6        condition, let's put this, I would say this number, I
  

 7        always put a factor of 10.  If anything wrong, the
  

 8        weather not accurate, maybe we'll raise this 10 times,
  

 9        okay?
  

10   Q.   Yes.
  

11   A.   Even with that I think it still is well below the
  

12        concerned levels.  That's what I would say.  But I
  

13        don't think that because that weather station, the data
  

14        would be that kind of thing.  The error -- the error,
  

15        the maximum error, I would think is 10 percent,
  

16        whatever.  It cannot be that large because you run
  

17        sensitivity analysis you will know it's not going to
  

18        change the whole picture.  Let's see, we'll be 100
  

19        times difference --
  

20             MR. SNEED:  That microphone, you have the same
  

21                  problem I do, you bump into it and it makes
  

22                  noise.
  

23             THE WITNESS:  Sorry.  Yeah, we don't want to fall
  

24                  asleep, right?
  

25   Q.   Correct, Dr. Zhang.  So we're talking about now I want
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 1        to -- all right, and I'm going to get on to my real
  

 2        questions here in a minute, but the 25-mile-per-hour --
  

 3        gee, the 25-mile grid, would it surprise you if that,
  

 4        the grid that they actually used was so small that the
  

 5        -- and this is the grid you're talking about, and it
  

 6        was admitted into a report.  It's got all these little
  

 7        receptor points and it's up and down, it crosses, and
  

 8        they pluck them out of the air, it didn't --
  

 9             MR. SNEED:  I'd like to see what you're showing
  

10                  him.  That's from your expert's report.
  

11             MR. GULDEN:  Correct, and I'm asking him about it.
  

12             MR. SNEED:  Okay.
  

13   Q.   It didn't cover any of the sensitive receptors such as
  

14        the Elderberry Nursing Home, the AgCenter, the daycare,
  

15        the community college, the baseball fields or the
  

16        senior citizen center.
  

17   A.   That cannot be because they said they run for 24 miles,
  

18        were those things you mentioned within 24 hours?
  

19   Q.   Oh, this -- this is what -- this is what the TRC grid
  

20        looks like.
  

21   A.   I did not see that.  I don't know -- I don't know how
  

22        they assessed that.  But the baseball field, the site,
  

23        was it within 24 miles of that?
  

24   Q.   Oh, for sure, they're way closer than that.
  

25   A.   Okay.  Well, that's why they said -- they did it within
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 1        24 miles, they find other things, so beyond 24 miles I
  

 2        cannot say anything.
  

 3   Q.   Yeah.  It was Mr. Sneed that told you they did it for
  

 4        25 miles?
  

 5   A.   No, I called them to -- I forgot his name, Mr. --
  

 6   Q.   Vandenmeieracker?
  

 7   A.   Yeah.
  

 8   Q.   I'm going to try to get you out of here, you driving
  

 9        back to Duke today?
  

10   A.   No, you want me do that after this, yeah?  You don't
  

11        worry about my safety?  We talk about stress?
  

12   Q.   All right.  We're -- let's go to this EPA report that
  

13        -- or the EPA emissions plan.  You talked about fine
  

14        particulate matters of 2.5 are associated with
  

15        combustion, right?
  

16   A.   Yes.
  

17   Q.   And you're aware that this asphalt plant is going to
  

18        have a 15,000-gallon diesel fuel tank that's going to
  

19        combust to heat up the gas?
  

20   A.   Correct.
  

21   Q.   Or strike that, I said gas, heat the gas.  It's going
  

22        to heat the asphalt mix.  And so you're aware that
  

23        there are fine particulate matters of 2.5 or less that
  

24        are going to be emitted from that combustion?
  

25   A.   Correct.
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 1   Q.   And you did -- is this you?  That's you, that's got to
  

 2        be you.
  

 3   A.   That's me.
  

 4   Q.   Yeah, so the combustion sources of particles, you did a
  

 5        report in 2002 that said, "There's strong scientific
  

 6        evidence emerging that adverse health effects due to
  

 7        exposure to airborne particulate matters and
  

 8        specifically to fine particulate matters can be more
  

 9        significant due to exposure than many other airborne
  

10        pollutants."
  

11   A.   Correct.
  

12   Q.   Is that still -- so the 2.5 that are being emitted from
  

13        the combustion of 15,000 gallons of diesel fuel are
  

14        going to have adverse health effects due to exposure?
  

15   A.   Yeah.  Particulate matter, PM2.5 particulate matter is
  

16        a health hazard, no question about it, right?
  

17   Q.   Yes.
  

18   A.   That's why we regulate that.  It is also, the
  

19        combustion is going to generate that.
  

20   Q.   Yes.
  

21   A.   We all know that.  Is the thing when I hear is how much
  

22        that and what's the concentration.  Because we have,
  

23        you know, 10 microgram cubic meter outside there.  EPA
  

24        says 35, if you're above that, that you're out of
  

25        compliance.  So that -- that's correct.
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 1   Q.   Yes.  And some of these particulates, again, I'm just
  

 2        reading straight out of your report.
  

 3   A.   Yeah, sure.
  

 4   Q.   "Some of these particulates, the fine particulate
  

 5        matters act as carriers of absorbed chemicals or gases
  

 6        which can act as triggers for various health effects.
  

 7        Recent laboratory studies indicate that fine
  

 8        particulates could be more significant and particulate
  

 9        numbers could be more significant than mass and even
  

10        non-toxic particles."  So the fine particulate matters,
  

11        are they going to absorb benzene, formaldehyde,
  

12        arsenic?
  

13   A.   Arsenic is actually part of the PM2.5 because they're
  

14        in particulate form already.  We call arsenic but it is
  

15        actually, it's a different compound.  It comes with a,
  

16        you know -- other things.  So there's not a pure
  

17        arsenic element.  So arsenic nickel is already in
  

18        particulate phase, so they're already part of the
  

19        particulate matter.  The -- what kind of gases can be
  

20        absorbed on the particles, that depends on the nature
  

21        of the chemical property of those gases.  So benzene is
  

22        not very -- do not -- is not a compound that is easy to
  

23        just attach to a particles.  That's -- formaldehyde is
  

24        a little more likely to be.  So that's -- so those
  

25        statements are correct.  PM2.5, the fine ones is more
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 1        toxic than larger ones.  That's 2001, when people still
  

 2        don't quite understand how important the size is,
  

 3        that's those papers try to call for it.
  

 4   Q.   And you also did a journal article about Acute Decrease
  

 5        in Proteasome Pathway Activities where you reported
  

 6        that epidemiological studies consistently demonstrate
  

 7        an association between acute cardiopulmonary events and
  

 8        changes in air pollution.
  

 9   A.   Correct.
  

10   Q.   And the TRC report, are we going to have a change in
  

11        air pollution if the asphalt plant goes into operation?
  

12   A.   Yes.  But I said, based on those numbers, emission
  

13        numbers probably going to increase one microgram per
  

14        cubic meter.
  

15   Q.   Okay.  But in your acute decrease in proteasome pathway
  

16        activity, did you mention that in that article?
  

17   A.   Well, yeah.  The article have the exact what the dose
  

18        is.  Those concentrations are hundreds times higher
  

19        than what we're talking about, otherwise, we're not
  

20        going to see the effects, yes.
  

21   Q.   You also wrote an article, The Triggering of Transmural
  

22        Infarctions, a heart attack --
  

23   A.   Right.
  

24   Q.   -- different kinds of heart attack, the full heart or
  

25        the full -- you remember saying that your study showed
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 1        that an increase in PM2.5 concentrations was associated
  

 2        with an increased relative risk of a heart attack and
  

 3        further, subjects with COPD appear to be particularly
  

 4        susceptible.  Do you remember writing that too?
  

 5   A.   Correct, yes.
  

 6   Q.   How many individuals at the Elderberry nursing care
  

 7        center are going to be particularly susceptible to
  

 8        those fine particles and the heart attacks?
  

 9   A.   Well, you know, even me, I'm probably not belong to
  

10        those things, I still think I'm susceptible.  The thing
  

11        is, we, you know, we're not disagree with this
  

12        otherwise why EPA bother to regulate PM2.5.  That's why
  

13        people like me collect this evidence saying you got to
  

14        do something because increase those levels going to
  

15        increase the risk of what you mention about those
  

16        things.  The question is, how much that is.  So if you
  

17        come to ask me, I mean, I'm going to work, let's see, I
  

18        go to a bar tonight and there's somebody -- supposed to
  

19        be a non-smoking bar but maybe somebody going to smoke
  

20        outside there.  The PM2.5 concentration going to
  

21        increase very rapidly.  Yeah, I try to avoid that but,
  

22        you know what I mean?
  

23             But again, so we're here I think is just to say
  

24        this addition of this amount, whether that's really
  

25        significant or not in my opinion the natural durability
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 1        all the other sources, they're variability is going to
  

 2        be much higher than that, you know.  And if I -- you
  

 3        know, I travel to China a lot.  I travel to India, all
  

 4        those places.  So the levels are 400 -- I know it's
  

 5        that.  I know I'm going to increase all this risk to me
  

 6        and that's why, you know, I sort of say what -- what is
  

 7        -- I don't want to scare myself, you know.  I did all
  

 8        those things.  I try to -- public awareness and
  

 9        policies to make our air cleaner.  But when answer
  

10        those individual questions, I have to be honest because
  

11        otherwise I should know, you know, I'm not going to go
  

12        or whatever.  So that's --
  

13             MR. RAMSEY:  Jim, let me ask you something then.
  

14                  You had a choice to go to India.  There's
  

15                  folks in that nursing home don't have a
  

16                  choice, they're there 24/7.  Are they safe?
  

17                  Are those people in this -- this nursing home
  

18                  right up here, the people that are in my
  

19                  community and I care deeply about, are they
  

20                  safe?
  

21             THE WITNESS:  I don't know their background, the
  

22                  whatever they already have, but just the ones
  

23                  that coming out from --
  

24             MR. RAMSEY:  Okay.  Now, your report, this -- I'm
  

25                  confused by this.  It's like the CDC report,
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 1                  there's conflicting information.  Are these
  

 2                  people safe because you just now told me in
  

 3                  this report that they're not safe.  Are they
  

 4                  safe or are they not safe?
  

 5             THE WITNESS:  Which report says they're not safe?
  

 6             MR. RAMSEY:  The one that he's talking about.
  

 7                  It's very concerning to me that these
  

 8                  children and these older people up here don't
  

 9                  have a choice where they've got to be.
  

10                  Everybody else around here's got a choice;
  

11                  they don't have a choice.  Are you saying
  

12                  they're safe or they're not safe, because
  

13                  I've got two different opinions from you.
  

14             THE WITNESS:  I would -- if this is my kids, this
  

15                  is my mother, my parents, I would say you are
  

16                  safe over there because I don't want to scare
  

17                  them.  Because the other -- other exposures
  

18                  they got is hundred times more of that than
  

19                  this particular plant.
  

20             MR. RAMSEY:  All the --
  

21             THE WITNESS:  All the papers has -- you know, when
  

22                  people read -- they have to say what's the
  

23                  dose, what's the contact.  We do studies very
  

24                  hard to find the facts.  There's levels of
  

25                  them so low we're not going to find it.  But
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 1                  some -- that's why toxicology we're having to
  

 2                  go bigger dose, that kind of thing.
  

 3             MR. RAMSEY:  So you're saying the levels that this
  

 4                  asphalt plant produce, those folks are safe?
  

 5             THE WITNESS:  Yes.
  

 6   BY MR. GULDEN:
  

 7   Q.   You had indicated that individuals that may be in
  

 8        mobile homes have a higher chance of formaldehyde or
  

 9        how many of those children then that are going to be an
  

10        increase in the pollutants there, how many of those
  

11        children go home to mobile homes?
  

12   A.   Those people?
  

13   Q.   Such that the formaldehyde that they get from the plant
  

14        would have an aggregate effect on what they get when
  

15        they go home to the mobile home?  Do you know how many
  

16        of those kids are going to be affected by your
  

17        statement that mobile homes will have higher
  

18        formaldehyde?
  

19   A.   Okay.  I got your question.  So the mobile home, you
  

20        know, they say have the higher levels to start with
  

21        because they, you know, the sources, existing sources.
  

22        So that question is if they have additional, whether
  

23        that's going to make that worse?
  

24   Q.   Yes.  Like the flu.  Right.  And so is it going to make
  

25        it worse if some of those kids go home and have parents
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 1        that smoke, live in a mobile home or participate in
  

 2        other activities that have exposure to formaldehyde?
  

 3   A.   So -- yes.  Scientifically I don't think we have a
  

 4        clear idea.  Let me explain to you.  Definitely the
  

 5        more you have, you don't want to add, right?  Nobody
  

 6        wants more.  Now, how the body going to react to that
  

 7        is, because you already have a high level, some people
  

 8        may already got saturate and you get a little bit more,
  

 9        they don't feel.  Actually, we find in the last two or
  

10        three years of study, you saw my papers come out
  

11        initially struck me, is that we thought the people, you
  

12        know, with very high levels, they're probably going to
  

13        be more susceptible but we find actually the cleaner
  

14        ones whatever, they just -- they're easy, they make it
  

15        whatever your immune system is -- they just tends to be
  

16        more likely responsive to additional (unintelligible)
  

17        than the ones already have high levels.
  

18             So with that said -- but I still don't want to say
  

19        that, you know, you already have lots of exposure,
  

20        don't worry about a little -- that's -- I'm never going
  

21        to say that.  But on the other hand, this one -- it's
  

22        small compared to others.
  

23             MR. RAMSEY:  So let's go back to the nursing home
  

24                  again, okay.  So somebody's in there, an
  

25                  older person, an 85-year-old tobacco farmer
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 1                  that's grew up and lived here all of his
  

 2                  life, smoked cigarettes his whole life, he's
  

 3                  got COPD.  Will this asphalt plant have an
  

 4                  effect on him in that nursing home at these
  

 5                  levels?
  

 6             THE WITNESS:  No.
  

 7             MR. TUZIW:  None whatsoever?
  

 8             MR. RAMSEY:  None whatsoever?  It's not going to
  

 9                  have any effect on him?
  

10             THE WITNESS:  No, not this level.  For CO --
  

11             MR. RAMSEY:  Is that --
  

12             THE WITNESS:  For COPD.  We did a -- we run a
  

13                  study in China, in Beijing.  We recruit a
  

14                  healthy group, we recruited a group with
  

15                  COPD.  We thought that the COPD will be, you
  

16                  know, when there's a ex-smoker, the inversion
  

17                  have in Beijing lasts for three or four days
  

18                  so higher levels goes up to 500.  We talk
  

19                  about 35, okay.  And we thought those people
  

20                  going to be responsive actually was not.
  

21             MR. RAMSEY:  But your -- I have not seen this --
  

22             THE WITNESS:  For the additional stuff --
  

23             MR. RAMSEY:  -- the other attorney over here's
  

24                  got, but -- and it's conflicting.  It says if
  

25                  somebody has COPD that there's a greater
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 1                  risk.  I'm -- I'm just confused by it.
  

 2             THE WITNESS:  So I guess it would be probably --
  

 3                  because scientifically it's very complex so
  

 4                  individuals are so different, some things we
  

 5                  want to generalize a population level.  For
  

 6                  pollutants like particulate matter people
  

 7                  have COPD the particulate matter increased
  

 8                  levels this will increase their exacerbation
  

 9                  or worsening of their problems.  But same can
  

10                  increase for healthy people will cause
  

11                  different type of health problems.
  

12   BY MR. GULDEN:
  

13   Q.   So an increase will cause a problem whether you're
  

14        healthy or whether you have COPD?
  

15   A.   Correct.  Correct.  That's what I'm saying.  Other --
  

16        because for different people -- cardiovascular, lung,
  

17        every -- every, you know, because we're not just this
  

18        -- let's think about, this is, you know, different type
  

19        of health problems, right?  Asthmatics they comes with
  

20        the lung and some people it comes with the
  

21        cardiovascular system.  Well, first we got to see this
  

22        particulate matter has a cardiovascular effects, nobody
  

23        believe us, this go to the lung, why, you know, the
  

24        cardiovascular system.  But now we're finding more and
  

25        more and we say yeah, it actually is.  But that if --
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 1        yeah, sorry.  This is where it get more confusing,
  

 2        yeah.  But bottom line it's not good for anyone.
  

 3   Q.   Not -- correct, not good for anyone.  You also talked
  

 4        about C6H6, is that benzene?
  

 5   A.   C6H6, that is benzene.
  

 6   Q.   Benzene.  You also talked about CO2 being a global
  

 7        pollutant.
  

 8   A.   Correct.
  

 9   Q.   And so when you break down benzene which is going to be
  

10        released by this asphalt plant, it breaks down, it
  

11        oxidizes into water and what?
  

12   A.   CO2.  Eventually, yes.
  

13   Q.   Eventually.  So you're going to have then a global
  

14        pollutant, carbon dioxide, when benzene that's been
  

15        released from the air breaks down, oxidizes, turns into
  

16        water and carbon dioxide?
  

17   A.   Correct.
  

18   Q.   So you're going to have benzene, this carcinogen which
  

19        accumulates in your body.  If people aren't breathing
  

20        it in, great because it's going to turn into carbon
  

21        dioxide.  That's not safe, is it?
  

22   A.   Carbon dioxide itself doesn't directly have health
  

23        effects, we know that.  That's a -- drives the
  

24        temperature rise that is the -- that's the mechanism,
  

25        right.  So let's come back to the fundamental thing,
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 1        yes, if you -- this is bad stuff.  You put in, it's
  

 2        bad.  Okay.  No question about it.  Again, we come back
  

 3        to this level, how much you're talking about.  That's
  

 4        what we're saying.  You know, in the ideal world, I
  

 5        don't want -- I want zero benzene.  I want a zero CO2.
  

 6        I want zero formaldehyde.  But when I walk to my home
  

 7        that's not the case.  I live in Durham and Chapel Hill,
  

 8        that traffic comes in, those level, that's the real
  

 9        world.  I put it that way, yeah.
  

10   Q.   Right.  But nobody wants more.  This produces more, has
  

11        effects, creates global pollutant carbon monoxide --
  

12        dioxide, benzene.  Yes or no?  It was a horrible --
  

13   A.   Yes.
  

14   Q.   -- question.  It's getting late and I'm sorry.
  

15   A.   Yes.  You, you know, the absolute condition.  Yes, you
  

16        -- and if you add it in.
  

17   Q.   And you talked about emissions, cars and all of that.
  

18        You understand that this asphalt -- proposed asphalt
  

19        site is going to have a truck holding area and a road
  

20        where all these diesel trucks are going to be coming,
  

21        idling, right?  And when they idle, do they release
  

22        diesel emissions, trucks?
  

23   A.   Yes.
  

24   Q.   Yes.  And do you remember doing a study about diesel
  

25        emissions that the exposure to diesel exhaust



Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. VI -
May 16, 2019

830

  

 1        particulates suppresses antimycobacterial human immune
  

 2        effector cell functions?
  

 3   A.   Correct.
  

 4   Q.   And by suppressing those antimycobacterial human immune
  

 5        effector cell functions, that's not good, is it?
  

 6   A.   That's not good.
  

 7   Q.   Right.  No.  And so that's -- when people are breathing
  

 8        the diesel exhaust particles not good things are going
  

 9        to happen?
  

10   A.   Correct.  Also have to remember, this is a
  

11        (unintelligible) study, we did it with a high
  

12        concentration, yes.  This doesn't mean if I now, you
  

13        know, going to Durham, this I believe is diesel buses
  

14        and you know, the diesel garbage collector comes to my
  

15        neighborhood and you know, I have it open, that doesn't
  

16        mean that's going to do this thing.  The study you read
  

17        -- I did a bunch on it, not just that one, probably 10
  

18        papers about how bad diesel products we use to --
  

19   Q.   I'm going to ask you about the next one here in a
  

20        minute.
  

21   A.   Yeah.  Okay.  So anyway, so we did all those things but
  

22        --
  

23   Q.   You did all those -- and one of the studies that you
  

24        did found that short-term exposure to roadside diesel
  

25        traffic led to consistent and significant reductions in
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 1        lung functions accompanied by airway acidification and
  

 2        neurotrophic inflammation.
  

 3   A.   Correct.
  

 4   Q.   You know that.  So that's just short-term.
  

 5   A.   Yes.
  

 6   Q.   So you've got a study that says that long-term exposure
  

 7        to diesel exhaust emissions is harmful but you also
  

 8        have a study that says short-term --
  

 9   A.   No.
  

10   Q.   -- exposure.
  

11   A.   No, I did not do long-term.  This is all short-term.
  

12        This -- it's very hard to do a long-term study.  It's
  

13        all short-term all show adverse effects, correct.
  

14   Q.   So the paper that you did, the Health Effects of Real-
  

15        world Exposure to Diesel Exhaust in Persons with
  

16        Asthma, when I -- what I'm reading, taking right from
  

17        it says, short-term exposure lead to consistent
  

18        significant reductions, that's not correct?
  

19   A.   That's correct.  Short-term --
  

20   Q.   Oh, that is correct?
  

21   A.   Short-term.  I said I never done long-term one.  That's
  

22        right, correct.
  

23   Q.   Oh, all right.  Oh, and so --
  

24   A.   You're all -- short-term is correct, yes.  All short-
  

25        term.
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 1   Q.   So it's not long-term --
  

 2   A.   Yes.
  

 3   Q.   -- diesel exposure, it's just that any exposure to
  

 4        diesel exhaust suppresses the antimycobacterial humane
  

 5        immune effector cells?
  

 6   A.   No, that's not any, it has to be above some dose.
  

 7        Because you see when we did the study we have a
  

 8        multiple dose levels.  When you go down to somewhere,
  

 9        that's what the control does, will do.  If you have
  

10        doses and -- we are not going to see it.
  

11   Q.   Probably my last question.
  

12   A.   Okay.  You got me energized.
  

13   Q.   I'm almost done.  So we've got the proposed asphalt
  

14        plant and you know all the particulate matters that
  

15        it's going to emit.  Did you know that the state of
  

16        North Carolina also has issued an air quality permit
  

17        for a concrete batch plant on the site?
  

18   A.   I'm not aware of that.  I only heard from today's
  

19        hearing about what's going on here.
  

20   Q.   And -- well, are you aware that the state of North
  

21        Carolina has issued a air quality permit for the quarry
  

22        operations?
  

23   A.   No.
  

24   Q.   Are you aware that the state of North Carolina issued
  

25        an air quality permit for PrintPak to emit chemicals?
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 1   A.   No.
  

 2   Q.   No?  Do you know how many air quality permits are
  

 3        issued for Madison County?
  

 4   A.   No.
  

 5   Q.   Three.  Okay.  Do you know where those three are?
  

 6   A.   No.
  

 7   Q.   PrintPak, the quarry and the concrete plant.  So my
  

 8        question is, did you consider the effect of all the
  

 9        pollutants that would be potentially trapped in an
  

10        inversion in this building, right?  So we were talking
  

11        about at one point source the asphalt plant, when
  

12        somebody smoked in here it keeps it trapped.  Did you
  

13        consider the fact that if the asphalt plant is
  

14        permitted there are going to be four folks smoking in
  

15        this room?  Did you consider that?
  

16   A.   I think if I were a citizen in this area, if I lived
  

17        here I would like to have a sort of like a overall, you
  

18        know.  At the end of the day is not what does he mean,
  

19        whatever, is how much come to my body which is where I
  

20        live.  If that level in my yard is below, let's say for
  

21        PM2.5 35 microgram per cubic meter, I probably would
  

22        say that's -- I would not worry much about it.  If
  

23        above that, you know, according to EPA, all those
  

24        extensive evidence base it would be different.  But
  

25        just this one goes there as I said, will increase one



Bridges Court Reporting
828-429-7839

Application by Madison Asphalt, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit - Vol. VI -
May 16, 2019

834

  

 1        microgram per cubic meter.
  

 2   Q.   But you would have liked to have seen a potential --
  

 3        you would, in fact, you -- if you were doing research
  

 4        on it you would include all of the emissions from all
  

 5        of these other places?
  

 6   A.   And also for my own, you know, my uncle comes to smoke,
  

 7        that sort of thing, I will add them together.
  

 8   Q.   Yeah, yeah, because you wouldn't want to live within
  

 9        two-tenths of a mile of the proposed asphalt plant
  

10        knowing that the only four permitted facilities that
  

11        are polluting in Madison County are all within this
  

12        little circle?
  

13   A.   Uh-huh.
  

14             MR. GULDEN:  Those would be my questions.
  

15             MR. SNEED:  Just two.
  

16   R E D I R E C T  E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. SNEED:
  

17   Q.   The DEQ has the ability to require an aggregate
  

18        modeling if they think it's necessary, don't they?
  

19   A.   I believe so.
  

20   Q.   And do you have an opinion as to whether or not the
  

21        emissions from the asphalt plant will have any effect
  

22        to the plants or wildlife or animals in the area?
  

23   A.   I'm not a expert on animals or -- my colleagues at my
  

24        school, they work on ecotoxicology.  I'm more on the
  

25        human being but based on what the -- those emissions
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 1        going to the nearby ecosystem, you know, water, that
  

 2        kind of thing, I think it would be quite insignificant
  

 3        amount.
  

 4   Q.   Thank you, sir.
  

 5   A.   But again, I'm not a expert on ecosystem.
  

 6             MR. GULDEN:  Again, I'll ask one or two more
  

 7                  questions.
  

 8   R E C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N  BY MR. GULDEN:
  

 9   Q.   You know you did a study, The Characterization of
  

10        Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons and the findings --
  

11        because you say you're not an expert but you did find
  

12        that the findings demonstrated that planting vegetables
  

13        near industrial facilities may pose potential cancer
  

14        risks to those who consume the vegetables.
  

15   A.   Yes, that's -- that study was done in the industrial
  

16        complex in -- not in Shanghai, outside of Shanghai.
  

17        You know how high level those are?  Those are 1,000
  

18        times higher that what we're talking about here.
  

19   Q.   Right.  But we're talking about Madison County's
  

20        industrial complex and you created a nice little
  

21        graphical extract.  Did you do that?
  

22   A.   Yeah.
  

23   Q.   Yeah, right.  Right.  And it shows like the blues being
  

24        emitted from the cars and the smoke stacks.  The -- and
  

25        I'm going to hand it to the board.  Come on down here
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 1        with me, let's just talk -- this is my last, I swear,
  

 2        you're just going to explain this to the board.  Right?
  

 3   A.   Yeah.
  

 4             (WHEREUPON, the witness steps down to the easel in
  

 5                  front of the board members)
  

 6   Q.   We're talking about his little -- so when you have --
  

 7        when you plant vegetables near this industrial site,
  

 8        explain to the board what your little graphical
  

 9        abstract shows here.
  

10   A.   So you already -- before I show this I'm going to ask
  

11        questions -- questions about how it's going to, you
  

12        know, what pollutants transfer, transport to this
  

13        things, so that how much plants can take up lubricants
  

14        depends on the properties of this -- this pollutants.
  

15        So benzene pollutants are not -- here we're talking
  

16        about polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons, so here is
  

17        their actual plant (unintelligible).  So this is a
  

18        study where we did, this is the diameter of that
  

19        complex has a very high level of pollution, right?  So
  

20        I say one ton can easily -- not many people lives
  

21        there.  But we had a concern because around the plants
  

22        nobody lived there because so high, you know, Beijing
  

23        we talk about sometime inside 500.  This place is only
  

24        five (unintelligible) because -- that's why we said
  

25        well, people cannot live around this plant, the
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 1        vegetables.  (Unintelligible) those things and we said
  

 2        we're going to go measure, I think we did not select
  

 3        benzene because we know benzene probably not -- five
  

 4        plants in a month.  So we picked up the classical
  

 5        compounds that are easily take up by the plants, the
  

 6        vegetables.  We did a different type of vegetable, red
  

 7        cabbages and different type of -- lettuces or roots
  

 8        kind of things.  So we say which -- which veggies will
  

 9        pick up.  So at the end of the day we find yes, there's
  

10        a special (unintelligible) two years ago --
  

11   Q.   Two years ago you --
  

12   A.   Yeah, two years ago (unintelligible) but some of those
  

13        veggies, avocados and (inaudible) they tend to pick up
  

14        those things.
  

15             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Can you speak a little bit
  

16                  louder.  We have a court reporter that's
  

17                  trying hear you.
  

18   A.   We got from that study it says there's a potential
  

19        risk, you know, this needs to be air condition.  That's
  

20        (inaudible) right?  Because you read it today
  

21        (inaudible) one of the things I published two, three
  

22        years ago --
  

23   Q.   Anyway, so -- so --
  

24   A.   So that's what I'm saying, yes, for some compounds from
  

25        the air they will be uptake by plants, PH's,
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 1        particularly, so again, those levels are that high but
  

 2        based on the levels that coming from this, it's just
  

 3        the four levels, even uptake based -- I can easily do a
  

 4        calculation, how many percentage given, I can tell you
  

 5        it's almost nothing.
  

 6             MR. RAMSEY:  Okay.  I'd like to bring it back to
  

 7                  local.  Buy local, eat local, pray local,
  

 8                  drink local.  So take Ms. Evans, she's got
  

 9                  cows over here and she's got Jersey cows --
  

10             MR. GULDEN:  Mr. Sneed wants you up there to
  

11                  answer the questions.
  

12             MR. SNEED:  I want you to come back here and get
  

13                  in your chair.
  

14             THE WITNESS:  So now I understand.
  

15             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Let's let you go back to your
  

16                  seat so everybody can hear you.  It is late.
  

17             (WHEREUPON, the witness returns to the stand)
  

18             MR. RAMSEY:  Okay.  Back to my question.  Ms.
  

19                  Evans again, bringing it back local, she's
  

20                  got dairy cows that she milks and her cows
  

21                  eat the grass that's right across the river
  

22                  from the asphalt plant that all these
  

23                  chemicals that you're talking about fall back
  

24                  down on the ground.  If the cow eats the
  

25                  grass and it goes through the milk and the
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 1                  people drink it, is there any effect of that?
  

 2                  Because you're bringing up -- you're bringing
  

 3                  up vegetables is the reason I'm asking you.
  

 4                  You're getting into a whole other area.
  

 5             THE WITNESS:  So based on the -- given those are
  

 6                  other compounds okay, it's just the -- based
  

 7                  on the compounds I started in Shanghai, the
  

 8                  -- I can apply the, you know, you start with
  

 9                  this much, how -- at the end, you know, one
  

10                  hundredth, maybe one thousandth were getting
  

11                  to that plant or grass or that kind -- we can
  

12                  do a calculation.
  

13             MR. RAMSEY:  No, no --
  

14             THE WITNESS:  Based on that, based on the levels
  

15                  of that come up here, I think will be
  

16                  (unintelligible).
  

17             MR. RAMSEY:  Okay.  Now, a cow goes two and a half
  

18                  acres.  If they graze two and a half acres, I
  

19                  know if anybody sprays the grass you grow,
  

20                  they're real careful about that because they
  

21                  say keep the cows off, lactating cows, off of
  

22                  that through two year at least.  So she got
  

23                  lactating cows that's going to transfer
  

24                  through that milk because they don't
  

25                  pasteurize the milk, they do it all.  If they
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 1                  transfer that through, is that going to hurt
  

 2                  anybody?
  

 3             THE WITNESS:  Again, based on this amount come off
  

 4                  of that levels I do not see there will be a
  

 5                  significant amount.
  

 6             MR. RAMSEY:  Let's say there was -- and I'm just
  

 7                  -- I'm trying to get this in a frame that I
  

 8                  can see.  They just pointed out there's three
  

 9                  other air quality plants, I have no clue what
  

10                  kind of stuff they're producing.  But if
  

11                  there's four asphalt plants there, is that
  

12                  going to make a difference?
  

13             THE WITNESS:  Four, if based on this four times,
  

14                  that's probably still below the, you know,
  

15                  lowest calculations but definitely will be
  

16                  more than just one, you know, four times.
  

17                  Four times I think based on the emissions,
  

18                  for that emission; they have a control give
  

19                  that emission.  I, you know, based on my
  

20                  study with that kind of eye level I can
  

21                  detect those things, I don't think we can
  

22                  detect any effects.
  

23             MR. RAMSEY:  So you're saying on your expert
  

24                  opinion that Mrs. Evans, her concerns if they
  

25                  drink her mile, she's okay?
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 1             THE WITNESS:  Actually, for milk I'm not going to
  

 2                  comment on anything.  I don't know whether
  

 3                  either of those chemical things will go to
  

 4                  milk or not.
  

 5             MR. RAMSEY:  All right.
  

 6             THE WITNESS:  Yes, I have to say I only --
  

 7             MR. RAMSEY:  I just said that she --
  

 8             THE WITNESS:  -- plants, yeah.  I'm sorry, you
  

 9                  know, maybe we -- you should ask who are
  

10                  expert on that.  I actually don't know how
  

11                  much --
  

12             MR. RAMSEY:  I thought that was toxicology, I'm
  

13                  sorry.
  

14             THE WITNESS:  Well, we don't study everything, I
  

15                  don't study cows.
  

16             MR. RAMSEY:  What about the vineyard?
  

17             THE WITNESS:  What about what?
  

18             MR. RAMSEY:  The vineyard that they talked about.
  

19             THE WITNESS:  Vineyard?
  

20             MR. RAMSEY:  Yeah, I'm trying to bring this stuff
  

21                  back with the stuff that people are talking
  

22                  about.  The vineyard, the grapes, the
  

23                  muscadines, the lady -- the other lady got up
  

24                  and talked about.
  

25             THE WITNESS:  I do not have any -- I do not have
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 1                  expertise of that.
  

 2             MR. RAMSEY:  I thought you were just talking about
  

 3                  the vegetables.
  

 4             THE WITNESS:  No, well, I only started -- even the
  

 5                  five or six different vegetable I studied,
  

 6                  that's all I have data.  They show so
  

 7                  different in terms of uptake.  So if I wanted
  

 8                  to predict what happens to grapes, I just, I
  

 9                  can't.
  

10             MR. RAMSEY:  Okay.
  

11             MR. TUZIW:  I've got a question.  Being a second
  

12                  generation vegetarian, cows eat grass, they
  

13                  eat cows, I'm a little worried about the
  

14                  numbers.  Took a bit, didn't it?
  

15                       I worry about all these numbers we're
  

16                  running through tonight about levels and
  

17                  being below EPA designated numbers.  And I
  

18                  understand how government works, and the EPA
  

19                  comes up with their numbers and then they're
  

20                  affected by lobbyists who influence changing
  

21                  those numbers, how comfortable are you with
  

22                  all the numbers the EPA comes up with being
  

23                  acceptable levels for us to live under?
  

24             THE WITNESS:  You know, that would really become
  

25                  very personal.  Depends how you feel, if you
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 1                  wanted to be more precautionary or whatever.
  

 2                  But I would say the whatever we have that's
  

 3                  probably based on the transparence, that all
  

 4                  the evidence that lots of smart people spent
  

 5                  years to put together.  Are they perfect?  I
  

 6                  don't think so.  Are there room to advise
  

 7                  them?  Yes, actually every five years they
  

 8                  evaluate.  Some get revised, some don't.  The
  

 9                  next five years they will revise.  So that's
  

10                  all I can say.
  

11             MR. TUZIW:  Thank you.
  

12   Q.   Dr. Zhang, I don't have anymore questions for you other
  

13        than to say it's been a pleasure.
  

14   A.   Are you sure?
  

15   Q.   Yes.
  

16   A.   You read -- how many other pages are you going to read
  

17        of mine?  Thank you so much for spending time reading
  

18        my articles.
  

19             MR. SNEED:  Thank you, Doctor.  You may come down
  

20                  unless they have any other questions.
  

21             CHAIRMAN KIEHNA:  Any other questions?  No.
  

22             THE WITNESS:  All right.  Thank you so much.
  

23             (WHEREUPON, the hearing was recessed at 7:48 p.m.
  

24                  and reconvened at 8:10 p.m.)
  

25                            * * * * * * * * * *
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